Tillamook County Transportation District
Board of Directors
Regular Monthly Meeting

Dial-A-Ride

ervice lfamook County Transportation District

Thursday, October 21, 2021 at 6:00 PM
Transportation Building

3600 Third St., Ste. A

Tillamook, Oregon



Tillamook County Transportation District
Normal Trial Balance
From 9/1/2021 Through 9/30/2021

Account Code Account Title Debit Balance Credit Balance
1001 General Checking Account 675,573.11-
1006 Payroll Checking 22,320.75.
1009 NW RIDES ACCOUNT 397,987 .45 -
1011 Prop. Mgmt. Checking 91,845.35 .
1020 LGIP - General Account 1,070,116.59 *
1030 LGIP - Capital Reserve 945,894.30 .
1040 Petty Cash 200.00
Report Total 3,203,937.55 0.00
Report Difference 3,203,837.55 ;Q’\
z
_ W ik
/K \
s
077

Date: 10/5/21 02:45:19 PM

MONTHLY BOARD REPORT - CASH Page: 1



| @8eq souBLIEA %9 198png (LA/M Hoday dOd Aliuopy WY LIZTIT 1T/S1/01 -a1eq

%60°Z1 (00°881°2£9) 00°881°61L 00°000°L8 000 00°000°SL 116% pun,j [EIOUSD) UI0I,] JAJSUBI],
%6L°9T (9L 0z¢'L) 00°000°01 ¥T6L9T £E°6E8 89°¢86 016+ swoauy dxy [euopesadp Isea]
%EE 81 (00°009°61) 00000+ 0000+t 00°000°C 00°000°T 006+ SLIOIU] ISEY]
%000 (00°000°1) 00000°1 000 £Ees 000 0S¥ awodu] SulSIHAPY
%806 (19°L¥5°67) 00°005°Z¢ 6€TS6T £€°80L°T vT016 015+ aW0OU] 182IU]
200759 (00005°¢) 00°000°01 000059 000 00005 01+t aUI0DU] - SJASSY JO J[BS
%EF €9 8L091°L1 00°005°01 8L099°LT 00548 £5°18S°C 00¥¥ WO SNOAUB][3ISIA
2000 (0o'00s°D) 00°00§°T 00'0 00'5Z1 000 00€¥ suoneradQ) sng [eroads
%000 (00°000°9€) 00°000°9¢ 0070 000 000 9rTH F0ES - seIn
%0070 (00°L75°881) 00°'LTS'881 000 000 000 Ster OTES - SIUBID)
%000 (00°000°89L) 00°000°89L 0070 0070 000 ot () 11€65 - suein
%00°ST (00°5LL°05) 00°00L°L9 00°526°91 000 000 0€£T ALS - sueIn
%SE'L oorziisn) 00'1T1°€91 00°000°C1 0070 000 STy U Ju0D) JUMEd VIOMN
25000 (00°99+°08Z°1) 00°99+°08Z°1 000 000 000 0ZTh T1€S V1A - sjuern
%000 (00°9£5°600°1) 00'9€5°600°1 0070 000 000 01TF sjuen [endeny
%000 (00°5£0°888) 00°SE0°888 00°0 000 000 LETH Areuonoasi JILS
%L8ST (00€€1192) 00°80€°2SE 00°SLI'T6 000 000 SEIP B[O JLLS
%00°0 (00000°58) 00°000°68 000 €€7€80°L 00°0 0E1+ XBJ, [[0IAR] 911G JISURL] SSEJA]
%000 (00°000°5Z€) 00'000°5Z¢ 00°0 00°000°52 000 0Z1¥ ANUBAY IoquIT] eIS
%61°C1 (€176 1) 00°000°52 LLFO'E L9916 L8LFO'E 011¥ Xe] Apadorg s1edz 1seq
%00°0 (00°08£°1£0°T) 0008E°TE0°1 0070 L9991°6L 0070 001+ xe ], Kadoig
%0 L1 (1L9T1°T29) 00°000°05L 6T ELSLTT EEEERDL LSTHILY 070+ ANUIAIY 10B1UOY)
%81°6¢ (z67€9°1+1) 00°000°007 80°L9E°8S L9'916°TT 09°€6E°TI 000% sa1ey|
%0070 (00°562°5£6°T) 00°S6T°GL6T 000 0070 0070 005§ [eiide)) Sunjiom
muuhzcmvﬂ.
%GT 0UBLIB A 128png [e10], [emoY 108png poLa g [EMOY POLI3
198png mo], Iea A juarmy) juaLmnn) juarmy)

120T/0€/6 YSnOIY ], [T0T/1/6 WO
1UQUIDIR]S [RIOURUIL]

PLNSI uoneyrodsuea], £)uno’) yoouwreLy,



7 @8y ADUBLIEA 2§ 198png LA/Mm 1odoy qod Ajyiuopn
%ETLT 1L THL'ST 00°005°6€ 6T°85L°01 00°SL8°T 65 THLY
WULL'LL LOEIEE 00°000°F £6'989 £E'EEE 61'9€C
%65 YT Z0'60%'9 000058 86060°C £€'80L 66'C1
%000 00°000°0€1 00°000°0€1 000 £CEE80I 000
%000 00°05£°05 00'05£°0S 000 £8°C61F 00°0
%000 00°000°52 00°000°5Z 000 £97999°1 00°0
%TT T € 1LT99 00'0SL°TIT LS'8LY ¥ #8666 $9'LZI°S1
%99°0T €L7TT8I8ET 00°000°Z00°€ LT8LI0TY 1+°869°50T 65°T69°651
%TLE9 80'CEELI 00°000°L¥ 76'999°6C 00°0SL°E 0070
%P8 61 78'9L9°6E 00°005°6¥ 81786 LYT6LE 90°0LIE
%T9°CT LYSRTTY 00°005°08 EEPIT8I 99'16Z°9 SI8KL'y
%LEIT 68°7E0°L6E 00°000°505 11°696°L01 LOOTG LE 89°166°0¢
%S1HT T T6ETOL 00°000°S€1 9L°L09°ZE L9'91F01 £'8LLS
%ST'ST 69'950°9¢ 00°000°GL 1E€°€H6°31 00°05T°9 EILETS
%EE61 €R°1L6°60T 1 00°000°005°1 L1°8T0°06T £EEECE6 06'780°TL
%0E91 6759+ 971 00°000°GLT [SHES°]T 80°ST9°ZI 85188
%0161 T0°509°05€ 00°000°SEF 86 76E T8 CEELETE 99°667°9C
%65°¢ (SE6v6'668°11 00°0E5 EFETI SO°08S EhE 99 T+SFIT 67 655 ST
%000 (00's€0’0rE D) 00°SE00FE’] 000 000 000
%00°001 000 00°000°€¢ 00°000°¢ 000 000
%0070 (00°6¢v'9t) 00°6£t'9F 000 000 000

9%CT DUBLIE A 198png oL [emoy 193png poLg g [eTOY poLiag
Em?.—m _EO._[ .:qur UEQ.EDU HED.DBU EE.:,_U

120T/0€/6 USNOIYL [T0T/1/6 WoL{
JUSMIDIB)G [EIOUBUL]

PLpsIq uoneiodsuea ] £)uno)) JooweyfiL,

SFIS
orls
0c1s
£01¢
[0
1018
001¢S

cs0¢
£S08
508
[S0S
0508
0¥0¢S
0€0s
0208
010%

816
L16¥
916t

WV LITT-1T 1E/S1/01 Preq

W 1einduo)

U wawdimby 20130
suonduosqng 29 sengg
Suruue|q

JDUBUIUTEIA TSI
woddng sanensiwpy
S39]AIS [BUOISSAJOI]

SADIAILG PUB S[BLIIEIN
SIOTIAIOG [QUUOSIS [BIO ],
‘suj uonesuaduwio)) s1apom

BARA ([018E ]
JURLIDINAY [[0IAB ]
aIed)[eay [[0IAB ]

asuadxy [[01ked
ouRUIIUIRA :][0IKB ]
SIDALI(C] ([|0IAR ]
yoredsicy :jjoike
UONBNSIUIUPY :[[01Le ]

SOOTAIDG [AUTOSI2J

S2OIM0SY [BI0L

pung JLLS woly 13Jsuel],
V.ILOMN WOIJ I9JSUBI],
puny JLS WOoIJ 13Jsuel],



¢ :a8eq DUBLIEA 29 108png QL A//M Hoday qOg AYuon
%66 7T LY SHTEI 00 199°L1 AN 00°005°S 000
%IT 1 88686 781" 00°8TTIEL] T1'8€T9tT SO 1SL°Z01 86°608°€9
%9%'S 61 18L°€ 00000t 16812 £E'EEE 9L'TL
%9L'9T T0°'80£°81 00°000°$C 86'169°9 £€°€80°C 99°0£1°C
%000 000 000 000 LY 1t 000
%9091 $9°€78°1T 00000792 9E9L1y 00°ST1°T ELFOIT
%9£°€T ST'61E8E 00°000°05 S8'089°T1 000 £E19¢
%0070 00°000°00€ 00°000°00¢ 000 000 00°0
YeSLHT SIHHSEl 00°000°81 $8'6SHY 00°005°T L9°8£8°T
%00°0 (00 00t°1) 00°0 00°00%°1 00°0 000
%96 78 00°80L 00'80L'Y 00000t 000 0070
%EL9T STSO'l 00°000°C SL'VES L9991 T6'L0T
%ST'TT S1°795°95T 00°000°0€€ SRLEV'EL £EEER0T ¥L'6T6'EE
%9881 8% 6+8°T0T 00°000°05T TS0SI'Ly 00°05L°81 (z009Z°L)
%8512 SH06T'ST 0000561 $5°60T' Y 00°ST9°1 TELLT
%9€'81 STHSYSI 000TH61 §L°595°¢ £E°819°1 S6'6£6
%0070 000 000 000 00°0ST'9 000
%F9% 19°L+L°99 00'000°0L 6£°TSTE 00000°s 00°0TE'1
%08°1 00°55+°C 00°005°T 00°St £€'80Z 00°SH
%08 1T T6°S0L'9Y 00°005°6S 80°v6LTI £E'856°C €6'9L1°T
%69°¢1 ER6ITTI 00°000°€l LTOSLT EEERD'T STH69
%69+T €TS6TI1 00°000°G1 LLPOLE 00°05Z°1 £9°9%8
%00°0 00°000°0Z1 00°000°0ZT 00°0 €CEEE’E 0070
%196 E0°GLE'GT 00°005°Z€ LEFTIE FEE8ST 000
9%5T ADUBLIBA 195png [e10], [emoy 193png poLa [en)Oy poLag
108png [e1o]. IB3 A JUALIN)) juaLny) JuaLIng)

1202/0€/6 USNOIL, [Z0T/1/6 Wwol]

TUDLIIEB)S [BIOUBUIL]

PLYSIT vonejaodsuea], £Juno)) JOowe[[L],

00Ts

9res
ores
0ees
00ts
16TS
06¢S
$8CS
088
0LTS
09zce
SYes
0¥cs
0ZTs
01zcs
[61¢
061¢
c8lIs
081¢
SLIS
0L1S
091¢
0s1¢

WY LIZZ 1L 1E/S 101 P

s1u21d1oay] 0} sjuaheJ J1.S

sjuawke [eroadg
S90IAI2S PUE S[BLIIEJN [BIOL

quiep Anjioe,] suonerado
neday] 39 ey L1adoig
S99, 19SBIT X3

asuadxqg Suneradp Auadorg
asu2dxq AIAQD

quo)) SuperadQ [erauan
JUIRJA] 10JUS]) JISUBI],

95BIT I2JU)) JISUBI]

pun,] uo1neaIsay] Joqe TS
agersog

asuadxy [eng

asuadxy apo1ga A

Furures] 29 [2ARI]

asuadxq suoydajo),
USIST- NSGIM
Funayrep]

UONENSIUNUPY [040d[y % Fni(y
asuadxq [euonered()
asuadxy preog

asuadxy o0

2ouBINSU]

S3SUIIT 79 533



a8y Q0uBLIEA 79 198png LA/ Hoday qOdg Alyiuop
%86'1 8 ¥8S 106 00°668°TT6 TOFIERI §T'859°69 000
%8S°C LO'TIS TH6 00'#+5°L96 €6°186'FC 000 £6 (86T
%0070 00°000°9 000009 000 00°0 000
%0070 00°000°S 00°000°¢ 000 L99I¥ 000
%0070 00°000°06¢ 00°000°06¢ 000 000 00°0
%0070 00°000°0t6 00°000°0+6 000 000 00°0
%000 00°000°0€ 00°000°0¢ 000 £9°999°1 00°0
%TL'SE SLOGILT 00°00€°Tt STEOIST 00°520°1 60'+06°€1
%58 €k 8LHH]91 00'000°0€ TTSSIEl 00°0 TTSSTET
%00°0 00008+ 00008 000 00°00% 00'0
%50°9T L6SHS'S 00°005°L €0+S6°1 007529 LY 8YL
2%01'C 00'868°T61°F 00°868°T8T'F 00'000°06 00°0 00°000°SL
%000 00'T08°€L8 00°108°€L8 000 000 00°0
2,000 00°6£8°96T°1 00°£8°96T°1 000 000 00°0
%0t 00°€TT0F8 00°€22°TS8 00°000°Z1 000 000
%000 00°000°01 00°000°01 0070 00°0 000
%8€'0 00°6£0°TLL 00'6£0°SLL 00°000°¢ 000 00'0
%00°001 000 00°000°SL 00°000°SL 00°0 00°000°SL
%0070 00°000°00% 00°000°00% 0070 000 000
%00°5T L'SEL LT 00'199°€T £1°S16°S 00°008°S 000
%00°5T 00°005‘F 000009 00°005°( 00°0 000
%ST Q0UBLIB A 198png B0 [EN1oY 198png poLng [eMOY poLag
uumﬂnm [elo], JBa A JU2LIN) marmy) jlatelsitig]

120Z/0€/6 Y3NOIY ], [TOT/1/6 WOl

JUSUIRIE)S [BIOUBUL]

Jo11381(q uoneyIodsuray, A)uno)) YOOowe[fL],

0c09
0109
1T09
0209
0109
0009
0ses

8EES
LEES
GTES

0816
SLI6
0916
0cle6
0ele6
0ll6
0016

1ogs

WV LITE- 1T 1T/51/01 =ed

syoafo1d rende) roqO
s19)[ays/28eusdig doyg sng
JuroJ uone[nsuLL] [[20) [2n4
apesddn samdwo)
uonippyHusmaoe[day] uep
uonIppy Huataseday sng
uoreaouay 2 sreday Suipjing

saseroIn g reyde)

30IAIBS 193(] [BIO,
90IAIS 192 dILO
uBOT 19Ua)) NSUBIL], {10
asuadxqg ueoT nNd

ADIAIDS 19T
AepnQ eude)
SI3JSUBL] [B10],

[eg pun, Surpuy pajendorddeun
amyrpuadxq armny 10§ 941089y
PU] VLOMN 03 13fsUel],
DAIS2Y Q[IIYIA 0} IJSUBI],
pun,J [ISUS0) 0} I9JSURI],

wF ) Aedord 03 19sueI]

[€6S dIDT 0} I=jsuel],

SIQJSUBIL],

syuawiAe g [erdads e10L
syuardroay 01 syuowiked JIIS



¢ :a8eq

JoueLIEA 39 123png LA/ Hoday qog A[yiuoy

YLlT8 89°T6LTTE 11 00°0£S°EPETI TELELOTO'L S9'91L'T8E 61 V8E°LEE
YoLL'T 0T LEE'SHT'E 00°EPL E0E'E 08°S0F'8S 65799L°89 70'988°8¢
ToEET CFOPIEICE 00 EFF 19CE CCo6T Y 65TFLLY €6 T86FC
%GT 0UBLIEA 198png o], [emoy 128png pouayg [BMOY oL
123png [e10]. 183 A JUALIND) JIaIINY) u21Imy)

1202/0€/6 USnow L, 120T/1/6 Woig

1USUIL)E]S [RIOUBUL]
PLYSIQ uone)rodsuel ], £yuno)) YoowerL,

WY L1-CC- 11 1T/ 1/01 -=@1eg

sasuadxy [e1o|
Kepno [ende) g1
sasetpang [eyde)) (o],



| :28eq UBLIEA 9 198png LA/ Hoday qOg AJyruopa
%I8'GT 88'9€8°91 00000°0Z TIeor’e £9°999°] LLTLG
%90°1 00 F8¥°1 00°005°1 00'91 00°5TI 000
%L6'ST 9+ 10L°E 00'000°S ¥$'86T°1 L99TH 08'S18
%EL'TT TTTC9T 00°000°€91 8LLLO9E 00°05T°1 66'Z0°01
%0001 00°00S°€T 00°000°G1 00°00S°T 000521 00°008
%LE LT LOEI8] 00°005°T £6'989 €£'80T 67°9€¢C
%LE'G 00'€90°6 00°000°01 00°LE6 €eees 00°0LT
%F8 61 8CPRFTHY 00°000°ZSS T SIS 60T TE8SHLE ETLERTE
%S6°011 (SL%S) 007005 SLHSS 000 000
%SE61 00'¥8%°01 00°000°€1 00915 £E€°E80°T 06006
%E0°ET 06'669°TI 0000591 01°008°€ 00°5LEl 79966
%00°61 PLIGEELL 00°000°0%1 97°809°9Z €E€°€85°6 SH116°8
%l €T SE6F891 00000°ZT S9°061°¢ £E7EE8] TT68E°1
%07°ST 00°08t°L 00°000°0T 00°0Z5°T €EEES 00°0ZL
%ES'61 FEFEI 18T 00°000°0S€ 99°69£°R9 00°05L°TT T6'816°81
%99°¢T (0L'9€7°86€°C) 00°00+ [SFF 0£'E91°€50°1 £€Egecee TT006°1SE
%0070 (00°00t) 00°00% 000 000 00°0
%0070 (00°000°T) 00°000°T 000 0070 00°0
%TE9T (0L79€8°9¥6°7) 00°000°000°F 0£°€91°E50°1 geeeeieee TT006°1SE
%00°0 (00°000°05%) 00°000°05+ 000 000 00'0

%ST dUBLIE A 198png [ejoL, [enoy 198png pouag [EM2Y POLIDJ
Humﬁzm eer umu\-r FB.ESU Eu.ESU Eu.CSU

120T/0€/6 USnoy [, 1707/1/6 WOl

JUAWRIEIS [BIOURUIL]

PLSI( uoneliodsuel], £3uno)) yooweyrL,

012¢
08I¢S
OLIS
0sI1S
SPIS
orlLs
0oT1¢

ccos
£508
[
150S
0s0s
[0S
0108

015
LTO¥
9T0¥
00se

WV 1T 11 1T/S1/01 =@1ed

asuadxy auordara],
asuadxy |euoneiadp
asuadxd 20150
SASUIDIT 29 S99
N 1emdon

U wawdinbyg 20130
$2ITAIIG [BUOISSIIOI]

SIOIAIOG PUE S[BLIAIBN
SIITAIAG [AUUOSIS] [RIO ],

‘suj uonesuadwio)) SIaI0pM
BQaA 1[0IAE]

JULIAINDY [[01AB g
aIedIeay [[01ked
asuadxq (016

10211py] Jjolke g
UOIBNSIUIUPY :]OIAR ]

SIOTAISG [2UUO0SIAJ

§30IN0SaY [RI0L

AUWIODU] 1Sa1a1u]

AISY MMN

NUIAIY UMN
rearde)) Sunjrop

S92IN0SIY

«



7 98eg 2ouBLIEA 29 103png A/ Hoday qog A[yiuo
%¥6'TT 96 FETOEY'E 00700 ISFF $O'SOI'ITO] TEEEL0EE 8E0LI0SE
%000 00°000°sT 00700052 00'0 000 000
%000 00°000°5T 00000°5Z 0070 000 00°0
%000 00°000°5T 00°000°sT 000 00°0 00°0
%000 00°001°2L0Z 00°001°L0T 000 000 00°0
%000 00°001°L0T 00°001°L0T 000 00°0 00'0
%98+ 8€°059°55L°T 00°00€°2L99°¢ T96v9°116 00°SLT 6T ST EEERIE
%9t ¥ 76'59T'T 00°000°¢ 80'FEL 00052 SE0LT
%00°5T 00°009°¢ 00008+ 0000Z°1 00°00% 00°00¥
%CE'ST ST P61 00°000°09T SLEES'SY L9°999°1T 95'601°9T
%9991 00°000°0ST 00°000°081 00°000°0¢ 00°000°ST 00'000°ST
%E9°5T PLTPE'0ETT 00°000°000°¢ 98°LS0°69L 00°000°05T 0T €¥9°€9T
%86'C1 ST0LS 00°000°T $8°6Z1 £€°¢8 $6°6
%9 LY 6T°58F 00'005°T ILFT0'T 00°SZ1 rT 181

%ST dUBLIBA 198png [e10], [enoy 125png poua [EMoY pouag
195png B0 Jea X JUaLIny) JjuaLny) jliciiiilg)

1202/0€/6 USNOIYL [Z0Z/1/6 Wold
JUaUID1B)S [BIOUBUIL]

PLYSI uonejrodsuel ], Ayunoy) Joowe iy,

09

0816

00€s
1828
L9T¢
99¢s
§9zs
09¢¢
0zTs

WV vF 1T 11 1T/S1/01 =1ed

sasuadxy [e10],
KepnQ rende) wog,
saseyaing [ende)) [B10],
JUAUI)SIAU] AUB[OOF
saseyaan [ende)
AepnQ renden
SIQJSuUBL] [B)0,
Tegq pun,] Surpuy parendoiddeun
SI3JSUBIL],
SAOTAIOS PUE S[ELIOJEJA] [BIO,
asuadxg Suneradp Auadorg
U DGO
asINquIISY] 9TBIIA] J2JUN[O A
JUAWASINQUITY 9TBL[TA] J2qUIATA]
uoneuodsuel], paseyaing
age)sog
Sururer] 29 [oABI]



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 9/1/2021 Through 9/30/2021

Docume... Docume... Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

16569 9/2/2021 925.00 ADVANCED DIESEL SERVICE AUGUST 2021 bus 303

16569 9/2/2021 13,407.00 ADVANCED DIESEL SERVICE AUGUST 2021 bus 301/engine

16570 9/2/2021 375.00 ALL CLEAR AUDIO AND GLASS LLC BUS 307 WINDSHIELD

16571 9/2/2021 208.92 Batteries Northwest AUGUST 2021 BATTERIES/INVENTORY

16572 9/2/2021 12,336.21 CARSON OIL CO INC AUGUST 2021

16573 9/2/2021 743.85 CLAYTON NORRBOM TSI TRAINING
EXPENSES/REIMBURSEMENT

16574 9/2/2021 850.00 WAVE AUGUST 2021 TELEPHONE

16575 9/2/2021 106.23 COMCAST AUGUST 2021

16576 9/2/2021 110.00 Confederated Tribes of Grand R driver recruitment ad

16577 9/2/2021 56.75 DOUGLAS PILANT OFFSITE PERSONNEL

16578 9/2/2021 40.00 CENTURYLINK AUGUST 2021 HARD LINE FAX

16579 9/2/2021 2,840.00 FLEETIO FLEETIO ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION

16580 9/2/2021 512.01 Fred Meyer Customer Charges AUGUST 2021

16581 9/2/2021 50.00 Gary A. Hanenkrat AUGUST 2021 BOARD MEETING

16582 9/2/2021 532.85 GenXsys Solutions, LLC AUGUST 2021 computer support

16582 9/2/2021 2,500.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC AUGUST 2021 COMPUTER SUPPORT

16583 9/2/2021 787.88 GISI MARKETING GROUP BUS BARN SIGNAGE NO IDLING

16583 9/2/2021 430.11 GISI MARKETING GROUP BUS SIGNAGE - COVID

16584 9/2/2021 699.00 HR ANSWERS HR ANSWERS/SDAO TRAINING

16585 9/2/2021 7,830.00 INNOVA LEGAL ADVISORS LEGAL INCLUDING TRANSIT CENTER

16586 9/2/2021 50.00 JIM HUFFMAN AUGUST 2021 BOARD MEETING

16587 9/2/2021 225.00 JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC LEGAL

16587 9/2/2021 6,331.00 JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC LEGAL INCLUDING BLUE STAR GAS

16588 9/2/2021 50.00 JUDY RIGGS AUGUST 2021 BOARD MEETING

16589 9/2/2021 789.43 KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC. TCTD ROUTE 5 SERVICE EXPANSION

16590 9/2/2021 50.00 Linda Adler AUGUST 2021 BOARD MEETING

16591 9/2/2021 509.29 MAC TOOLS DISTRIBUTING SHOP TOOLS

16592 9/2/2021 50.00 MARTY HOLM BOARD MEETING 081921

16593 9/2/2021 50.00 MARY JOHNSON AUGUST 2021 BOARD MEETING

16594 9/2/2021 50.00 MELISSA CARLSON-SWANSON AUGUST 2021 BOARD MEETING

16595 9/2/2021 115.00 North Coast Lawn AUGUST 2021 LANDSCAPING

16596 9/2/2021 1,025.00 NATHAN LEVIN SEPTEMBER 2021 LEASE

16596 9/2/2021 1,025.00 NATHAN LEVIN AUGUST 2021 LEASE

16597 9/2/2021 8.00 NEW AGE CAR WASH VAN WASHES

16598 9/2/2021 186.06 NORTHSIDE FORD SHOP INVENTORY

16599 9/2/2021 41.25 Oregon State Police HIRING/BACKGROUND CHECK

16600 9/2/2021 42.00 PORTLAND GENERAL AUGUST 2021

16601 9/2/2021 1,704.00 Carole Richardson NWOTA - CONNECTOR PERFORMANCE
CALCULATOR

16602 9/2/2021 225.22 Pacific Office Automation AUGUST 2021 COPIER LEASE

16603 9/2/2021 136.28 PINPOINT STITCHES AND INK LLC LOGO WEAR - SHANNON

16604 9/2/2021 165.76 ROBERT SOUTHWICK MILEAGE FOR ] BLOCK

16605 9/2/2021 48.80 Rosenberg Builders Supply AUGUST 2021

16606 9/2/2021 64.28 TABATHA WELCH MILEAGE TO LINCOLN CITY - COVID
TEST KITS

16607 9/2/2021 355.00 Tillamook Chamber of Commerce CHAMBER DUES

16608 9/2/2021 65.00 TILLAMOOK PIONEER board notice

16608 9/2/2021 65.00 TILLAMOOK PIONEER board meeting notice

16609 9/2/2021 30.67 Tillamook PUD SMALL BUS BARN

16609 9/2/2021 42.54 Tillamook PUD LARGE BUS BARN

16610 9/2/2021 5,210.91 CARDMEMBER SERVICE AUGUST 2021

16610 9/2/2021 640.81 CARDMEMBER SERVICE AUGUST 2021

16611 9/2/2021 49.95 VANIR BROADBAND, INC. AUGUST 2021

16612 9/9/2021 13,066.09 CARSON OIL CO INC AUGUST 2021

16613 9/9/2021 546.00 Coast Printing & Stationery ROUTE FLYERS - COVID

16614 9/9/2021 500.00 KDEP-FM/KTIL-FM/KTIL-AM RECRUITMENT - COVID

Date: 10/6/21 01:33:49 PM

Page: 1 9



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 9/1/2021 Through 9/30/2021

Docume... Docume... Transaction
Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description
16615 9/9/2021 6.00 OR DEPT OF MOTOR VEHICLES AUGUST 2021
16616 9/9/2021 229.63 Pacific Office Automation TCTD COPIES
16617 9/9/2021 100.00 RICHARD DIETZ CDL PHYSICAL
16618 9/9/2021 95.00 STEVEN FERRARA CDL PHYSICAL
16619 9/9/2021 392.95 VERIZON AUGUST 2021
16620 ...4/2021 319.90 ALSCO - Portland Linen AUGUST 2021
16621 ..4/2021 425.00 Burden's Muffler & Towing BUS 304 TOW
16622 ..4/2021 766.50 COUNTRY MEDIA DRIVER RECRUITMENT
16623 ..4/2021 1,593.18 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE AUGUST 2021
CENTER
16624 ...4/2021 844.36 DAVISON AUTO PARTS, INC. AUGUST 2021
16625 ...4/2021 391.50 OR COAST BROADCAST CENTER DRIVER RECRUITMENT
16625 ...4/2021 378.00 OR COAST BROADCAST CENTER DRIVER RECRUITMENT
16626 ...4/2021 1,808.97 Tillamook Motor Co. AUGUST 2021
16627 ..4/2021 83.00 ALLAN NEWCOMB 106 FUEL REIMBURSEMENT
16628 ...1/2021 208.92 Batteries Northwest BATTERIES
16629 ...1/2021 45.00 BIO-MED TESTING SERVICE, INC. SEPTEMBER 2021 DRUG SCREEN
16630 ..1/2021 533.60 GenXsys Solutions, LLC SEPTEMBER 2021 COMPUTER SUPPORT
16630 012021 2,500.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC SEPTEMBER 2021
16631 ..1/2021 3,825.00 INNOVA LEGAL ADVISORS LEGAL
16632 ..1/2021 13,015.00 Jacobs Engineering Group INC CHAMPION PARK APARTMENTS
16632 . 1/2021 11,460.25 Jacobs Engineering Group INC CHAMPION PARK APARTMENTS
16633 ...1/2021 1,650.00 JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC LEGAL
16633 ...1/2021 6,302.50 JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC LEGAL
16634 ...1/2021 100.00 KATHLEEN SCHWABE CDL PHYSICAL
16635 ..1/2021 1,373.00 Marie Mills Center, Inc AUGUST 2021
16636 ...1/2021 17.20 Office Depot Credit Plan SEPTEMBER 2021
16636 ...1/2021 5.89 Office Depot Credit Plan SEPTEMBER 2021
16637 ...1/2021 82.50 Oregon State Police SEPTEMBER 2021
16638 ...1/2021 896.00 OTTER ROCK RADIO DRIVER RECRUITMENT
16639 ...1/2021 100.00 Parker Lenormand CDL PHYSICAL
16640 ..1/2021 236.49 Pacific Office Automation COPIER LEASE
16641 ..1/2021 7.70 TILLAMOOK DIESEL REPAIR SHOP INVENTORY
16641 ..1/2021 21.78 TILLAMOOK DIESEL REPAIR SHOP INVENTORY
16642 ...1/2021 1,320.00 TILLAMOOK PIONEER MARKETING - ANNUAL SIDE BAR
16642 ..1/2021 35.00 TILLAMOOK PIONEER BOARD NOTICE
16643 ..1/2021 49.95 VANIR BROADBAND, INC. SEPTEMBER 2021
Report Total 130,573.92

Date: 10/6/21 01:33:45 PM

w0



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1006 - Payroll Checking
From 9/1/2021 Through 9/30/2021

Document Document

Number Date Payee

5660 9/1/2021  PACIFIC SOURCE

5661 9/9/2021 HRA VEBA TRUST

5662 9/24/2021 MICHAEL THOMPSON

5663 9/24/2021  SPECIAL DISTRICTS INS.
SERVICE

5664 9/30/2021 ATU LOCAL #757

Date: 10/6/21 03:47:37 PM

k1



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1009 - NW RIDES ACCOUNT
From 9/1/2021 Through 9/30/2021

Docume... Docume... Transaction
Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description
3188 9/2/2021 1,946.30 AAA RIDE ASSIST AUGUST 2021
3189 9/2/2021 703.11 WAVE AUGUST 2021 TELEPHONE
3190 9/2/2021 5,472.30 COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER JULY 2021
3191 9/2/2021 54.87 CENTURYLINK AUGUST 2021 HARD LINE FAX
3192 9/2/2021 210.20 Fred Meyer Customer Charges AUGUST 2021
3193 9/2/2021 500.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC AUGUST 2021 COMPUTER SUPPORT
3194 9/2/2021 4,280.70 COLUMBIA MEDICAL AUGUST 2021
3195 9/2/2021 3,932.40 K & M MEDIVAN AUGUST 2021
3195 9/2/2021 6,304.10 K & M MEDIVAN AUGUST 2021
3196 9/2/2021 225.22 Pacific Office Automation AUGUST 2021 NWR COPIER LEASE
3197 9/2/2021 19,605.75 RYANS TRANSPORTATION AUGUST 2021
SERVICE
3198 9/2/2021 640.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT BUS FARES
3199 9/2/2021 8,548.75 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. 0801.0807
3200 9/2/2021 120.99 CARDMEMBER SERVICE AUGUST 2021
3201 9/9/2021 2,455.84 JANNA SMITH AUGUST 2021
3202 9/9/2021 2,934.56 JOHN REKART JR AUGUST 2021
3203 9/9/2021 434.56 JOY WINKELHAKE AUGUST 2021
3204 9/9/2021 4,492.60 COLUMBIA MEDICAL JULY 2021
3204 9/9/2021 4,250.90 COLUMBIA MEDICAL AUGUST 2021
3205 9/9/2021 4,880.00 K & M MEDIVAN BILLING CORRECTION 0718.0724
3206 9/9/2021 2,756.24 KANDIS LIDAY AUGUST 2021
3207 9/9/2021 307.20 LEANN CHUINARD AUGUST 2021
3208 9/9/2021 8,590.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE AUGUST 2021
3208 9/9/2021 248.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE PHONES NWR
3209 9/9/2021 875.00 MTN RETREAT SECURE AUGUST 2021
TRANSPORT
3210 9/9/2021 95.13 Pacific Office Automation NWR COPIES
3211 9/9/2021 973.12 ROXANNE ANDERSON AUGUST 2021
3212 9/9/2021 3,852.20 SEAN REKART AUGUST 2021
3213 9/9/2021 33,490.68 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. AUGUST PAYROLL AND BENEFITS
3214 9/9/2021 1,486.00 VAL HOLYQAK AUGUST 2021
3215 9/9/2021 3,809.40 WILLIAM NERENBERG AUGUST 2021
3216 ...0/2021 1,168.12 ROXANNE ANDERSON AUGUST 2021
3217 ...4/2021 2,288.45 AAA RIDE ASSIST AUGUST 2021
3217 ..4/2021 2,369.80 AAA RIDE ASSIST AUGUST 2021
3218 ...4/2021 4,489.40 COLUMBIA MEDICAL AUGUST 2021
3219 ..4/2021 5,176.80 K & M MEDIVAN AUGUST 2021
3219 .4/2021 4,446.40 K & M MEDIVAN AUGUST 2021
3219 ..4/2021 4,825.30 K & M MEDIVAN AUGUST 2021
3219 ...4/2021 890.20 K & M MEDIVAN AUGUST 2021
3220 ...4/2021 7,199.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE AUGUST 2021
3220 ...4/2021 6,566.46 MEDIX AMBULANCE AUGUST 2021
3221 ..4/2021 7,417.60 METRO WEST AUGUST 2021
3222 472021 406.25 MTN RETREAT SECURE july 2021
TRANSPORT
3223 42021 19,460.05 RYANS TRANSPORTATION AUGUST 2021
SERVICE
3223 ...4/2021 20,579.55 RYANS TRANSPORTATION AUGUST 2021
SERVICE
3223 ..4/2021 19,399.65 RYANS TRANSPORTATION AUGUST 2021
SERVICE
3224 ..4/2021 952.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT july 2021
3224 ...4/2021 1,277.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT july 2021
3224 472021 2,562.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT july 2021
3224 42021 640.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT AUGUST 2021
3224 .4/2021 1,200.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT july meals

Date: 10/6/21 03:47:56 PM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1009 NWR ACCOUNT

el 2



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1009 - NW RIDES ACCOUNT
From 9/1/2021 Through 9/30/2021

Docume... Docume... Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee

3225 ..4/2021 6,994.50 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST.

3226 ..4/2021 5,709.50 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST.

3227 ...4/2021 11,970.25 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST.

3228 ..4/2021 650.51 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST.

3229 ..4/2021 10,897.50 WAPATO SHORES

3229 ...4/2021 6,483.00 WAPATO SHORES

3230 ..4/2021 2,865.70 WILLAMETTE VALLEY TRANSPORT

3231 ...1/2021 3,009.40 AAA RIDE ASSIST

3232 ..1/2021 10,000.00 ECOLANE USA, INC.

3233 ...1/2021 500.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC

3234 ..1/2021 170.00 JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC

3235 ..1/2021 5,463.50 COLUMBIA MEDICAL

3235 ..1/2021 1,584.80 COLUMBIA MEDICAL

3235 ..1/2021 2,972.90 COLUMBIA MEDICAL

3236 ..1/2021 1,597.40 K & M MEDIVAN

3236 ..1/2021 3,425.10 K & M MEDIVAN

3237 ...1/2021 5,272.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE

3237 ..1/2021 2,259.13 MEDIX AMBULANCE

3237 ..1/2021 2,736.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE

3237 ...1/2021 5,878.90 MEDIX AMBULANCE

3238 ..1/2021 593.75 MTN RETREAT SECURE
TRANSPORT

3239 ..1/2021 165.12 Office Depot Credit Plan

3240 ..1/2021 236.49 Pacific Office Automation

3241 ..1/2021 7,500.95 RYANS TRANSPORTATION
SERVICE

3241 ...1/2021 13,347.70 RYANS TRANSPORTATION
SERVICE

3241 ..1/2021 18,208.20 RYANS TRANSPORTATION
SERVICE

3242 ...1/2021 16,172.75 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST.

3243 ..1/2021 8,830.50 WAPATO SHORES

3243 ...1/2021 8,447.00 WAPATO SHORES

Report Total 405,733.70

Date: 10/6/21 03:47:56 PM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1009 NWR ACCOUNT

Transaction Description

AUGUST 2021
AUGUST 2021
AUGUST 2021
AUGUST 2021 RENT AND UTILITY
AUGUST 2021
AUGUST 2021
AUGUST 2021
AUGUST 2021

NWR ECOLANE ANNUAL SUPPORT
SEPTEMBER 2021
BROKERAGE - LEGAL
AUGUST 2021
AUGUST 2021

SEPT 2021

SEPT 2021

SEPT 2021

AUGUST 2021
AUGUST 2021

SEPT 2021

SEPT 2021

SEPT 2021

SEPTEMBER 2021

SEPTEMBER 2021 COPIER LEASE
AUGUST 2021

SEPT 2021

SEPT 2021

SEPT 2021

AUGUST 2021
SEPT 2021

13



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1011 - Prop. Mgmt. Checking
From 9/1/2021 Through 9/30/2021

Docume... Docume... Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

4417 9/2/2021 1,000.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE AUGUST 2021 janitorial

4418 9/2/2021 425.00 North Coast Lawn AUGUST 2021 LANDSCAPING
4419 9/2/2021 13,155.22 Oregon Department of Transport OTIB LOAN 0061 FACILITY REPAIR
4420 9/2/2021 1,209.93 Tillamook PUD OFFICE AND LOAN

4421 9/9/2021 850.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE window cleaning inside and out
4422 9/9/2021 347.58 TILLAMOOK CITY UTILITIES AUGUST 2021

4423 9/9/2021 171.75 CITY SANITARY SERVICE AUGUST 2021

4424 ...1/2021 580.66 Marie Mills Center, Inc AUGUST 2021

Report Total 17,740.14

Date: 10/6/21 03:48:15 PM

T



FRED MEYER CARD CHARGES

Date Vendor Description of Transaction Amount
Sept Board Packet (Sept Financials)
TABATHA CARD #5
$ »
$ -
$ -
SHANNON WAKEMAN CARD #3
07/16/21 § -
07/28/21 $ -
08/06/21 $ -
08/09/21 $ -
$ -
CATHY BOND CARD #4
08/13/21 NWR - Remote work setup / COVID $ 54.98
08/13/21 NWR - Remote work setup / COVID $ 19.99
$ -
$ -
$ 74.97
CLAYTON NORRBOM CARD # 6
07/26/21 $ -
07/30/21 § -
s -
Grand Total| § 74.97
DATE APPROVAL

15



Date

08/27/21
08/29/21
09/08/21
09/09/21
09/14/21

09/02/21
09/05/21
09/10/21
09/14/21
09/16/21
09/22/21

08/25/21
08/25/21
08/26/21
08/26/21
08/26/21
08/31/21
09/02/21
09/10/21
09/14/21
09/15/21
09/16/21
09/20/21
09/19/21
09/17/21
09/18/21
09/21/21
09722721
09722121
09122121

09/08/21

09/08/21
08/27/21
09/01/21
09/05/21
09/04/21
09/10/21
09/13/21
09/15/21

09/10/21
0o/11/21
09/14/21

APPROVAL

Vendor

Virtual Postmail
Zoom.US

Werner Gourmet Meat
Fred Meyer

Blue Heron

Endicia

Adobe Acropro Subs
Dairy Queen

Fieldprint INC

Werner Gourmet Meat
Iron Mountain

USPS
Amazon

Tillamook Country Outlet

Postabox
Safeway Grocery
Facebook
Rubberstamp Net
Facebook
Facebook
Safeway Grocery
Amazon
Facebook
Facebook
Lindsey's Latte's
Facebook
Facebook
Facebook
Facebook
ULINE

Amazon

Credit

Costco wholesale
Indeed

Amazon

Bath and Body Works
USPS stamps endicia
Hulu

Endicia

LOVE LOVE Teriyaki Il
Costco
Brat Brother's

UMPQUA BANK: CLOSING DATE 09/23/2021
Description of Transaction

DOUG PILANT

Postage
Subscription/Virtual Meeting
Offsite Personnel

Office Supplies

Offsite Personnel

CATHY BOND

NWR Postage

NWR Computer

Offsite Personnel NWR
Background check TCTD
Offsite Personnel NWR
Office Shred

SHANNON WAKEMAN
NWOTA

Office Supply-Monitor
Breakroom Supplies
Postage

Breakroom Supplies
Advertising

Office Supplies
Advertising

DISPUTE

Breakroom Supplies
Subscription
Advertising
Advertising

Employee Appreciation
DISPUTE

Advertising

DISPUTE

Advertising

Office Supplies-Covid

MIKE REED
Office Supllies

TABATHA WELCH
Credit for disputed charge
Office Supplies

Driver recruitment/COVID
Office supplies-NWR
Hand sanitizer-Covid
Postage

Monthly Cable Bill
Postage

CLAYTON NORRBOM
Training lunch

Office Supplies
Training lunch

STATEMENT TRUE UP

ADDITIONAL PAYMENT MADE

Charges total
Grand Total

DATE

Amount

$25.00
$40.00
$40.28
$12.48
$79.85
$197.61

$9.95
$24.99
$19.98
$12.50
$45.80
$103.64
$216.86

$9.55
$455.12
$33.65
$48.38
$59.79
$106.01
$130.17
$116.65
$250.00
$26.67
$12.99
$10.00
$25.00
$20.00
$250.00
$7.56
$400.00
$15.00
$89.79
$2,066.33

$239.00
$239.00

$386.89
$14.99
$260.83
$74.66
$48.49
$100.00
$64.99
$24.99
$202.06

$23.95
$52.47
$41.40
$117.82
$0.00

$3,039.68

$3,039.68

16



UMPQUA BANK

September 2021 Statement
s Open Date: 08/26/2021 Closing Date: 09/23/2021

% Visa® Company Card with Rewards

Page 10f 5

Cardmember Service (: 1-866-552-8855
15

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) BUS 30 ELN R
Activity Summary
Previous Balance + $5,972.71
Payments - $5,972.71cr
Other Credits - $386.89cr
Reward Points Purchases + $3,426.57
Earned This Statement 3,250 Balance Transfers $0.00
Reward Center Balance 24,010 Advances $0.00
as of 09/22/2021 Other Denits St
For details, see your rewards summary. ee= Charged 0.00
Y mary Interest Charged $0.00
New Balance = $3,039.68
Past Due $0.00
Minimum Payment Due $31.00
Credit Line $10,000.00
Available Credit $6,960.32
Days in Billing Period 29
7=t Mail payment coupon Pay online at Pay by phone
Payment Options: with a check \@ myacoountaceess.com ‘: 1-866-552-8855
Please detach and send coupon with check payable to; Cardmember Service CPN 001469460
UMPQUA BANK
Account Number
Payment Due Date 10/22/2021
24-Hour Cardmember Service: 1-866-552-8855 New Balance $3,039.68
Minimum Payment Due $31.00

c « to pay by phone
. to change your address

000032133 01 SP 000638952329530P Y

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

3600 3RD ST STE A
TILLAMOOK OR 97141-2730

L e e e s L

Amount Enclosed $

Cardmember Service

P.O. Box 790408
St. Louis, MO 63179-0408

S IIUU T B LT TR T AT EE AR T T PP

—1.7



UMPQUA BANK

September 2021 Statement 08/26/2021 - 09/23/2021

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460)

Cardmember Service

Page 2 of 5
(: 1-866-552-8855

Rewards Center Activity as of 09/22/2021
Rewards Center Activity* 0
Rewards Center Balance 24,010
*This item includes points redeemed, expired and adjusted.
This Year

Rewards Earned Statement to Date
Points Earned on Net Purchases 2,829 33,326
Gas, Restaurants & Telecom Double Points 421 8,532

Total Earned 3,250 41,858

For rewards program inquiries and redemptions, call 1-888-229

-6864 from 8:00 am to 10:00 pm (CST)

Monday through Friday, 8:00 am to 5:30 pm (CST) Saturday and Sunday. Automated account information is
available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Paying Interest: You have a 24 to 30 day interest-free period for Purchases provided you have paid your
previous balance in full by the Payment Due Date shown on your monthly Account statement. In order to
avoid additional INTEREST CHARGES on Purchases, you must pay your new balance in full by the

Payment Due Date shown on the front of your monthly Account statement.

There is no interest-free period for transactions that post to the Account as Advances or Balance Transfers

except as provided in any Offer Materials. Those transactions are sub

fo the Account until the date they are paid in full.

Speed through checkout while earning rewards with PayPal. Go to the r\{lrobile

etk ©

online. Link your card to PayPal today.

Protection and Purchase Security benefits, coverage is not provided for C‘
losses caused by or resulting from a cyber incident. You can fing 0

additional detail here https://www.chubb.com/us-en/cyberlimitation.htm! . coount

o™

pccoun
e goy L

portation

s
Please note, for the Auto Rental Collison Damage Waiver, Extended Vr\?é?lpanty

pist

0k VA
S

ject to interest from the date they post

auéﬁ!ii,&a your account

Post

Date

08/27
08/30
02/10
09/10
09/15

Trans
Date

08/27
08/28
0e/08
09/09
09/14

Ref# Transaction Description
Purcha

6771 VIRTUALPOSTMAIL.COM 908-235-6245 CA
3812 ZOOM.US 888-799-9666 WWW.ZOOM.US CA
1280 WERNER GOURMET MEAT SN TILLAMOOK
6130 FRED-MEYER #0377  TILLAMOOK OR

1017 BLUE HERON FRENCH CHEE TILLAMOOK
Total for Account

o

OR

OR

Amount
$25.00
$40.00
$40.28
$12.48

$79.85
$197.61

redit Limit $5000

Notation

Post
Date

Trans
Date

Amount

nit $2500

Notation

—13



UMPQUA BANK

September 2021 Statement 08/26/2021 - 09/23/2021 Page 3 0f 5
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmember Service ([ 1-866-552-8855

. [Croditiimi $2500

Gclions BowBeAY .

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
09/03 09/02 7331 ENDICIA 800-576-3279 CA $9.95
09/07 09/05 7275 ADOBE ACROPRO SUBS 408-536-6000 CA $24.99
09/13 09/10 0079 DAIRY QUEEN 17442 GARIBALDI OR $19.98
09/14 09/14 1438 FIELDPRINT INC 888-291-1369 PA $12.50
09/20 09/16 6166 WERNER GOURMET MEAT SN TILLAMOOK OR $45.80
09/23 09/22 1153 IRON MOUNTAIN 800-934-3453 MA $103.64
Total for Account $216.86

$2500

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

0 [ PurchdsesandOtherDebits .
09/13 09/10 4765 LOVE LOVE TERIYAKII SALEM  OR $23.95

09/13 09/11 7561 COSTCO WHSE #1059 WARRENTON OR $52.47
09/15 09/14 8002 SQ *BRAT BROTHERS GERM Tillamock OR $41.40
Total for Account ST $117.82

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

4 ind Other Debi
08/26 08/25 2061 USPS PO 40836802698 TILLAMOCK OR $9.55
08/26 08/25 4452 AMZN Mktp Us*2D2ZM8DK2 Amzn.com/bill WA $455.12
08/27 08/26 0503 TILLAMOCK CNTRY OUTLET BAY CITY OR $33.65
08/27 0826 2621 SQ*POSTABOX TILLAMOOK OR $48.38
08/30 08/26 3241 SAFEWAY #2723 TILLAMOOK OR $59.79
09/01 08/31 3820 FACEBK SEXJM77RGZ2  650-5434800 CA $106.01
09/03 09/02 7542 RUBBERSTAMPS NET 877-321-8369 |A $130.17
09/10 08/10 7540 FACEBK LBL3M7BQG2 650-54343800 CA $116.65
09/15 09/14 7258 FACEBK D9BC377QG2  650-5434800 CA $250.00
09/17 09/15 7096 SAFEWAY #2723 TILLAMOOK OR $26.67
09/17 09/16 0588 Amazon Prime*2G39T23X2 Aman.com/bill WA $12.99
09/20 09/20 86834 FACEBK MQGZVBRAC2 650-5434800 CA $10.00
09/20 09/18 7439 FACEBK LSSDR7KAC2  8650-5434800 CA $25.00
09/20 09/17 4496 SQ*LINDSEY'S LATTES Tillamook OR $20.00
09/20 09/18 7550 FACEBKPVT7677QG2 650-5434800 CA $250.00
09/21 09/21 6757 FACEBK RFPOX6FAC2 650-5434800 CA $7.56
09/22 09/22 7752 FACEBK CWP3A77QG2  650-5434800 CA $400.00
09/22 09/22 7758 FACEBK 55FUXBBACZ  650-5434800 CA $15.00

Continued on Next Page

19



UMPQUA BANK

September 2021 Statement 08/26/2021 - 09/23/2021 Page 4 of 5
v TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmember Service ([ 1-866-552-8855

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
09/22 09/22 7168 ULINE *SHIP SUPPLIES 800-295-5510 W $89.79
Total for Account $2,066.33

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description

Amount

Purchases and Other Debits = ,
09/09 09/08 1334 AMZN Mktp US*2G3D40Z10 Amzn.com/bill WA $238.00
Total for Account =~~~ =7 TTTm nens $239.00

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

O
09/08 0328 PROV FR CR ARLO TECHNOLOGIES | # 4331 $386.89cr
CREDIT ADJUSTMENT
COSTCO WHSE #0692 HILLSBORO OR $14.99
09/02 09/01 6916 INDEED 203-564-2400 CT $260.83
09/07 09/05 6319 AMZN Mktp US*2537Z6ITO Amzn.com/bill VWA $74.66
09/07 09/04 8738 bathbodyworks.com Reynoldsburg OH $48.49
09/13 09/10 5047 USPS STAMPS ENDICIA 888-434-0055 DC $100.00
09/14 09/13 4937 HLU*Hulu 1934589742992 HULU.COM/BILL CA $64.99
09/16 09/15 5538 ENDICIA 800-576-3279 CA $24.99
Total for Account $202.06

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
09/14 09/14 8 PAYMENT THANK YQU $120.99cr
09/14 09/14 8 PAYMENT THANK YOU $5,851.72cr

Total for Account ™ $5,972.71cr

Total Fees Charged in 2021
Total Interest Charged in 2021 $0.00

Confinued on Next Page

—20



Tillamook County Transportation District

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT SEPT 2021
RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE SEP SEP YTD YTD YTD %

2021 2020 FY 21-22 FY 21-22 Change
Dial-A-Ride Service
Tillamook County 672 859 2,342 2,585 -9.4%
NW Rides 535 491 1,397 1,226 13.9%
Dial-A-Ride Total 1,207 1,350 3,739 3,811 -1.9%
Deviated Fixed Route Service
Rt 1: Town Loop 2,631 2,488 8,293 8,184 1.3%
Rt 2: Netarts/Oceanside 402 350 1,536 1,351 13.7%
Rt 3: Manzanita/Cannon Beach 1,402 1,959 5,887 6,453 -8.8%
Rt 4: Lincoln City 472 787 2,726 2,633 3.5%
Local Fixed Rt Total 4,807 5,584 18,442 18,621 -1.0%
Intercity Service
Rt 5: Portland 513 481 1,926 1,522 26.5%
Rt 60X: Salem 287 511 1,810 1,674 8.1%
Rt 70X: Grand Ronde 665 269 1,356 847 60.1%
Inter City Total 1,465 1,261 5,092 4,043 25.9%
Other Services
Tripper Routes 19 41 23 57 -59.6%
Special Bus Operations 82 119 1,125 516 118.0%
Other Services Total 101 160 1,148 573 100.3%
TOTAL ALL SERVICES 7,580 8,355 28,421 27,048 5.1%
ONE-WAY TRIPS BY USER GROUP

Fixed YTD YTD YTD %
USER GROUP Route DAR FY 20-21 | FY 19-20 | Change
General (18 years to 60 years of age) 3,874 193 15,396 14,647 5.1%
Senior/Disabled 2,131 966 11,138 10,527 5.8%
Child/Youth (less than 18 years of age) 526 48 1,887 1,874 0.7%
Total 6,531 1,207 28,421 27,048 5.1%
OTHER RIDER CATEGORIES Fixed YTD YTD YTD %

Route DAR FY 20-21 | FY 19-20 | Change
Ride Connection 7Ol 257 209 23.0%
Tillamook Bay Community College 29| 114 393 -71.0%
NWOTA Visitor Pass 231 [ 693 298|  132.6%
NW Rides £ 552 1,356 1,122 20.9%
Amtrak/Greyhound 120l 401 116]  245.7%

10/15/2021

09-21 RIDERSHIP REPORT .xlsx

21




Tillamook County Transportation District Summer Quarter
FY 2021-2022

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE

Operating Cost
Service Passengers Farebox Cost per
Quarter per Hour Ratio per Hour Passenger
Dial-A-Ride Services
Summer -20 1.5 40.7% 85.48 56.33
Fall - 20 1.5 44 9% 87.54 57.57
Winter - 21 1.5 53.1% 84.22 55.13
Spring - 21 1.5 56.2% 82.13 53.47
Summer -21 1.9 52.0% 82.66 64.36
STANDARD 1.3 65.3% 56.36 45.19
Deviated Fixed Route Services
Summer -20 4.1 4.6% 88.26 22.43
Fall - 20 3.9 9.3% 70.98 11.62
Winter - 21 3.9 5.3% 84.64 21.43
Spring - 21 4.0 5.6% 82.38 20.58
Summer -21 4.3 7.9% 84.80 19.59
STANDARD 7.0 12.4% 64.60 9.29
Intercity Services
Summer -20 1.8 9.8% 96.77 54.35
Fall - 20 1T 8.6% 100.43 58.29
Winter - 21 g 8.7% 97.68 56.02
Spring - 21 1.9 9.3% 95.20 51.19
Summer -21 23 13.1% 96.85 43.03
STANDARD 2.9 31.5% 72.86 24.86
Other Services
Summer -20 2.4 0.2% 77.05 32.18
Fall - 20 2.6 0.7% 77.66 29.76
Winter - 21 2.7 1.5% 72.59 27.05
Spring - 21 3.0 1.2% 71.52 2411
Summer -21 B0 0.1% 76.85 23.53
STANDARD 6.9 10.7% 55.54 8.28
10/15/2021

TCTD MIS Report 2020-21_09.21.xlsx

22



Tillamook County Transportation District Sept 2021
MONTHLY PERFORMANCE
Operating
Service Passengers Farebox Cost
Month per Hour Ratio per Hour
Dial-A-Ride Services
Sep-20 1.5 40.0% 84.28
May-21 1.5 56.2% 82.13
Jul-21 1.6 41.9% 104.27
Aug-21 1.5 50.0% 92.70
Sep-21 1.3 52.0% 82.66
STANDARD 1.3 65.3% 56.36 ]
Deviated Fixed Routes
Sep-20 4.1 5.2% 85.03
May-21 4.0 5.6% 82.38
Jul-21 4.6 8.9% 105.72
Aug-21 4.5 7.4% 93.29
Sep-21 4.3 7.9% 84.80
STANDARD 7.0 12.4% 64.60
Intercity Services
Sep-20 1.8 10.2% 92.66
May-21 1.9 9.3% 94.38
Jul-21 24 11.7% 119.02
Aug-21 2.4 12.8% 106.02
Sep-21 2.3 13.1% 96.85
STANDARD 2.9 31.5% 72.86
Other Services
Sep-20 2.4 0.2% 76.07
May-21 3.0 1.2% 71.52
Jul-21 4.1 0.0% 97.20
Aug-21 34 0.0% 84.47
Sep-21 3.3 1.0% 76.85
| STANDARD 6.9 10.7% 67.00 |

Dial-a-Ride includes Central, North and South Counties Dial-A-Ride Services

Deviated Fixed Routes: 1 Town Loop, 2 Oceanside, 3 Manzanita/Cannon Beach, 4 Lincoln City

Intercity Routes: 5 Portland, 60X Coastal Connector, 70X Salem/Grand Ronde
Other Services: Trippers, Special Bus Operations/PC Free Shuttle

23



L abed %EEC 96.°289 1s0Q J021IQ @ JogeT "abesyiy [eloL
L9'8L L'9 ¥0'0 %S°1Z 06Z 9998 S86°Ly8 |[18L°09L 6ES8Z  [88Y'90S  2LLTSL [LIVIPZ 8ET'LL  S8L6 Lzb'sc  9elzsl seoiAes 0101 (B0
80°0 20’0 700 %10 £E G8'9L 1002 ovl's Se0'l ¥86°LL 188'C L9V 80v LGE N 1e Sedlaleg JaylQ [Bjo L
000 00°0 #0°0 %00 £¢ §8'9L 0692 €v0'S G00't 0L9'ZL 2E8'C 885V vee SPE Szl 0 uonesadQ sng [eoads
L0y FAN " S0°0 %S ¥'E £9'94 9ls 86 0e a2 S5 68 Gl L 154 e sieddu |
EERINEISEE )
B9CL €9°G €00 %LEL £c¢ 5896 gcL'6le  [Zor'oF 6659 /8lL'ZeL 6.8'6F 164'08 1/9C €922 260'S 589’82 Ayoisyuy [ejo L
Lee 9zl €00 %E’E Se Y196 Le'LS 65t'6 GGS') £8.'82 EFPLL 1E9'8L 699 £E5 95e’L LLATL 8puoy puels X0/
L9°8 te'E c0'0 %9'8 Z'c GE°00L LB0'E. 09g'SL Si¥'e SLL'YY 209'02 2.E'ee 210') g8¢8 018°'L SzL'L weles X09
c0ze LeoL £0°0 %¥'€T L'e S0'¥6 96.'78 £r9'SL 0€9'e 689'8r £E821 888'8C 786 206 9z6°} 6¥8'61 puejuod S0
AoTaT]
199 =R 900 %6 L ¢v 0878 60219 [69.°89  cevcl Lol e0re9 ¥80°L0L 2v6 ¥ 092'% Zrrel 16E'82 8|0y pejeinaq B0
¥Z'9 8c¢C €00 %89 L2 1226 098°16 687'LL 706'C £98°05 ¥09°02 9/€'€E 6LL'L 966 9zL'T 2129 A5 ujoaun +0
169 L) S0°0 %08 6'¢c 6198 £81'0EL £¥8've 00F'¥ LLO'LL 0LL've Zsl'ee £59'L 60S'L 188'S zer'ol Ejluezuep €0
€0y Pl 070 %8 8¢ 95°¢8 905'Sh £99'8 885°L zes'le Zev'L 6£0'CL £g. 6§ 9eG’L 96l aplsueasQ/suelsN 0
06°L GL'L 0Lo %z 0L g9 L2 6SE'E6 vLLLL LES'E 25819 96L'0L 21591 LLE'L LLE'L €6¢'8 7956 dooqumol L0
a]noy pajeina(]
G6'Zy PrEe €00 %02S gl 9928 ro'ove  [Sie'sh L6P'8 zeL'srl ¥09°.€ €16°09 112¢ 1162 6ELE z0'szl Hva [eol
cl'LL 92'6. 900 %8°L8 60 96°98 99£'GE L 2LL'Se 0vS'y 825'6L GgG'se LYE' LY 7002 186°) 16€°1L 02L0LL S8pid MN
95'0L L9 €00 %9°€l Ll el’ll 9/2'50L  |ev0'0z LGB'E ¥02'69 620ZL 995°61 el GGE'L Zre'e LOEYL aply-v-lelg
80IAIBS BpIy-Yy-BIg
uny/emnoy
AMM_H_MM (¢) 214 Apisgng oney inoHJad  (g) a1y | (%) sisoD | (§)sison  (g) 1son qumwhwmo wwmmwm_ mwﬂ.__w_m SInoH mmw__ﬂm.%m siBusseq m:cnw.w,mm
jonuaAY abesaay ¢ Bussed xogaleq siBusseq  AunoH e101 10841pu| 10910 Aunoy BBEsIRy AL pied dlA Bk alA -
120zZ/51H/0L Lz0g1des niyL

SOUBLLLIOLIS PUE SOIISIIBIS a)e(]-0)-Jea

1202/0202 Ad [enpy

1914381 uoneuodsuel | Ayunos yoouwejjiL

24



Z ebed

%6 L76'SL S86'/¥8  ¥P0'CES %9l |SSL 58.'6 0£9'6 %L'Ss |eLgt 1zv'sz 8v0'LZ %Ly Z9g'es 9cL'z8lL  vLL'8ZL S80IA8g 0LOL [BjoL
%78 708’8 100722 202’8l %69r [ElLL LGE 6ge %E001L |GLS gL'l €48 %6¢c- |8 L2 o1 $80IAIBS 18YJ0 B0 L
%Vv'SS  |SFP'6 06¥'92 SP0°LL %L'€S |02l e vée %0'8LL |609 GcL'L 918 10/NQ# |0 0 0 uonesadQ sng [efoadg
%SG |9 91§ LSL°L %155~ |8 L Sl %965 |¥E- €C A} %6¢ec- |8~ lé GE siaddli]
EERIIVESFEDN )
%} 6LL'8 8CL'6lc  6OFOLE %0~ |8 €92°C 12T %6'GC  [6r0°L 260'S €r0'Y %8'eE  |25e'L 58982 €ev'Le Ayossyur jeloL
%6°¢C eeh'l WwZ'LS 818'6F %S~ |8 £ES LS %L'09 (609 9ge’} L8 %L'0¢ |v62 LLLTL LLP'L apuoy puels X0.
%6% 848°C L60'E8 €126 %00 |0 8¢8 828 %l8 |9EL oLl ¥i9'L %Z'6L  |0SL°L Sgh'L G/6'S weleg X09
%Z'v gLr'e 96.'%8 8E'L8 %00 |0 €06 206 %892 |¥OF 9¢6'L zes't %¥'Ly  |808'S 67861 LPO'rL puejuod 50
AR
%E°9-  |89L'tve- 602°L9€  9/E'S8E %09~ |82 0%’y ZES'Y %0°L- 641~ [AZ D 1298l %Ly |S.2'8 16E'8¢C 2cl'0g SN0y paxi4 [e207 [Bl0L
%Z'9-  [0LL'9- 098°L6 0/6'L6 %E'L- (8L 966 #20°'L %9'E  |E6 9TL'T £€E9C %6'CE  |GLG°} 2129 vy AN ujoourt 0
%66~ |LLE'VL- €8F'0EL  098'FFL %0k~ |LLL- 6051 6£9'L %88~ |995- 188'S £5¥'9 %ELe  |0E8'L zey'ol 265'8 EJlUBZUEBIN £0
%b'LL-  [298'G- 905°sY ELE°LS %E L~ |69 S¥G 719 %LEL (981 9es'L Lge'L %Sk |999 9612 LpS'L 8plsueadQ/sueleN z0
%¥'e 98L'zZ BSE'EH vLLLE %6'E |S¥ Le' 9Q9L'L %E’L  |60L £62'8 78L'8 %8'8L |SlE'v 295'6 LVE'S dooumoy Lo
SN0y pejeiAeq
%70l |985°2e Zro'ore  950°8Le %S¢l |vee LIB'C 1897 %6’V |2L- BEL'E L18E %¥'ey |E¥8'LE lgo'sel 8L’/ dva [ejol
%9'LL  |BBO'YL 99E'GEL  BLZ'LCL %9 LE (29l 25851 ¥6E'L %6cL (L) L6E°1L 9ze'L %L Ly |59G°2ZE 0z'0LL  6GL'QL S8pid MIN
%88 86v'8 9/2°60L 81296 %9€L (291 Gge'l €6L°L %¥'6- |E¥e- Zre'es 98§’z %G'8S |8LZ'G L0E'VL 620'6 apid-v-|ela
90IAI8S 8pliy-y-eld
8ouaigljiq | sdusisyig 1500 €101 1500 [BI0L 2oualayiq | @ousisylg  SJnoH SinoH | @susiaylq | eoualayig sibusseq  siBussey Q0UBISYI] | SouBIBYI] SNuUBAsY  BnuBARY uny/2inoy

jusoled junowy juaolad junoLuy ERIINETS aoIneg ITERIER] junowy Jusaiad junowy ale4 aled

2eloe Le/0e ¢c/02 Le/0e cel0e Le/oz 2cloe Le/oe

LZ0Z 1dag nuy L

uosuedwo? IeaA=IanQ-IBaA

L20z ¥des niy 1

120z ¥des niy |

120z Jdeg niy1

2Z/1T Ad 0} LZ/0ZAd

JouIsig uonepodsuel ] Ajunon yoowe|jiL

25



%G1 (z65°21) LYP'6L8 ¥r0'2E8 SIS0 [E1OL
8L'e9 $ %00L yoid snid = SISO PEASAD
LS 8 ajey Aunoy yoeo) %e QL (620'1E) £81'09L 91Z'I16L sjsoQ j02uq
%EES PesIanQ sn sng lews %V - (22€'2) 981'905 G98'ELS s)s0)) paseg ApnoH
699 $ 81y AUNoH ueAlUIy %E0¢ 608'GZ cLLES) £96'9Z} sjseD paseg abeajiy
%v'e S1s0Q o241Q snid 140.d PESUIBAQ [EMOY Y%l L= (628'F) LiY'LbE 058’152 abeajy
osy  § siey AunoH [emoy %g'ch sJuLsBylI]  BduUBIBYIg Le/oz 0zi6l uondussag
:uonejnojen eyey Apnoy 0+ SMid snid :uone|Nojes 3w Jad 1509 jusolad  junowly ZZILZ Ad OF 1Z/0ZAd
1s0J uonenoje uonesadQ sng |e1oadg 120z ¥es ybnosy] gl A uosuedwo)
¢ abeq
%9¥E  |G9°L 17’9 9Lt %88 |%0'9 %S’LT %SG %b'E [X1] 6¢ 8e %E0Q  |920 9998 L+°98 S80IA1eS JSUIO [BIOL
%G°19- |¥0°0- 20’0 900 %08~ |%10- %10 %e 0 %P'9E 60 £E e %0'L 840 G§8'9. 10092 $3DIAIBS JBUIO [BJO L
10/AI0# (0070 000 000 iO/NIa# | %00 %0°0 %00 %6 Ly oL e EZ %L1 980 599 66°GL uoneisdQ sng [epads|
%T L6 |95°0 FAS" 190 %6CL |%CT %S %0'E %2 0L- v0- 14" g€ %40~ |¥G°0- €£9°9L 9L'LL s1addu |
§80IAUSS J8UI0
%E9 |EE0 £9'G 0e's %S8Z |%67T %L EL %c 0L %¥'92 S0 £¢ 8L %S |6LF G896 99'26 Ayoisyuy ejo L
%9¥Z- |I¥0- A 191 %F Ll %S0 %EE %8'C %929 ol ST 9t %¥v  |60°7 196 5026 apuoy puelo X0.
%E0L  [LE°D ¥6E L9°€ %LEL %01 %98 %S 'L %1L'8 [Al4] tAr4 0e %6v |89 GE'001 19'G6 wales xX09
%LLL  |8O0°L LE0L €26 %L'SE  |%C9 %¥'EC %ELL %592 0 L'e Ll %et |6LE S0'v6 92'06 Puejlod G0
RyTe]
%Sy |9F0 5L BO'L %905 (%97¢ %6°L %2C'S %¥'S 20 £y (54 %E0-  |[eT0- 08'v8 £0°68 |inoy pejeiAsq [ejoL
%62 |2S5°0 82°¢ 9Ll %82y [(%0E %89 %L¥ %L L1 £0 V4 B4 %L |20°L 1z'z6 ¥Z'Le A3 ujodurT 0
%0'€E  |PP0 L) EE'L %LvE  (%lE %08 %B6°S %81 L0 6€E 8'E %E0 220 67°98 1298 BllUBZUBI €0
%E'SE  |62°0 P L Ll %609 |%8'L %8V %0°€ %182 90 8¢ ZT %e0-  |SL0- 96°e8 LLeg SpIsSUBBIQ/SUEIBN 20
%G'9L (080 SLL 590 %YL %tV %2 0L %6°G %¥' e 20 89 oL %P L- LV LLLL L2'8.L dooumoy Lo
S0y PeTERad
%eZor [9G°01L vy EE 88°2C %66 |%0ZCL %0°2S %00 %8l Al £l Sl %61~ |29°L- 99'Z8 82778 HvdIeoL
%EPZ  [LSSL 9Z'6L SL'E9 %6'9¢  |%¥LL %818 %¥ ' ¥9 %12 00 60 60 %00 200" 96°98 86798 $9pId MIN
%6'v. (29T L9 6¥'E %L'Gr  |%UEY %9El %E'6 %z 0e- L' L a4 %l |2PE- el Ll rioL8 apid-v-1eld
2IUADS IPIY-Y-EI]
HQJusdiad | 4ig unowy ale4 sleq #id uadiad | Jig unouwly oney oney HIg wedled | J1q junowy InoH/ INoH/ A uL0ied [ g unowy sy AINoH ey APNoH unyj/enoy
abelany abesony x0gaJjed x0gale JBusseyd iBussey
cc/oe Le/0z (444 Le/oe 22/0Z Le/og 2e/oz Lz/ioz
120z 1des nuy L Lz0g ¥Wdas niy L leog Was nuyL 120z 1dag nuy L

uosuedwo? asuewWIoMad 81eq O} Jeaj

22/1ZT A4 01 LZ/0ZAL

j013s1g uoneuodsuel] Ajunog yooweji |

26



Tillamook County Transportation District

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT Aug 2021
RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE AUG AUG YTD YTD YTD %

2021 2020 FY 21-22 FY 21-22 Change
Dial-A-Ride Service
Tillamook County 622 845 1,668 1,726 -3.4%
NW Rides 408 356 862 734 17.4%
Dial-A-Ride Total 1,030 1,201 2,530 2,460 2.8%
Deviated Fixed Route Service
Rt 1: Town Loop 2,763 2,890 5,762 5,696 1.2%
Rt 2: Netarts/Oceanside 5 561 1,134 1,001 13.3%
Rt 3: Manzanita/Cannon Beach 2,227 2,262 4.485 4,494 -0.2%
Rt 4: Lincoln City 1,057 914 2,254 1,846 22.1%
Local Fixed Rt Total 6,052 6,627 13,635 13,037 4.6%
Intercity Service
Rt 5: Portland 696 564 1,413 1,041 35.7%
Rt 60X: Salem 759 458 1,523 1,163 31.0%
Rt 70X: Grand Ronde 335 289 691 578 19.6%
Inter City Total 1,790 1,311 3,627 2,782 30.4%
Other Services
Tripper Routes 4 4 4 16 -75.0%
Special Bus Operations 240 200 1,043 397 162.7%
Other Services Total 244 204 1,047 413 153.5%
TOTAL ALL SERVICES 9,116 9,343 20,839 18,692 11.5%
ONE-WAY TRIPS BY USER GROUP

Fixed YTD YTD YTD %
USER GROUP Route DAR FY 20-21 | FY 19-20 | Change
General (18 years to 60 years of age) 4,811 165 11,388 10,242 11.2%
Senior/Disabled 2,639 824 8,066 7,191 12.2%
Child/Youth (less than 18 years of age) 636 41 1,385 1,259 10.0%
Total 8,086 1,030 20,839 18,692 11.5%
OTHER RIDER CATEGORIES Fixed YTD YTD YTD %

Route DAR FY 20-21 | FY 19-20 | Change
Ride Connection 1050 0 187 125 49.6%
Tillamook Bay Community College 47 [ 85 287 -70.4%
NWOTA Visitor Pass 213 [ 462 246 87.8%
NW Rides % 370 804 680 18.2%
Helping Hands Shuttle R 24 44 87 -49.4%
Amtrak/Greyhound 156 = 72 0] #DIV/0!

9/20/2021

08-21 RIDERSHIP REPORT .xlsx

27




Tillamook County Transportation District Aug 2021

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE

Operating
Service Passengers Farebox Cost
Month per Hour Ratio per Hour
Dial-A-Ride Services
Aug-20 1.5 38.5% 84.69
Apr-21 1.5 55.8% 85.14
May-21 1.5 56.2% 82.13
Jul-21 1.6 41.9% 104.27
Aug-21 1.5 50.0% 92.70
STANDARD 1.3 65.3% 56.36 j
Deviated Fixed Routes
Aug-20 4.3 5.6% 85.62
Apr-21 4.0 5.5% 82.55
May-21 4.0 5.6% 82.38
Jul-21 46 8.9% 105.72
Aug-21 4.5 7.4% 93.29
STANDARD 7.0 12.4% 64.60
Intercity Services
Aug-20 1.8 10.3% 93.71
Apr-21 1.8 9.0% 94.30
May-21 1.9 9.3% 94.38
Jul-21 24 11.7% 119.02
Aug-21 24 12.8% 106.02
STANDARD 2.9 31.5% 72.86
Other Services
Aug-20 2.1 0.1% 75.94
Apr-21 2.8 1.5% 71.39
May-21 3.0 1.2% 71.52
Jul-21 4.1 0.0% 97.20
Aug-21 3.4 0.0% 84.47
|  STANDARD 6.9 10.7% 67.00

Dial-a-Ride includes Central, North and South Counties Dial-A-Ride Services

Deviated Fixed Routes: 1 Town Loop, 2 Oceanside, 3 Manzanita/Cannon Beach, 4 Lincoln City
Intercity Routes: 5 Portland, 60X Coastal Connector, 70X Salem/Grand Ronde

Other Services: Trippers, Special Bus Operations/PC Free Shuttle

28



| abed %0°'Le TG8G'zes 1509 19811g ® JogeT “ebesipy B30 L
§5°8L 88°S v0°0 %6l Si'e L9°56 vPSCE9 266°60L $50'02 SLZ'vee €8z'aLL LIETLL vL6'L ZLo'9 Ly8'0z 0€9'2Z1L S82dIAlRg AL1DL ejol
€00 100 ¥0°0 %00 e Ly'v8 [ ZATA 265y 2re ZZ8'LL 898°C 08L'v #5E 0Le L¥0') g SadlAag JaylQ el L
000 000 #0°0 %00 e 8r'v8 0€L'92 L1S'v 8€6 95.'L1 658°2 99L'y LGE 60€ €01 0 uoneltadQ sng |eoadg
0L 00'e S00 %58 se 29¢8 6 9L € G9 [o]% L € L ¥ 8 sJaddu |
EERIVEISPED o)
SG'elL LL°G €00 %8CL 4 20901 £.1'29L 965'LE 6ES'Y ¥ 'c6 06%'LE GE9'YS 208" 0es'L 129°¢ 92.'0¢ Ayosaju eyl
SPE 08t 200 %E'E 6L 2601 0.6'L€ 09+'9 760°L 908'Le 0L9'8 8vS'zL £S5 19€ 169 eve'l 8puoy puels X0
L06 ve'e €00 %€E'8 LT #8'601 L7919 00S'0L 20L'L 6LG6'EE Leg'st 619'22 689 195 €251 680'S wales X09
69'Ee 6L°0L €00 %0°EE £C 96’01 195'29 9€9'0L ere'L €2L'9¢ BGE'EL 891'61 £99 802 eyl 96E 'L puejuod so
Aore|
Le'L ¥9’L S00 %8, Sy 62'€6 LS6'¥8Z |916'6Y G926 6SEGLL LLF'0S o'l L¥S'e G50 GEQ'EL 6ZECe 8IN0Y pailelrs( [e1o
8EL lE¢ €00 %E°L L'e 6L°L0OL glLe'es 9Z8clh S6L°C 0vS Ly 15991 v.12've 158 veL Sz’ LVE'S AND ujodur %0
0gL 28’ S0°0 %92, oy £8°%6 0S€'20L 508'8L zev'e £96'79 6¥L'0Z ¥9€'62 ore'L zEL'L S8t'y £561'8 BHUBZUB £0
vEY 891 €00 %LV e L9°L6 698'/¢ 2€9'9 A vrL'ee ¥GZ'9 vLL'6 1G9 4457 PELL 96.L°L apisuesdQ/suUeleN 20
96’8 cc'h 0L0 %9°0L gL 29'¥8 G6%'99 8r9'LL £8EC LLL'GR 2se'L PLLOL £68 98/ 292'G 6€0°L dooq umo] Lo
Fnoy pajeireq
EE9F fA N €00 %005 Q'L 0426 961651 188'/¢C 60Z'G /85°86 €152 960°0F L0282 LLLTL 2ese G9G'6L dvad [ejoL
92’69 9108 £00 %8'CL 60 £1'96 21676 129'91 920’ 9.2'LS ¥86°LL 802'92 £0e’l 866 298 £60'69 sapid MN
ssvl 429 €00 %E 9L gE £E£'68 ¥82'%9 L92'LL £81'¢ LLE LY 0€EG'6 888'El G506 0el 049t 89’0l apid-y-leig
a0IAIBS epid-v-[elg
Uny/ainoy
A%w_ﬁ_mmx (¢) 214 Apisgng oney JnoH Jad  ($) a1y | ($) siso | (g) sison  (g) 1s0D Amnwmmmywmo M.VMMM mwﬂﬁ_w SINOH mmh_ﬂwh_m siBussed m:hw,w,mw_
[anUBASY abesony ¢ pbussed xogele4 sibusseqd  AunoH el jo811pU| 10810 funesd gl alA pled LA AL alA o
LE0Z/BLIB 120g AInf niyL

92UBLLIOLIB] PUB SOIJSIIR)S 8je(-0}-1Ba A

L202/020Z Ad Ienjoy

1ou3sig uonepodsuel ] Ayunon yoouwej|iL

29



Z 9bed

%S'ZL |L18€°0L PS'ZE9  LGL'Z9S %ET LSk ZLo'e Lo9t'9 %S’ LL  |6¥L'C L¥8'0z 2698l %2 9 9z.'8¢ 0£9'zel  P06eR S8dlaeg LDl IBjoL
%8'7L |6LZLL ¥ez'9e 900'G1L %L°LS  [ELL 0LE 861 %G'ESL [PE9 2v0'L gLy %9'E9- |FL- 8 c saolnag JaylQ [BjoL
%6'LL  |VEPLL 0gL'9¢ 989'%| %865 |9t 60€ 61 %4291 [9P9 Er0'L LBE i0/NIT# |0 0 0 uolesadQ sng [e10adg
%904~ |922 6 oge %Ccl |E- L ¥ %0°'6L- |Z)- 14 alL %9E9 |FL- 8 44 sladdu |
EESIINESPED|TS)
%Sch  |S96°LL €LL'29L  L0Zvvl %90~ |6~ 0ES'L 6ES'L %t 0c |St8 129°¢ 28.'¢ %0'6E |¥L8'S 8¢.'02 ¥LEVL [STSIEIEIGTN
%LEL  |00FY 0.6'2E LLG'EE %00 |0 L9€ 19€ %96l |ELL 169 8.9 %9, |69¢ Al .6 2puoy puelg X0L
%9°LL  |88E'9 1#9'1L9 ¥52'SS %9t |6 195 0458 %0°LE  |09€ fora=a €911 %PEL |€09 680'G 98yt weesg X09
%0°€L  |8LLL 195'29 £8€'GS %00 |0 809 809 %L°GE  |ELE eyl L0'L %ETS |Tv6't 96E 71 ¥5¥'6 pueuod S0
Hu_ogm.:.__
%06 ozr'ee 156'782 1€G'L92 %00 |0 S50 ¥S0'E %9t  [869 GE9'EL LE0'EL %LES [LWL'L 62E'Ce 898571 8lnoyY pexi4 |eD07 |EJOL
%86 105’9 8Lz'el 0L2'99 %00 |0 vel el %\¢¢ [80F [ A ave’lL %09 [800°Z LFE'S €EE'E ANQ ujoour %0
%l'6 2l6'8 0S€'20L  B.LE'86 %00 |0 [A% ZEL'L %<0~ |6- S8¥'r 1% %9°0€ |LLB') €51'8 ore'9 EJiUBZUBW £0
%88 £50'c 688'.¢ L£8'PE %00 |0 j454 1454 %EeEL  |EEL vEL'L LO0'L %05 |009 96.L'L 9611 Spisuead/suUelsN 2o
%6°L 6887 G6%'99 909'L9 %00 |0 982 984 %CL 99 29.'s 969'G %y v |Zgc't 6£0'L 18'¢ doo umo] LD
aIN0Y paleiAnsg
%9CL  |€8L'LL 961651  vI¥' Ll %8¢ |8¥ LI 0.9'L %62 [ 2€8'e 09+'2 %E9r [S8lL'SE G9S'6L 08€'¥S dvda [ejol
%Ee'GZ  |£6L'6L Z2L6'¥6 614'GL %L'SL |SEL 866 298 %V Ll |8CL 298 rEL %6ck |LZei'0Z £/60'69 0L£'8F Sapiy MN
%le- Lib'L- 78279 G69'G9 %6°0L- |88 0z 808 %C€- |96 0.9°L 9gL'L %Z L. |8SP'Y 8901 0L0'9 apid-v-elg
20IMBS Bpiy-v-BlIg
aoualeyig | esualaylg 1500 €101 1507 (€10 aoualayiq | soustayig SINOH SINoOH 2ouslayiq | souaiaylqg sibusseq siBussey Qoualayiq | @sualalig snuaAdy  BNUSASY uny/einoy

juadlad junoLy Jusaisd unowy ELIVELS RIS jusolad junoLuy juadlad junowy ale ale

2eioe Le/e ¢cioc Le/oe 2cloe L2/0e 2c/0e Le/oe

10z By niy L 120z Bny iy 120z Bny nuyL 120z Bny nuy L

uosuedwon JIEaA-IBAQ-IEBA

CZ/LT A4 0} LZ/OZTAd

1o1s1q uonepodsuel | Ayunog yoouwe||i L

30



%06 €EE°05 06¢'Cl9 LS1'295 Sis00 [B10L
0499 $ %0°0L yo.id snid - SIS0D pEIyan)
£€9°09 $ ajey ApnoH yaeo)d FYAAR (g10'91) 266'601 S00'92 1 $1500 108410
%0°LE peayIaAQ snid sng |lews Yol kL 9Ey'8E SIZ'v8E 6.4'GYE s1s0) paseg ApnoH
60°0S $ ajey ApnoH ueAlUuIy %6'0€ 0L6'LE £8C'8LL £LE'06 5150 paseq abeajpy
%HCTE §1s0Q 843 snid yold peaylang [enoy %¥'e oLo'y LLETLL £9€'891 abeajy
g8y % ajey AunoH |enjay %8Gy 8ouslefig  sousisyig L12/oz 02161 uonduasaq
:uonenojen ajey AUNoH %0L  snid snjd :uoie|nojed ajiw Jad 3so) jusdiad  junowy ZZILE Ad O} LTIOTAS
1509 uone|nNoje) uoljesadQ sng |eloadsg Lz0z bny ybnoayl qiA uosiedwo)
¢ ebey
%L’LE |0F'L 88'S B¥'¥ %66 |%S't %6l %6l %68 €0 43 6 %66 598 19'G6 1048 S80IABS 18Ul0 [EJ0L
%L'G8-  |S0°0- 100 S0°0 %Z'6L-  |%L0- %00 %10 %PL9 £l v'e x4 %eC'LL  |FS8 Ly'v8 ¥6'SL $80IAJBS J8aUJO [BJOL
i0/AIQ#  |00°0 000 000 i0/NIO#  |%0°0 %00 %00 %¥ ¥9 £l ¥'E Le %E’LL 658 8r've 68'GL uoneladQ sng [e1ads
%SGy €90 oo'e 8e’L %G'ET  |%9'L %G8 %69 %l 0L~ ¥ 0- S'e 6¢ %6 09t 29'¢8 c0'8L ssaddu |
§80IMIS 18UI0
%99 |SE0 LL'S 9e's %9EE  |%¥T %8cl %E0l %e’LE 9’0 e Rt %LEL [LECL 2090k LLE6 Aupseiu [ejoL
%L'9 Lo 08l 69°L %BCL  |%¥0 %E'E %B6'C %961 €0 671 9L %lEL  |BLCL ¥Z'50L S0'€6 8puoy puels) XoL
%PEL- |29°0- ¥eE 98't %Ll %l'0 %E'8 %18 %\L'EE L0 Le 0¢ %PEL |LBCL ¥8'601 L8'96 wsleg X09
%eel L 6L°0L 806 %BYE |%6'S %0°€e %lLL %L'SE 90 £7¢ Ll %0°EL  |18°LL 96201 GL°L6 puejlod S0
Aaie]
%P9 |25°0 ¥9'L [45" %S'0F | %EC %8'L %9'S %9v A Sy 1Y %68 994 626 2998 8|noy pajelraq [ejoL
%eLE  |95°0 LE2 1871 %0'9F [%ET %E’L %0°'S %l g¢ 90 L' 9¢ %86 |66°8 6L°L0L 6126 AND ujedur 0
%60 |EVO 48 6E°1 %L6L  |%TL %9 L %E'9 %20~ 00 o 0y %l'6 |E6°L 18°%6 ¥6'98 BHUBZUBW £0
%9'¢E  |6€°0 8571 BL°L %LBE  |%EL %l'¥ %¥'E %EEL £0 Le v'e %88 |BE'L L9°L6 £€2¥8 SPpISUERDQ/SHEIBN 20
%E'e8  |SS°0 ez’ 190 %B60L |%FY %901 %29 %Lt Lo €L £l %6'L (029 29'v8 ov'8L dooumol L0
gnoy pafeinaq
%L'er |2E6 cr'Le LLee %00E  [%S'LL %0'05 %5°8¢ %1 0 00 S gl %56 o8 0L26 69'%8 dvadieloL
%9l |9Z'FL 91°08 06°59 %0¥L (%68 %8CL %6'E9 %S’} 00 60 60 EC: B AW A €1'56 18,8 S9pRY MN
%008 |6LC 129 8F'E %08L [%l'L %E'9L %L°6 %98 20 £z L'e %86 |86°L ££'68 9e’L8 apId-v-elg
90IJBS IPIY-v-IEld
17 Wedlad | g Junowy 8l R HQua0ed [ gigunowy  oney oney | 4igQIusdiad | Jig unouly  InoH; INOH/ | i3 W@diad | MG JUnoWy  ajey APNOH  e1ey ApnoH unyjenoy
abesany abeisany xogaJe4 Xx0qated Jbussedq JBussed
ze/oe L2/0g 2e/0e Le/0c ¢z/oz 1Le/0c ¢eloe Lg/0e
L20g By nuyL 120g Bny niy L 120z Bny nuy L 120Z By nuyL

uosledwon adouBWIOLR 3leq 0} JBaA

€2/12T Ad 01 L2/0ZAd

jJousiq uonepodsuel) AJunos) yoowe||iL

31



NWCONNECTOR

Coordinating Committee - Meeting
October 8,2021
10:00 am—12:00 pm

Join Zoom Meeting:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87 552290259

Call In: 1 253 215 8782
Meeting ID: 875 5229 0259

Agenda

10:00— ) Doug Pilant
10:05a 1. Introductions. Welcome to guests. oug Pilan

2. Consent Calendar (Action ltems)
10:05— %+ September 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes (Attached) Doug Pilant/All
10:25a 4 September 2021 Financial Report

+ Ridership Tracking

3. NWOTA Standing Items Juliet Eldred

ig;ga_ 4 Marketing Doug Pilant/All
’ %  Trillium TSP Discussion
10:30— ;
11:15a 4.  Micortransit & Driver Shortage Doug Pilant
11:15— o Al
11:30a 5. Sanitation Grant Update
11:30— _
12:00p 6. Other Business and Member Updates All
Attachments:

September 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes
Ridership/Passenger Mile Tracking

NWOTA meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with
disabilities. If a sign language interpreter is needed, please call Sarah Lu Heath at 971.328.2877 at
least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

Www.nwconnector.org

dim

Benton (ounty

TRANSPORTATION

SUNSET EMPIRE
TRANSPORTATION

DISTRICT




NWOTA
September 10, 2021

Introductions
Attending: Arla Miller, Jeff Hazen, Caroline Crisp, Shannon Wakeman, Aaron Antrim, John Dreezen, Brad
Dillingham, Juliet Eldred

Consent Calendar: John moves to approve, Brad seconds, motion passes.

NWOTA Standing ltems:

Marketing: ‘Car Free’ ride campaign going through December. Page likes continue upward trend. Juliet
would like to know if we need to change messaging due to COVID as its typically targeted at visitors. Jeff
says we have capacity on running buses to accept more riders. However, we don’t want a full-fledged
campaign as the coast is burnt out on tourists. Talking about essential workers would be good. Shannon
says in Tillamook a campaign with more local appeal would be good, some riders feel like not enough is
being done to support transit users. John says local dial a ride is going very well; also one driver away
from being in trouble with keeping routes full. Brad feels similarly and brings up that OSU starts in two
weeks which could increase ridership. Conversation decided that topics such as Germ Fogger, essential
workers (driver profiles), and safety of public of transit. Jeff Hazen volunteered an employee to create a
video about safety. Shannon has worked on driver profiles, using testimonials and photos. Sarah Lu
offered to help get job openings on the ‘News’ section of the NW Connector website so Juliet can find
and promote.

Trillium Update — Updates on OTP as a tool: Trillium does not have an estimate on costs going down in
the next 6-9 months. They are working in at least one other state for larger scale OTP projects. Client in
CA also using OTP with hosting and Trillium is looking at bulk prices with this group. A company in
Eurpose that they were hoping to work with for a discounted rate has gone bankrupt, the company that
acquired their assets may ramp the program back up but Trillium has not yet reached out. Trillium is still
working on making this most affordable. They meet with ODOT monthly and would like to expand OTP
to the rest of the state with ODOTSs help. ITS4US is a five-year, three-state, plan book and pay option
through trip planner, and that group could benefit from looking at we're doing with OTP. At this time,
we can expect that the rate will be lower, but we don’t know how much lower. We should have a better
idea by January 2022.

Sarah Lu asked about general updates from Trillium. Chris says moving forward we’re looking at demand
response into the integrated map so folks can see where the services operate. Visual updates will be
coming soon.

John asks about grant funding to continue to pay for OTP. Jeff thinks more Federal funding is coming and
might be an opportunity. Arla believes that ARPA funds at ODOT will be discretionary and related to
COVID, grants will be available and awarded by July 2022. FTA funding is only available if ARPA funds
could not be used. Jeff ponders how we can use these funds to address our biggest problem: driver
shortages, maybe hiring bonuses? Might use funds for demand response related to mobility
management. SEDT is exploring expanding demand response. Columbia’s demand response is going
well, with 65 trips today, significantly higher than every before and higher than Tillamook. Previously 45

33



would have been a good day in Columbia County and is seeing lots of folks using it to go to work or
medical care. Commuter traffic is still slow as Portland remains working from home. Brad/Benton is
seeing steadily increasing ridership, but not to where it was. Demand response was overhauled at the
beginning of 2021.

For micro-transit, drivers may be easier to find as they don’t need CDLs. Cottage Grove mohility on
demand may be a program we could learn from, although there is concerned about moving too far
towards a taxi service. No-shows are also major concern.

Calculating Average Passenger Miles: SETD to have updated assumptions by November.

Service Cut Coordination: without Doug and specific examples we were unable to complete
conversation. We'll keep this agenda item for next month.

Sanitation Grant Update: Distilled water is a problem. John ordered a 55 gallon drum of solution and
now waiting on water. Chem World provided the distilled water.

Brad connect with Olivia at Germ Fogger; equipment was shipped but refused delivery, which will be
resent.

Arla/ODOT has extended the sanitation grant deadline to December 31, 2021 to ensure equipment and
solution can be acquired.

Other Business and Member Updates:

John/Columbia Co: Settling into using EcoLane and it is going well despite some glitches, some related to
driver training and embracing new technology. Ridership is slowly picking up but is probably still at 50%
of ‘normal’. Catalytic converter theft is becoming an issue and they’re looking at new security methods.

Brad/Benton Co: Looking for drivers; OSU starts in two weeks doubling the population of Corvallis,
working on signage to show students what stops will take them to campus. Starting in October they
want to create an “Outreach October” campaign for students and others to be aware of transit
opportunities; ideally this will be an annual campaign. Surveys will be a major component as well.
Working with Amtrak, nearly have interline agreement complete. Request for information on a new
dispatch software is out, and looking for vendors for cameras.

Shannon/Tillamook Co: We have four drivers starting training and one more interviewing. We have a
RFP out for a coordinated human services plan. Oct 1 TCTB will implement new fare policy on fixed
routes. In November they hope to launch ‘token transit” using app and will host a marketing campaign
for that.

Jeff/Clatsop Co: One new driver coming on, who used to be a trainer with SETD. Ops assistant left and
the new position will be Transportation Support Specialist. Discussed mandatory vaccinations with their
board but did not ask for decisions. SETD surveyed employees about vaccination status and there were
some folks totally against taking vaccinations.

Refurbished buses are on the road and going well, nice buses.

Prison driver training idea moving forward with an October meeting of several transit agencies, DMV,
and others. Senator Johnson is supportive of the idea. Also meeting with sheriff and parole directors to
illuminate individuals that would be a good fit. National conversation is taking place next week, co-

34



hosted by Julia Castillo from lowa. There are two types of simulators for training; costing between $160-
310k.

Arla/ODOT: We're seeing an uptick in driver deaths due to COVID across the state. Vehicle purchases are
being stymied by factories shutting down, increased prices, and delivery issues. We cannot use previous
prices for vehicle purchase estimates. Agreements can be amended for timelines, as these issues are
now common. Offered a thank-you to the hard work agencies are doing.

35



O
™

1 :98eq aoueLEA %9 198png QLA/M poday o Aipuow N TELYP0 12/3/01 2eg
%L0°0 61°E0LFS6 00'PrE‘SS6 18°0t9 000 000 saseqong [ende) o,
%¥FE0 6I6S1°L8I 00°008°L81 18°0¥9 000 000 0509 syaloid rende) O
%000 00°FS°LOL 00'tHSLIL 000 000 000 0+09 s1[oyg/eTeudig doyg sng
saseqoIng [ende)
KepnQ (enden
%81°89 00°00¢°1 00°00¥°F 00°000°€ 000 0070 SIBJSuRI] [RI0],
%000 00°00%°1 00°00t°1 000 000 000 0816 feg] puny Surpuy pajendoiddenp
%00°001 000 00°000°¢ 00°000°€ 000 000 0E16 pun,j [B130a5) 0 JAJsueL],
muu%mﬂ.m.mﬁ
%Il 0096881 00°009°0Z1 00 F0L'T EEERRCT 000 SAOIAIDG pue S[ELIAEN [RI0],
%000 000 000 000 00°05Z°9 0070 I61€ u3sa(q-ay SNsqam
%00°0 00°000°0t 00°000°0F 000 ECEEE'E 000 0615 Funayrepy
%0070 00°0S£°0S 00°0S£°0S 000 £8°S61°Y 000 7018 JJUBUANUIBA] NISQIA,
%0070 ©00°000°5T 00°000°5Z 000 L9999°] 000 1018 uoddng aAnensmunpy
%SHTE 00°9%5°€ 00°0SZ°S 00°v0L T 0S'LEY 00'0 0015 SITAIDG [BUOISSAOL]
SIAIAG pUR S[BLIDIBIA
sasuadxy
%TTT (00°PFE€950°1) 00°FFE080°1 00°000%C 000 000 §30IN0SAY [e10],
%0070 (00°5£0°819) 00°S£0°819 000 0070 00°0 816¥ pun JILS WOy IJsuer],
%CI'S (00'881°722) 00°881°%€C 00°000°T1 00°0 000 116¥ punyj [BISUSD) WIOX] JYSURI],
%SE'L (oo'1z1°18T) 00121691 00°000°ZT 000 000 STy o1 “Jue) duNed VIOMN
%00°0 (00°000°59) 00°000°59 000 000 000 00S€ [ende) Funpop
$32JN0SAY
%ST QdUBLIEA 103png [E10], [enoy wpipng pouag  [Emoy pouag
1°8png e10L, Je2 X JUOLINY) uann) oLy

120Z/0€/6 USNOIY L, [20T/1/6 WoI]
BI[V MSueL], U0F21(Q) ISOMILION - §()
JUDWIDIR)S [RIOUBUL]
PLYSI uonejlodsue. ], £yunoy) yoowepry,



7 8eq UBLEA % 198png qLA/M Boday qod Ajyiuopn
%610 61°666FL0' 00'FFE080°1 I8 #PES £E'ERRCI 00°0
LU0 6T t0L P50 00PFETSH 130F9 000 000
%57 dUBLIEA 128png |10, [enoYy 128pngf pouag [EMIY poLd
198png E10], IBd & JU21IN)) LM juaLn)

120T/0€/6 SN0 L, 1207/1/6 WO1g
B[V Jsuel] uoSa1Q) ISaMYIION - 80
JUSWR)ES [RIOURTL]
PLOSIA =§3..S_%=E,H £uno) yooweyIy,

Wd LTELEV0 12/4/01 e

sasuadxF [B1o],
KepnQ ede) reio],

37



NW Connector Facebook Metrics - Sept/October 2021

Page Followers

Page Followers as of 10/06/21: 1,382

Page Followers as of 9/09/21: 1,296

Page Followers as of 7/26/21: 1,063

Page Followers as of 6/17/21: 950

Page followers as of 5/21/21: 733

Page Followers as of 4.15.21: 395

Page followers as of 3.17.21: 348

Page followers as of 2.17.21 (before paid promotion): 305

| Total Page Followers: 1,382

14K

[ Tolal Page Followers

Recent Posts
September 14: SETD is hiring bus drivers!

October 6: TCTD is hiring bus drivers!

# Create Post

BENCHMARK
Compare your average
performance over time_

Total Page Foltcmgrsm

38



Ad #1: Promoting Facebook Page

Ran for 21 days (9/9 - 9/30/21) at $20/day.

ns NW Connector e
fwacrm  Soonsored - @

Looking for a change of scenery? Look no
further.

NW Connector's five member agencies are
serving destinations all across Northwest
Qregon to support you on your summer
adventure!

Plan a car-free getaway today at
nwconnector.org

NW Connector [[5
The NW Connector is a coordinated regional ...

Performance
$419.99 spent over 21 days.
Page Likes 0 Reach § 6,685
Cost Per Page o
88 Like $4'71
Activity

171

o b
:

Link Clicks
28

Post Reactions
76

Post Shares
B

Post Saves

|2

See Less ~

Audience

This ad reached 6,685 people in your audience.

People Placements Locations

63.6% Women 36.2% Men
0%

Audience Details A

Location - Living In

United States: Astoria (+25 mi), Corvallis (+25 mi), Lincoln City (+25
mi), Newport (+25 mi), Portland (+50 mi), Salem (+25 mi), Tillamook
(+25 mi) Oregon

Excluded Connections

Exclude people who like NW Connector.

Age

18 - 65+

People Who Match

Interests: Outdoors, transit, Bus, Free public transport, Public
transport or Trekking, Hiking. Walking....

Edit Audience

39



Current Ad #2: Promoting NW Connector Website

$5/day Maximum budget - Continuous (re-upped from 9/9/21 through December)

NW Connector

1A Sponsored - @

The NW Connector's five transit agencies provide safe, socially-

distanced service to destinations across Northwest Oregon, including

Portland, Tillamook. Astoria, Newport, Corvallis, and more!

Visit our website to plan your car-free coastal adventure today!

A Car-Free Adventure Learn More

i Like

Performance
$134.41 spent over 28 days.

Link Clicks

354

Activity

Post Engagement
Link Clicks

Post Reactions

Post Comments

|4

() Comment

0 Reach

Cost Per Link
Click

354

A Day at the Beach

A Share

11,353

9%0.38

467

[

See Less ~

Audience
This ad reached 11,353 people in your audience.

People Placements Locations

60.0% Wemen 40.0% Men
20%

15%

0%

. Hm L]
13-17 13-24 25-34 35-44 45-34 55-34 5+

Audience Details A

Location - Uving In

United States: Astoria (+25 mi), Corvallis (+25 mi), Lincoln City (+25
mi), Newpaort (+25 mi), Portland (+50 mi), Salem (+25 mi), Tillamook
(+25 mi) Oregon

Age

18- 65+

Peopie Who Match
Interests: Qutdoors, transit, Bus, Free public transport, Public
transport or Trekking, Hiking, Walking....

Edit Audience

40



Additional Metrics

Page Summary Last 28 days * Export Data §

Resulls from Sep 8, 2021 - Oct 5, 2021
Note: Does not include today's data. Insights activity is reported in the Pacific time zone. Ads aclivity is reported in the B Organic [ Paid
time zone of your ad account

Actions on Page i Page Views i Page Likes i
September & - Oclober 5 September § - October 5 Seplember & - October 5
s ., 2
s Total Page Views * 31% Page Likes v49%
W RN
We have insufficient data to show for the /\/\M E/\/\/\A/\\"/\\
selecled time period.
S 7\ >

Post Reach i Story Reach i Recommendations #
September 8 - October 5 Seplember 8§ - October 5 September 8 - Oclober 5

Get Story Insights

1 73004 See stals on how your Page's recent va

T
People Reached 4 83% stories have performed. g:gg

We have insufficient data to show for the

selecled lime period

Post Engagement i Videos i Page Followers i
September & - Oclober 5 Seplember 8 - Oclober 5 September 8 - Oclober 5

1,053 1 95

Post Engagemen! 4 27% 3-5econd Video Views v 80% Page Followers v 47%

AT MAMWN A

41



Tillamook County Transportation District
TAC Applicant Review Committee
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 — 5:30PM
Meeting Minutes

1. Call to Order: Administrative Assistant Shannon Wakeman called the rﬁrégti'hg to
order at 5:30pm.

2. Introductions:
Linda Adler, Committee Member
Judy Riggs, Committee Member
James Huffman, Committee Member
Shannon Wakeman, TCTD Staff
Doug Pilant, TCTD General Manager
Elizabeth Rosso, General Counsel
Mary McGuinness, citizen from Rockaway Beach
Chris Kell, citizen from Tillamook
Jackie Edwards, citizen from Garibaldi
Larry Stevens, citizen from Tillamook
Nancy Briggie-Olson, citizen from South County
Arla Miller, representing ODOT
Joe Warren, representing the Tillamook Headlight Herald
Steve Billings (joined late, no introduction)

3. Staff review and Staff recommendations
General Manager Pilant provided background information on the formation of the
Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC) and an explanation of the bylaws and state
requirements.
Administrative Assistant Wakeman reviewed the staff memo to the Board, issued in
the August board meeting packet and included in this meeting packet. The staff
recommendations are to appoint Ron Rush to a 3-year term; Ross Tomlin to a 3-year
term; Carol McAndrew to a 3-year term; and Brooke Wyntergreen to complete an
unexpired 1-year term for Stacie Zuercher.

4. Discussion of Applicants
The Committee members discussed each applicant.

5. Motion for Committee Recommendations for TAC Appointments
AA Wakeman asked for a motion from the committee. Mr. Huffman said that wasn’t
necessary. AA Wakeman explained that a motion was necessary to take the
committee’s recommendation to the Board.

Mr. Adler made the motion to recommend Mr. Rush, Mr. Tomlin, and Mrs. McGinnis
for three-year terms and Mrs. Ferguson for a one-year term to the Board of Directors
at the September meeting. Mr. Huffman seconded the motion. Mr. Huffman and Mrs.
Adler voted in favor. Mrs. Riggs voted opposed. Motion carries.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’'s exact words.

1
42



TAC Review Committee 9/14/2021

6. Staff Comments/ Concerns

GM Pilant said he would like to echo what AA Wakeman had said earlier, that the
District is grateful to have received so many quality applications. He said that the
District had specific objectives they were trying to achieve when putting forth the staff
recommendations, and that this is the first time in his 9-year tenure at the District that
the Board has taken an interest in committee selection, so he also appreciates that
too.

Administrative Assistant Wakeman had nothing further to add.

7. Committee Member Comments/ Concerns
Mrs. Adler stated that she had nothing to add.
Mr. Huffman thanked everyone who showed up to the meeting and those who applied.
He expressed that it was great for the Board to be involved in the selection process
and that he expects it will be less laborious in the future. He thanked Mrs. Rosso for
attending and said having an attorney present with both staff and the Board is great.
Mrs. Adler thanked everyone for attending.
Mrs. Riggs thanked those who applied. She said she understands people are very
busy and people can't always be present so she appreciates those who were present
for the meeting. She also thanked staff for doing such a great job, Mrs. Rosso for
sitting in and providing clarifications, and Mrs. Miller from ODOT for attending.

8. Public and Guest Comment
Ms. Miller expressed that it was disappointing to see so much in-fighting between
board members and hopes the future will see the Board working together better.
Mr. Rush thanked the District for all the good work they do under GM Pilant's
leadership. He stated that running a public agency is never easy, or running any
agency for that matter, but that we should have pride in what the District does. He said
he is looking forward to continuing to serve on the committee.
Mr. Stevens said it was very interesting to sit in on the meeting and appreciated the
exchanges. He said he thinks we are very fortunate to have a Transportation District
in Tillamook County that is trying to reach those who really need the help.
Mrs. Kell thanked everyone for their work and said the District has a great General
Manager, and that as a TAC member she is excited to have the appointments finalized
at the Board meeting next week so we will all know who the committee is.
Mrs. Edwards thanked those who participated in the meeting, and thanked Mrs. Miller
for her thoughtful and straightforward comments. She expressed that we have a good
District and she hopes it continues that way.

9. Adjournment: Administrative Assistant VWakeman adjourned the meeting at 7:01pm.

These minutes approved this 23 day of September, 2021.

ATTEST:
Mary Johnson, Acting Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager
These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation

marks report a speaker's exact words.

2
43



Regular Meeting 9/23/2021
Tillamook County Transportation District
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting
Thursday, September 23, 2021 — 6:00PM
Transportation Building
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR
Meeting Minutes

1. Call to Order: Board Chair James Huffman called the meeting to order at BI:OOth.
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call:
Present
TCTD Board of Directors
Jim Huffman, Board Chair (zoom)
Mary Johnson, Vice Chair (zoom)
Gary Hanenkrat, Treasurer (zoom)
Linda Adler, Secretary (zoom)
Melissa Carlson-Swanson, Director (zoom)
Judy Riggs, Director (zoom)
Marty Holm, Director (zoom)

TCTD Staff

Doug Pilant, General Manager

Tabatha Welch, Finance Supervisor

Cathy Bond, NW Rides Brokerage Manager
Shannon Wakeman, Admin Assistant/ Board Clerk
Mike Reed, Operations Superintendent

Guest

Steve Shropshire, general counsel from Jordan-Ramis

Peter Hicks, general counsel from Jordan-Ramis

Chris Kell, citizen from Tillamook

Jackie Edwards, citizen from Garibaldi

Arla Miller, representing ODOT

Joe Warren, representing Tillamook Headlight Herald

Michele Brandley, Port of Tillamook Bay, SDAO Board of Directors
Nancy Burgi-Oleson

Ron Rush, Marie Mills Center

Kathy Kleczek, NW Transportation Options

Jeff Hazen, SETD Executive Director, TCTD TAC Member

Allen Marcum, citizen

Marsha Hoskins, ODOT Public Transportation Division Policy and
Implementation Manager

Debbie Boothe-Schmidt, SETD Board of Commissioners

Paul Lewicki, SETD Chief Operating Officer

Lisa Greiner, citizen

Melonie Ferguson, citizen from Cloverdale

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker's exact words.

1
44



Regular Meeting 9/23/2021
4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: None.

5. Public & Guest Comments:

a. Allen Marcum: Mr. Marcum expressed his frustrations that the revised service
schedule has left many unmet needs for residents of Tillamook County, and
that the reduced office staff is August made it difficult to get questions answered
by phone. Mr. Marcum read the mission and vision statements of the District
and stated that he does not feel the District is living up to those standards.

b. Jeff Hazen: Mr. Hazen introduced himself as the Executive Director of Sunset
Empire Transportation District and a member of TCTD's TAC. He stated that
he is attending the meeting to observe the TAC appointments. He expressed
his appreciation for the mentorship of GM Pilant and the collaboration of the
regional transportation system. He thanked the District for making the meeting
accessible via Zoom and encouraged the District to adopt the use of Facebook
live.

c. Marsha Hoskins: Mrs. Hoskins introduced herself as the ODOT Public
Transportation Division of Policy and Implementation Manager.

d. Chris Kell: Mrs. Kell extended a shoutout to Administrative Assistant Wakeman
for the excellent TAC Review Committee meeting minutes and expressed her
belief that “you can count on Shannon and Doug to get the facts straight”.

6. Executive Session: The Board and the General Manager went into Executive Session
at approximately 6:18pm for the purpose of consulting with Legal Counsel, as
authorized under ORS 192.660(2)(h). Members of the News Media were permitted to
attend but are unable to report on anything that was discussed in the Executive
Session that is protected under this statute.

Following Executive Session, Director Huffman removed himself from Chair for personal
reasons. Vice Chair Mary Johnson then took over as Acting Board Chairperson.

Director Riggs made a motion to conduct an investigation into a personnel matter and to
appoint Director Johnson as the liaison. Director Huffman seconded.

In favor: Director Riggs, Director Huffman, Director Holm Director Johnson,

Director Carlson-Swanson, Director Adler, Director Hanenkrat,

Opposed: None

Motion passed

Attorney Steve Shropshire asked the General Manager if he wished or general counsel
to remain present. GM Pilant responded yes.

REPORTS

7. Financial Report: Finance Supervisor Tabatha Welch reviewed the TCTD year-to-date
financial reports through August 2021.
Director Hanenkrat asked about 4 charges on Administrative Assistant Wakeman'’s
credit card. AA Wakeman clarified these were for Tillamook County Fair admission
passes and parking passes for volunteers. Dir. Hanenkrat asked about a charge for
“Covid Tests” from Walgreens on Finance Supervisor Welch’s card. FS Welch clarified

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

2
45



Regular Meeting 9/23/2021
that tests were not available in Tillamook when they were needed and that she had
driven to Lincoln City to purchase the test kits.

8. Service Measure Performance Report: GM Pilant reported the July 2021 service
measure performance report were included this month’s board agenda packet and the
August performance measure report would be included in the October 2021 board
packet.

9. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: GM Pilant reported that he was unable to attend
meeting and explained the previous two months NWOTA meeting packets were
included in the Board’s meeting packet.

10.Planning & Development:

A. Champion Park Apartments: GM Pilant explained that the project is in the
review process at the County. Due to supply chain shortages, he expects
the shelter to arrive in January or February of 2022.

B. Coastliner Route 5 Service Plan: GM Pilant reported that the kickoff meeting
for expanding Route 5 occurred on September 16 and was attended by
regional partners and stakeholders from Washington County, Ride
Connection and Amtrak.

C. RFP for Coordinated Human Services Plan: GM Pilant reported the RFP
has been distributed potential consultants and hopes to wrap up the
selection process next month.

D. Token Transit: GM Pilant reported that staff attended a demonstration
presentation to learn more about automated payment options available
through Token Transit.

11.Grant Funding: No Report

12. Facility/Property Management:

a. Transit Center. GM Pilant reported the Downtown Transit Center property
transaction has been completed. He said the process to select an architect to
complete the design for the Transit Center’'s office renovation has also been
completed and is working with legal counsel to prepare a service agreement
that will be ready for Board approval in October.

b. Propane Facility: GM Pilant explained that the project is still in the county
approval process.

13.NW Ride Brokerage: NW Rides Brokerage Manager Bond explained that the updated
delegate agreement is under the legal review process and should be ready for Board
approval in November or December. 3/5 of the Brokerage staff is working from home
due to COVID protocols, which has been made possible by the Ecolane software.

Director Adler asked how many total employees the District has. FS Welch answered
49,

14.Miscellaneous: None

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

3
46



Regular Meeting 9/23/2021
CONSENT CALENDAR
15. Motion to Approve the Minutes of August 19, 2021 Regular Board Meeting
16. Motion to approve the Minutes of September 23, 2021 TAC Review Committee
Minutes
17.Motion to Accept the TCTD August 2021 Financial and Service Reports

AA Wakeman noted that Kathy Kleczek was also present at the TAC Review Committee
Meeting and would update the minutes to reflect such.

Director Hanenkrat indicated that the regular meeting minutes showed that “Director
Edwards” voted on three motions, AA Wakeman will update.

Director Adler raised several corrections regarding the minutes of the TAC Review
Committee Meeting. AA Wakeman clarified her corrections with general counsel following
the meeting, and under direction of attorney Elizabeth Rosso simplified the sections in
question to avoid confusion.

Discussion on whether to approve minutes. Director Riggs said the TAC Review
Committee minutes should be removed from the Consent Calendar and be approved after
they’'ve been corrected.

Motion by Director Huffman to approve the financials and August Regular Board Meeting
Minutes with corrections. Motion Seconded by Director Adler.

Motion Passed

By Directors Hanenkrat, Carlson-Swanson, Adler, Riggs,

Holm, Huffman and Acting Board Chair Johnson.

Item 16 removed from the Consent Calendar until October 21, 2021 meeting.

ACTION ITEMS

18.Motion to Appoint the Recommended Transportation Advisory Committee
Membership Roster.

AA Wakeman explained that Mary McGinnis has withdrawn her application. Director Adler
read a letter from Ms. McGinnis (attached fo minutes). AA Wakeman read a letter
submitted by former TAC member Carol McAndrew (attached to minutes).

There was discussion on the recommendations put forth by staff and by the TAC Review
Committee, and of the applicants in general.

Motion by Director Holm to appoint the staff recommendations to the TAC as follows:

Ron Rush for a three-year term; Carol McAndrew for a three-year term; Ross Tomlin for

a three-year term; Brook Wyntergreen for a one-year term. Motion Seconded by Director
Riggs.

In Favor: Directors Hanenkrat, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs, Holm

Opposed: Huffman, Adler, Acting Board Chair Johnson

Motion Passed

DISCUSSION ITEMS
19. Maintenance Plan

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker's exact words.

4
47



Regular Meeting 9/23/2021
GM Doug Pilant stated that a Memo (attached to minutes) to the Board outlining a
Maintenance Reorganization Plan had been distributed to the Board earlier in the day to
provide an overview of Staff's analysis and recommendation to expand the District's
capacity to perform in-house vehicle maintenance and repairs. He said Operations
Superintendent Mike Reed has been the team leader for this project and would provide
the Board an overview of the findings. OS Mike Reed provided a review of the Memo’s
findings and recommendation and explained the District is in discussions with the Union
to approve the mechanic position, and hope to have this position ready for Board approval
in October.
Director Hanenkrat said his primary concern is that it's difficult to find a mechanic who
can do both body work and mechanic work. OS Reed responded that the District still
plans to send vehicles needing body work out to specialized shop, and that this expense
is included in the forecasted cost of maintenance going forward. Director Hanenkrat also
asked if the District is equipped to do A/C repair. GM Pilant responded that yes, the
District has been setup to do A/C for several years.

Attorney Shropshire made the suggestion that the District begin recording public
meetings, as a number of the firm's other public clients do. Attorney Shropshire also
requested that Director Huffman clarify whether he intends to step down as chair
permanently or just for this meeting. Director Huffman responded that he is resigning as
Chair for this and all meetings going forward.

20. Staff Comments/Concerns:
GM Pilant shared that his youngest daughter had a baby a week ago, and he is
planning to visit the family this weekend.
Administrative Assistant Wakeman: Asked to record future meetings.
Finance Supervisor Welch: None
Operations Superintendent Reed: None
NW Rides Brokerage Manager Bond: Stated that she was board clerk for 9 years and
has served at the District for 11 years and has never seen Board behavior like this.
She expressed that she’s thankful it's getting righted and thanked the Directors for
beginning to correct it.

21.Board of Directors Comments/Concerns:
Dir. Hanenkrat thanked GM Pilant for trying to step down as NWOTA Chair.
Dir. Adler thanked Dir. Johnson for stepping up and doing good job, wished everyone
good luck, and congratulated GM Pilant on grandbaby.
Dir. Huffman commended Dir. Johnson on how she’s handling everything and
commended OS Reed on his maintenance recommendations.
Dir. Riggs said that she felt the Board was fun to serve on 16 years ago and hopes it
can return to the way it was. She reminded the Board that they were all elected to
serve the County as a whole, not as North or South, and that personal agendas have
no place on the Board. She thanked Dir. Johnson and the Board, and said that the
District stakeholders are all looking at the District as having problems and that she
would like to prove them wrong.
Dir. Carlson-Swanson thanked Dir. Johnson and thanked OS Reed for his extensive
research on the maintenance plan. Thanked Dir. Hanenkrat for raising his experience
and questions, and congratulated GM Pilant.
Dir. Holm: None

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize siatements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker's exact words.

5
48



Regular Meeting 9/23/202]
Dir. Johnson thanked staff and board for helping her get through meeting.
Congratulated GM Pilant. Echoed thoughts that meetings going forward should be
recorded.

22.Adjournment: Acting Board Chair Johnson adjourned the meeting at 8:00pm.

These minutes approved this 21st day of October, 2021.
ATTEST:

Mary Johnson, Acting Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only fext enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker's exact words.

6
49



September 20, 2021
Dear Tillamook Transit Board of Directors,
| am withdrawing my application for the Transit Advisory Committee (TAC).

| realized as | listened to the discussion about TAC applications last week, it is difficult for the scoring
matrix to robustly measure how applicants interact with the transit system and how they meet state
requirements for committee members.

Considering that, | think my providing support and information for the board outside the advisory
committee will be a more meaningful contribution.

I applaud the work done by so many people to make Tillamook’s transit system the rural model it has
become.

I moved to Tillamook County a decade ago to teach school. | quickly embraced the WAVE and made it
part of my transportation to work.

In addition, | am a big fan of Tillamook’s transit system because | saw how it helped the people | work
with. I taught at Tillamook’s alternative school. Most of my students were from poverty and were ethnic
minorities. The WAVE helped them get to work, go to Portland for college classes, and enjoy recreation
along the coast.

Students from the Nestucca and Neah Kah Nie School Districts attend my school. The school bought
WAVE tickets to help them get to school, enabling more students to earn a high school diploma.

| also taught English as a Second Language at Tillamook Bay Community College and to parents for the
Tillamook School District. Many non-English speaking residents used the WAVE.

Recently | expanded my community involvement, notably as a member of several local government
organizations and recreation groups. In a recent community meeting with local professionals, | asked
how many had used Tillamook public transit. Eleven of the twelve people said they had and expressed
diverse benefits of the WAVE.

My goal of applying to TAC was to share these experiences and give input from the perspective of
someone who has interacted with the transit system often at work and personally.

| am still excited about that possibility and look forward to giving input to the board in ways besides
serving on TAC.

| appreciate the support of board members Linda Adler and Jim Huffman. Several months ago, | had the
opportunity to share some of my WAVE stories with Linda, and I think she saw my deep work with and
enthusiasm for Tillamook's transit.

Thank you for considering my application,

Mary McGinnis

50



| am submitting this Letter of Dissent in response to Mrs. Adler's opinion regarding my
appointment to continue as a member of the TAC Committee for the District. First of all
I was never made aware of the formation of the subcommittee to review applications.
Although I have no objection to the Board being involved with this procedure, it has just
never been this formal. The notice of the meeting never got to me.

This letters in in response to Mrs. Adler's comments and concerns regarding my
appointment to TAC for the District. After reviewing the minutes of the meeting
September 14, 2021 held by the Board subcommittee to review application, | have
comments that may clarify her concerns. | will try not to take offense at any questioning
of my integrity, or that | have or would try to in any way, use my position to benefit my
daughter, Cathy Bond, who has served the District for over 10 years now. | also have
served on committees as a volunteer for over 8 years. | would ask that Mrs. Adler, and
since she expressed Mr. Hanenkrat's concerns on September 14" as well, to give me
any examples or incidents where a conflict of interest has even become a factor to
theses committees.

| have served the District for over 10 years as a volunteer, and sat on various other
committees, including the Budget Committee, for over 8 years. Mr. Hanenkrat and Mr.
Huffman have been on the Board as Directors the entire time that | have been on these
committees. Where were their concerns the past 8 years? | would like to know where
these unfounded concerns are coming from.

Administrative Assistant Shannon Wakeman reached out to me on August 4t" regarding
additional information for the TAC committee. She tells me she sent an email after your
Sept 14th meeting, asking for more info. | never received that email and haven't had it
re-sent to me by Mrs. Wakeman. What else can | tell you? My background as a legal
assistant for 14 years makes me more aware of potential improprieties, especially when
working on public matters. | am retired now and was looking forward to being able to
spend more time helping as an Ambassador for the District. | was looking forward to
continuing to use my accounting skills to review budgets and ask questions that help
keep the budget process above board for the Public. | was...but not in an atmosphere of
distrust, unkindness, and division by some Board members. | will miss my service to the
District and many of the friends | have made.

Thank you for allowing me to express my concerns. Respectfully Submitted.

Carol McAndrew

51



For Board Meeting of September 23, 2021
Agenda ltem #19

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: MICHAEL REED, OPERATIONS SUPERINTENDENT

THRU: DOUG PILANT, GENERAL MANAGER

SUBJECT: TCTD MAINTENANCE PROGRAM REORGANIZATION PLAN
Issue

Shall the District invest in a fleet maintenance mechanic, and purchase tools and
equipment to improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the District’s fleet maintenance
program.

Background and Findings

1. TCTD currently has a fleet of 34 vehicles consisting of; 9 Freightliner buses, 6
GM buses, 10 Ford buses and vans, and 7 Dodge Caravan Dial-A-Ride vehicles,
as well as 1 staff car and 1 maintenance truck. This diverse fleet, with diverse
maintenance requirements, is maintained by a single Service Technician.

2.  The TCTD 3 bay Bus Maintenance Facility (BMF) is a valuable resource which
can be fully utilized to its potential by increasing maintenance personnel skills,
staffing, and equipment. At most times, only 1 of the bays are used due to only
having one maintenance staff member on site.

3. The current Service Technician job description requires the skills to service,
inspect, and repair “minor” mechanical, hydraulic, and electrical issues as well as
maintain facilities and other equipment. The job description for this role was last
updated in 2014.

4. Due to the limitations of the Service Technician role and the lack of supporting
tools in the shop, the following list includes vehicle maintenance tasks are
typically completed with outside work orders/vendors:

o

Engine Repair/Overhaul

Diagnostic evaluation requiring code reader/scan tool
Air Conditioning Repair

Alignments

Brake systems

DPF/DEF diagnosis and repair

Annual DOT inspections

Tune ups

Body Repair

Others as necessary due to schedule

T T @ a0 T

52



10.

For Board Meeting of September 23, 2021
Agenda ltem #19

The District has a FTA/ODOT compliant preventative maintenance inspection
(PMI) program to ensure the safety of vehicles and address mechanical and
electrical issues. Services and inspections of vehicles are done by rotating them
in a cyclical fashion through the shop based on miles traveled since last PMI.
Drivers also inspect vehicles daily and report defects on a daily basis.

A more efficient method to achieving the PMI standards and repair of issues
being reported by drivers during daily inspections could be achieved by
completing most of the repairs in-house. The current size and diversity of TCTD
fleet vehicles does not allow enough time for a single Service Technician to
address the maintenance needs of the fleet, therefore TCTD requires the
coordination with several outside vendors to do repairs.

Services and repairs of vehicles by outside vendors is substantially more costly
to the District than completing work “in house”. Outside work orders generally
involve high labor cost ($85hr+ rates) along with 15 to 20 percent mark-up on the
cost of parts. The table below shows the projected impact of the proposed
recommendation upon the FY 2020-21 vehicle maintenance budget of $200,000.

A market analysis of fleet maintenance mechanics employed by comparable
transportation district's in Oregon and concluded the estimated wages and
benefits of an in-house mechanic would range from $60,000 to $80,000 per year.

An analysis of the actual FY 2020-21 maintenance repairs concluded that an in-
house maintenance program would reduce expenses being paid to vendors by
up to $124,000 as outlined in the following table.

Actual Estimated
FY 2021 In-house Difference
Expenses Expenses

Advance Diesel 28,508 16,529 11,979
McCoy Frieghtliner 61,167 2,986 58,181
Northside Ford 14,401 6,747 7,654
Schetky NW 12,181 628 11,553
West Coast
Exhaust 20,709 0 20,709
Other Vendors 51,951 37,450 14,501
Total 188,917 64,340 124 577

Additional cost savings of $15,000 would be realized by eliminating the estimated
550 hours required for staff to transport vehicles to and from the various vendors
in the Willamette Valley. There would be an additional cost savings resulting
from the reduced fuel and maintenance expenses of vehicles being used to
transport vehicles to/from the vendors.

53



For Board Meeting of September 23, 2021
Agenda ltem #19

11.  The in-house cost savings and the staffing hours cost savings will be about
$141,000 per year that can be invested in-house maintenance staffing, tools,
equipment and parts inventory. In addition, increasing the District's capacity to
perform in-house repairs on vehicles will eliminate the time spent coordinating
with outside vendors and enable the District to actively manage and prioritize
vehicle repairs thus reducing the amount of time vehicles are out-of-service.

Recommendation

Staff recommends negotiating with the Amalgamated Transit Union the creation of a
fleet maintenance mechanic to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the District's
maintenance program by fully utilizing the Bus Maintenance Facility.

o4



Tillamook County Transportation District

Tillamook County Transportation District
Annual Board Meeting Schedule for 2022

January January 20, 2022
February February 17, 2022
March March 17, 2022
April April 21, 2022
May May 19, 2022

June (adopt budget)” June 23, 2022
July July 21, 2022
August August 18, 2022
September * September 22, 2022
October October 20, 2022
November November 17, 2022
December December 15, 2022

The Board of Directors typically meets on the 3rd Thursday of the month at
6:00pm unless rescheduled as listed below. The meetings always take place at
the Transportation building, in the Bob Kenny Board Hearing Room at 3600 Third
Street, Tillamook Oregon 97141.

* Moved to 4" Thursday to provide adequate time to complete financial and
service performance reports for board packet.

55



Tillamook County Transportation District
Budget Calendar Fiscal Year 2022-2023

Task

Due Date

Complete?

Appoint Budget Officer

January 20 Board Meeting

Appoint Budget Committee
Members (if necessary)

March 17 Board Meeting

Review Draft Budget with Board
Treasurer

April 15, 2022

Distribute Draft Budget to
Budget Committee

April 21, 2022

Publish Notice of Budget
Committee Meeting
Print and Website

April 26 edition of HH
(Due to Headlight Herald by April 21)
Publish on website

Budget Committee Meeting

May 11, 2022

Publish Notice of Budget
Hearing

lune 14, 2022

Budget Public Hearing

June 23 Board Meeting

Deadline to Certify 2022-2023
Tax Levy to County Assessor

July 15, 2022

Deadline to Deliver Adopted
Resolution and Budget to
Tillamook County Clerk

September 1, 2022

56



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

In the Matter of Authorizing the
General Manager to Enter into a
Contract with Mark DiLoreto for
Architectural Services

)
)
)
) RESOLUTION NO. 21-38

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District has need of architectural design
services related to the TCTD Administrative Operations Facility and Transit Center
Renovation Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Plan includes three (3) individual projects; Kitchen, Dispatch Office and
Transit Center Office that will be conducted as one (1) project for efficiency through
shared drawings, specifications, site visits and construction; and

WHEREAS, the District's Public Contracting Rules and Procedures, and ORS
279C.110(8), allow the direct appointment for personal services contracts for
architectural, engineering, surveying, and related services if the total contract amount is
less than $250,000; and

WHEREAS, Mark DiLoreto is a qualified architect and desires to contract with TCTD for
the work described above; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Tillamook
County Transportation District that:

The General Manager is authorized to Execute a Personal Services Agreement, by direct
appointment, with Mark DilLoreto for architectural and planning design services in an
amount not to exceed $15,800.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 215t day of October, 2021.

ATTEST:

By: By:
Mary Johnson, Acting Board Chair Douglas Pilant, General Manager

57



&=

Planning
Solutions, Inc.

architecture

Architecture

Interior Architecture
Landscape Architecture
Land Use Planning
Graphic Arts
Development Consulting
Certified Arborist
Environmental Planning
Public Involvement

Christopher A. Baumann, LA
Principal,

Director Landscape Architect
WA 635, OR 354, CA 3434

Mark D. DiLoreto, AIA
Director of Architecture
WA 8809, OR3086

4400 NE 77t Avenue #275
Vancouver, Washington 98662
Phone: 360-750-9000

Fax: 360-750-9201
psi@planningsclutionsinc.com
www.planningsolutionsinc.com

Appendix A

Appendix A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

. PROJECT UNDERSTANDING:

The project consists of Architectural design and construction documents
for revisions to the existing TCTD Office Building at 3600 Third Street,
Tillamook, Oregon, and revisions to the existing Transit Center at 204 Laurel
Avenue, Tillamook, Oregon. The project consists of three individual
projects, two in the Office Building, and one in the Transit Center.

Il. ASSUMPTIONS:

® N

. The City of Tillamook Zoning process has been completed and

approved. Any additional Planning and Zoning work will be billed
on a time and materials (T&M) basis over and above the proposed
fee based on client approval.
The three individual projects (Kitchen, Dispatch, and Transit Center)
will be conducted as one project for efficiency through shared
drawings, specifications, site visits, and construction.
The three individual projects will be combined for one total bid
project to be awarded to one general contractor for efficiency
during our construction administration.
All work except for the damaged street light fixture will be
contained within the existing building footprints — no expansion of
exterior building walls or site work.
All plumbing, electrical, and mechanical work will be design-build
(provided by the successful bidding general contractor).
The project will be submitted for building permit in two packages:
a. TCTD Headquarters, and
b. Transit Center.
Plan Review Comment responses will be limited to 6 hours.
Construction is assumed to be no more than 12 weeks. Additionall
weeks will be on a Time and Material basis estimated at $500 per week.
Consultants are not included. Consultants such as Civil Engineer,
Structural Engineer, Electrical Engineer, Mechanical Engineer,
Plumbing design, Geotechnical Engineer, etc. if desired by TCTD,
can be brought onto the project under PS| direction for additional
cost plus mark-up.

. Plan Review Submittal package will be created by PSI, but delivered

by TCTD to the jurisdiction. (Saves on our travel time and milage).

. Changes after approved design will be billed on a Time and Material

Basis at our hourly rates over and above the agreed upon total fee.

. The design considers selecting products from existing

manufacturers’ catalogues for components such as: doors,

TCTD Proposal - 09-16-21.doc

58



Appendix A

Planning Solutions, Inc.

hardware, cabinets, lighting fixtures, panel systems, finish materials,
frim and other similar materials. Any custom designed components
shall be created on a time and materials (T&M) basis based on
client approval.

lll. SCOPE OF SERVICES

We propose the following services and tasks:

A. TCTD Office Kitchen and Dispatch Renovation:

1.
2.

Al

Review and get familiar with previous 2017 design

Have (1) virtual* meeting with client to discover their desires for a
“fouchless” kitchen and any desired changes to previous 2017 dispatch
design.

Develop office repainting plan

Replace office drinking fountain

Develop revised renovation plan.

Have (1) virtual meeting with client to present revised renovation plan for
approval.

Create Construction Drawings and Specifications for Jurisdictional Plan
Review and General Confractor Bidding.

B. TCTD Transit Center Renovation:

1.
2.

3.
4.

5.

Review and get familiar with previous 2006 project drawings.

Have (1) virtual* meeting with client to discover their desires for interior
renovations

Develop renovation plan.

Have (1) virtual meeting with client to present revised renovation plan for
approval.

Create Construction Drawings and Specifications for Jurisdictional Plan
Review and General Contractor Bidding.

C. Bidding and Services during Construction:

1.
2,

Assist TCTD in hosting in-person (to both sites at one visit) pre-bid meeting.
Assist TCTD in reviewing General Contractor Bids.

3. Services During Construction (both sites concurrently).

a. In-person Site Visits (fo both sites) approximately every 2 weeks (7
trips budgeted).

b. Lead progress meetings, fake meeting minutes, and distribute for
each site visit.

c. Address any Contractor Questions (RFI's)

d. Review submittals and shop-drawings.

e. Issue any change requests for Owner (C.O's)

f. Review General Confractor Pay Requests

g. Provide one punch listin person visit and one follow-up upon
General Contractor completion. (2 Trips in addition to ltem C 3a.
above).

2|Page TCTD Proposal - 09-16-21.doc

59



Appendix A

Planning Solutions, Inc.

h. Assist owner with Project Close-out including receiving from
General Contractor: Close out manuals, maintenance manuals,
warrantees, and Cerfificate of Occupancy.

IV. FEE PROPOSAL:

Based upon the above scope of services, we have broken out the fees as
follows into Fixed Fees and Estimates.

Fixed Fees:

We propose to complete the following task on a fixed fee basis for
services completed within the scope of services as identified in: Sections I
UNDERSTANDING and Il ASSUMPTIONS:

TASKS A and B - Design and Construction/Bid/Plan Review Documents:
Office Kitchen and Dispatch Renovation: $3.000

Transit Center: $2,200

Total Design: $4,900

ESTIMATES:

The following items are very difficult to assign fixed fees because they can
vary widely depending upon the unpredictable nature of this portion of
the process. We have found the fairest way to handle these categories is
to generate an estimate for the item and bill the actual expense on a
time and materials basis utilizing the current fee schedule. The following
estimates may vary based on actual cost. Estimates are based upon our
standard services and jurisdictional processes:

Biddina/Plan Review Responses/Services During Construction (Assumed 12 weeks):
Both Sites to be handled as one: $9.900

Reimbursables as required (Estimated): $1,000

Reimbursable Expenses:

Reimbursable expenses are over and above the fixed and estimated fees and
are billed according to the attached Fee Schedule. Such expenses include
printing, mileage, plan sets, and supplies.

Mark D. DiLoreto, RA, LEED® AP
Director of Architecture

Planning Solutions, Inc.
architecture

*Virtual meeting Using Microsoft Teams or Zoom

3|Page TCTD Proposal - 09-16-21.doc

60



Architecture e

Planning Solutions, Inc.

Landscape Architecture ¢ Land Use Planning

Professional Fee Schedule

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RATE

Managing Principal $105.00 / Hr.
Director of Architecture $100.00/ Hr.
Director of Landscape Architecture $95.00 / Hr.
Director of Planning $95.00 / Hr.
Senior Architect, Landscape Architect & Planner $86.00 / Hr.
Architect Il, Landscape Architect Il & Planner | $75.00 / Hr.
Architect |, Landscape Architect | & Planner | $60.00 / Hr.
Design Tech IV $50.00 / Hr.
Design Tech IlI $45.00 / Hr.
Design Tech Il $40.00 / Hr.
Design Tech |, Permit Specialist & Technical Writer $35.00 / Hr.
Research Assistant Il / Administrative Assistant $35.00 / Hr.
Research Assistant | / Clerical $30.00/ Hr.
Director of Intergalactic Relations $850.00 / Hr.

Hourly fees for services are effective through Dec. 30, 2021

| Expenses not itemized below l Cost + 15%

IN-HOUSE SMALL FORMAT COPIES

B/W 8-1/2x11 & 8-1/2x14 Copies 09¢ / EA
B/W 11x17 Copies 46¢ | EA
Color 8-1/2x11 & 8-1/2x14 Copies 68¢ / EA
Color 11x17 Copies $2.00 / EA
IN-HOUSE LARGE FORMAT COPIES & PLOTS
————— |
Reproducible Bond Plots 50¢ / SF
Color Plots $3.50 / SF
Color Photo Glossy Plots $5.00/ SF
B/W Copies 30¢ / SF
Color Copies $2.75/ SF
MISCELANEQUS

Mileage 75¢ | MILE
Permits Cost + 15%
Maps / GIS Materials Cost + 15%
Copies (not in-house) Cost + 15%
Sub-Consultants Paid Directly by Planning Solutions, Inc. Cost + 15%
Credit Card Payments - Swiped 2.75%
Credit Card Payments — Manual Entry 3.5%

Fees for reimbursable expenses are subject to change without notice.
State sales tax shall be added to applicable items.

P.0O. Box 61406, Vancouver, WA 98666

PHONE: 360-750-9000

61



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
_ OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

In the Matter of Authorizing the GM )
to Amend the Coastcom Services )
Agreement to Purchase VolIP from )
Wave Businesses Broadband ) RESOLUTION NO. 21-39

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District's (TCTD) conducted an
intermediate procurement procedure that resulted in executing a Service Agreement with
Coastcom Inc. in April 2015 to purchase telephone equipment and Voice-over-Internet-
Protocol (VolP) services; and

WHEREAS, Wave Broadband Solutions LLC purchased Coastcom Inc. in 2016
and has provided services to existing Coastcom customers and assumed all contracts of
Costcom to include Hunter Telephone, which provided Coastcom’s PBX services; and

WHEREAS, Wave Broadband Solutions has been migrating previous Coastcom
customers to their system, with a deadline for full migration by the end of October 2021;
and

WHEREAS, Wave Broadband has reviewed our current phone system and
provided a breakdown of cost to migrate the services attached hereto and Attachment A;
and

WHEREAS, TCTD would enter into an amended Service Order Agreement with
Wave Broadband Solutions for an initial term of 60-months, with the option to cancel after
the initial term with 30-day written notice; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors authorizes the General Manager to execute an amended
Service Agreement with Wave Broadband Solutions that migrates the current Agreement
from Coastcom to Wave Business Broadband with the terms listed on Attachment A.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 215t day of October, 2021.
ATTEST:

By: By:
Mary Johnson, Acting Board Chair Douglas Pilant, General Manager

62



For Board Meeting of October 21, 2021
Agenda ltem # 23

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: CATHY BOND, NW RIDES BROKERAGE MANAGER

THRU: DOUG PILANT, GENERAL MANAGER

SUBJECT: AMENDED TCTD/WAVE BROADCOM COMMUNICATIONS
AGREEMENT

Issue

Shall the Board authorize the General Manager to amend the Service Order Agreement
with Coastcom to replace Coastcom with purchasing entity Wave Business Solutions
LLC and to impose more favorable terms for TCTD that will save TCTD thousands of
dollars per year and provide additional benefits.

Background and Findings

iP

TCTD upgraded the phone system from Embarq to Voice-over-Internet-Protocol
(VolP) services through Coastcom in 2015. Coastcom was awarded the contract
after an intermediate procurement procedure.

In 2016, Wave Broadband purchased Coastcom. Wave Broadband has provided
services to existing customers of Coastcom and assumed all contracts of
Coastcom to include Hunter Telephone. Hunter Telephone provided Coastcom’s
hosted Private Branch eXchange (PBX) services.

In order to launch NW Rides Brokerage in July 2018, TCTD upgraded the current
phone system with Wave Broadband to add the call center features necessary to
operate a multi-line hunt group.

Wave Broadband has been migrating previous Coastcom customers to their
system, with a deadline for full migration by the end of October 2021.

TCTD would enter into an amended Service Order Agreement for an initial term
of 60-months, with the option to cancel after the initial term with 30-day written
notice.

Care Oregon has been requesting that NW Rides purchase some type of phone
system or software to enable recording of all calls related to the brokerage
members. NW Rides will be required to provide this capability by the start of the
new Delegate Agreement in January 2022.

Wave Broadband has reviewed our current phone system and provided a
breakdown of cost to migrate the services attached hereto and Attachment A.
The summary concludes that the current monthly reoccurring charges of
$1,021.50/mo. will decrease to $671.81/mo., a total monthly cost saving of
approximately $349.69/mo. This yields a savings of $4,196.28 over a year.

63



For Board Meeting of October 21, 2021
Agenda ltem # 23

8. There is a one-time non-recurring Gold Enhanced Contact Center charge of
$99.99. This service allows TCTD to operate the NW Rides call center hunt
group and App.

9. In addition to the cost savings, TCTD and NW Rides will receive the following
additional benefits over the existing contract with Coastcom:

a. New updated phones

b. Real-time stats reporting for call center

c. Full call recording functions

d. Wave App for remote access and remote call center log on/off capability

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an amended
Service Order Agreement with Wave Business Solutions LLC that migrates the current
Agreement from Coastcom to Wave Business Broadband and imposes terms that
lowers TCTD expenses and acquires the additional benefits listed above.

64



MWILNITIINOD ANV A4V 13I4dOYd

T20Z/v/01 101351g uoneyodsuel | AJunoD sjjoowejjiL / D77 ‘SUOIIN|OS S5aUISNG AR
1 '8d ” H3IAYO IDIAY3S
waud “TPTL6 * “oowe|iL 5
00°05 0005 S6'7S S6'YS I sn) v 31S 1S PJE 009€ dnous Juny
wald “T¥TL6 ‘ yoowe||1L 191ud) 10BU0) 6
66°'665 | 66°66S 00865 00°86S T sn) ‘v 31S IS P4E 009€ pno[) pasueyus p|os
waud “TPTL6 ‘ oowe|iL
0005 | 00°0S 00'0TS 00°SS 4 5N ¥ 315 ‘1S P4€ 009€ | aun a8ueyox3y usipio4
waid ‘TTL6 * Moowe|iL
00'0S 00°0S 98'597S 66'8TS 14" isn) ‘v 31S 1S P4€ 009€ 0S-TT 183§ ssaJdx3 :
T wig “TYTL6 * oOWe||L
0005 00'0S 56'695 66°€ETS S 3 snD ‘¥ 31S ‘1S P4€ 009€ 0S-T¢ 1eas |enjuassy
wald “TY1L6 * HooweliL
00'0s 00°0S 00°'sS 00°'SS ) isn) ‘¥ 31S IS p4€ 009€ |lewadioA pasueyuy

J4YIN3Ad JdviNad
J4N 1V10L LINN /24 S1INN §534aav 201-v {AHVINIYd) SSIYAAY D07-Z INLI ANIT LONAOoYdd

20TV 201-Z

:mojaq Yoy 1as (,JUIA,,) sadaeyd adiaias ulundal Ajyiuow ayy pue ‘(,J9N,,) 28.eys uone|jeisul Supiundal
-uou ‘awl1-auo ayj 104 ddueydxa ul ‘(,37S SIIAISS,, € ‘Yoea) mojaqg yuoy 19s (s)uoiledo| ayl 1e ‘(,331IAISS,, B ‘4Iea) MO[aq Y1I0) 1S SDIIAIDS B} JaWO0ISN) 03 apiaoid ||eys Japinoad

asudiajug syuow g9

INJIND3IS INH3L 3D1AYH3S TVILINI

- PI3}a3117 ueq 991ZS2d0 TO96EVICT - 81
d3d SI1VS LNNOJDV HIFINNN JON3H343H H3IdINNN LNNOJJY

439NN INOHd SSANISNg LOVINOD JAILVNYILIY $534Aav oNITg

wos'sngyoowe||1@puoqa :jiews
:9)IgoN 1211s1q uoneodsuel |
€808-79€-£0S @IHP0 puog Ayied Auno) yoowey|iL
O4NI LDVINOD JIAIVN 1DVINOD d3INo1snd

"SO'81 Y3 Ul Way) 03 UaAIS sBUjUBBW BY) BARY ||BYS JIPIO SIAISS SIUY Ul PAULSP 10U ING PAsN SWId) pazijeided ||y "33UaJayal S|y} A J9pIO 22IAIS SIY) 03u| pajesodiodul

ate syl ayL *(,$0%8L, 8Y}) SI[-95HOI9IUT/ WO S5aUISNOSABM//-011] 1B 91ISqaM S JBPIAOId UO Pajsod ale UdIym ,S3d1AI8S asudialug 104 SUOIHPUOD) PUE SWIS| pJepue)s,,

549pInoid Aq pausanos aq |(Im pue 0} Juensind apew si JapIQ IAIBS SIYL *(,48WO0ISND), ) Mojaq payads JaWoIsnI ay} pue ‘(,1apinoid,) Auedwod Ayjiqel| payiwl uoldulysepm
2271 ‘SNOILNTOS $SINISNE IAVM udamiaq pue Aq ‘(,81eq aA19343,, 8Y1) Mojaq ainjeudis ISe| Jo a1ep ay} JO Se 03Ul PaIaIU3 S| (,JaPIQ BIIAIBS,, S1U1) JOPIQ IIAIBS SILL

ssauisng

13pIQ BIINIBS 0: o 3

V LNJNHIVLLY




120¢/v/01
¢ '8d

|edopad  (,dIOA, BYE) 3JOMIBU BIIOA [02030.4d 18UJIBIU| S J3pIn0Ld Ag papinoid ale Japunasay papiroid SadiA1as auoydajal ayl -391AISS 1163 JUIPIEday S91I0N JUEHIOAW|

TVILNIQIINOD ANV AYVL1314d0Yd

1013510 uonenodsuel ) Ajunod sjoowe|(il / J77 ‘SUOIIN|OS SsaUISNg ABAN

d430Y0 IIIAYIS

‘221135 1163 SuipaeSal ad1j0u siy) spuelsiapun pue peas
Sey Jawo1sn) jeyl sa1eslpul awoisn)y mojaq Suiudis Ag “papuadsns 1o pajeujuwita) ) a31a1as auoyd JnoA i 1o ‘swajqod [eaiuyda) Jayio 10 ageino yJomiau ‘adeino samod e S|
2Jayl J1 §||ed TT63 9ew 01 djqe aq Jou Aew no, (A1) 'a8eino Jamod e Bulinp ajgejieAeun aq |(m sadiAlas ayy ‘Ajddns samod dn-yoeq e 1oy paduelle aney NOA sS3|un 0s ‘a)Is 3IINISS
ay3 03 papiroid Jamod [e2132313 pJepuels ayl Juisn alesado sa21A18S dIOA (I1) !3]1) UO UDIBLLIOJUI UOIIEIO| 1931102 INOA BABY 10U [IM TT63 SSIMISYIO ‘UOIELWIOU| UOIEIO| BY)
a1epdn 03 AjaieIpawiul 19pIA0Id [[B3 3sNW NOA ‘ssalppe [eaisAyd Jualayyp e o1 Juawdinba auoyd djoA INoA arow noA 4| (11) {TT63 O3 UOIIBWLIOUI UOIIEI0| S1BINIIE JSAI3P 0} JBPIO U
§53.1ppe 811s 83IAI9S 1081103 B SPadu Japinosd (1) 151084 TT63 Juelloduu] @58y} JO S1aW0ISNI pulwal sadinas auoyd d|oA 40 siapinoad Jeyl a1inbal sajnt uoISSIWIWOT) SUOIIEIIUNLILWOY)

"saflieyouns pue saay ‘saxe) ajqesijdde apnjoul 10U Op aAoge palsl| sagieyd ay (310N

"aUNs/sasjuiald 5431103507 3yl Yanad 0] Buim apisul [DUOIPPD / UOISUIINS 21DWap A1Dss3Iau AUD

66°66% 18°TL9% SIV.LOL Buypinosd sof ayqisuodsal sp Jawoisn) uayl ‘JOdIN Y1 S| d3IS 3213 D J0f IN0GD P3IS|| U0 UCIID2IDWAQ 341 f| :ILON
waud ‘TPTL6 ‘ “oouwej|iL

00°0S | 00°0$ 00°0T$ 00°'SS$ [4 sn) ‘v 315 IS A€ 009€ Jaquinn 2a.4 ||0L

waid “TPTL6  “Hoowel|iL juepuany

00'0S | 00'0$ 00°0€S 00'STS [4 snD 'V 315 1S PJE 009€ oINy wniwalid
wald “TYTL6 ‘ Yoowe||iL

00'0s | 0005 ST'81TS 96°9% LT sn) 'V 31S IS P4E 009€ TT¥ XAA Wwo2aAjod

walid “TYTL6 * ooweiL asea

00'0S | 00°0S 06655 S6'625 [4 1snD ‘v 315 1S P4E 009€ 0009 dI wodhjod

O
O



TVILN3AIINOD ANV AYV13IHdOdd

1z0Z/v/0t 1213510 uoneyodsued | AJunod jooweljil / J77 ‘SUoiIn|os ssauisng ane
€ 8d ¥3QYO0 IDINYIS
N~
O
~ pausis aleq paufis ajeq
L 9L
awep pajuld awep paiuid
ainjeudis Japinold pazuoyiny ainjeusis Jawoisn) pazoyiny

*19pJO 221MBS
SIY1 J0 91eQ@ 2AID3YT BY) pawsap aq ||Im (aunieudis s,Aned 1eyl yum paledosse alep ay) Ag paiedipul se) 1 usis 01 Avied ise| ayl Aq paudis st JapO 831A43S sIy3 aep ayL
paudis aney sajied yloq usym Ajuo aA11I3442 AWO0IB ||IM J9PIO DIIAISS SIY] ‘PEIISU| "J3HJ0 UE 3IN}ISUOI 10U SBOP JPIACIG Ag JOWOISND 0} JSPIO SIIAISS SIYY JO UOISSILUGNS DL



wave

business
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR ENTERPRISE SERVICES
ARTICLE 1 - INTRODUCTION; DOCUMENTS COMPRISING AGREEMENT
11 Introduction. Wave Business Solutions, LLC (“Provider”) and its Affiliates provide various facilities-based

communications services, including Ethernet transport, dedicated Internet access, voice over fiber, hosted voice, dark fiber,
wavelength, colocation and related services (as applicable, the “Services”). These Standard Terms and Conditions for Enterprise
Services (these “T&Cs”) may be incorporated by reference into one or more Service Orders that are executed by and
between Provider and the customer specified in such Service Order(s) (“Customer”). When so incorporated, these T&Cs together
with the applicable Service Order(s) shall be collectively referred to as the “Agreement” between Provider and Customer and shall
govern Provider’s provision of Services to Customer. For purposes of the Agreement, the term “Affiliate” shall mean any other
person which directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, or is controlled by, or is under common control
with, the first person or any of its subsidiaries. Each of Provider and Customer may be referred to in the Agreement as a “Party”
and together as the “Parties.”

1.2 Service Orders. The purchase of Services shall be accomplished only through the negotiation and mutual execution and
delivery of a Service Order memorializing the terms and conditions pursuant to which Provider shall provide the desired Services
to Customer. Service Orders shall clearly specify the following: (i) the type of Service at issue (e.g., Internet access, data transport,
VolIP, dark fiber, etc.); (ii) the location(s) at which the Service is to be provided (each, a “Service Site”); (iii) the initial term of the
Service Order (the “Initial Service Term”); (iv) the pricing for the Service, including (a) the monthly recurring charges (“MRC") for
the Service, and (b) any non-recurring charges (“NRC”) associated with installation of the Service; and (v) any other terms or
conditions specific to the particular Service Order. Depending on the location of the Service Site, in some instances Services may
be provided by an Affiliate of Provider.

1.3 Additional Documents Comprising Agreement; Order of Precedence. The Service Level Agreements attached to these
T&Cs as Exhibits (together, the “SLA”) constitute a part of these T&Cs. Customer’s use of any Services purchased pursuant to the
Agreement will also be governed by Provider’s Acceptable Use Policy for Commercial Services (the “AUP”) which is posted on
Provider’s website at http://wavebusiness.com/commercial-AUP. Additional provisions that are applicable only to specific types
of Services are contained in Provider's Service-Specific Terms and Conditions (the “Service-Specific T&Cs”) which is posted on
Provider’s website at http://wavebusiness.com/serviceterms. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of any of the
foregoing documents, the documents shall have the following order of precedence unless expressly stated otherwise in a particular
Service Order: (i) these T&Cs (including the SLA); (ii) the applicable Service Order; (iii) the AUP; and (iv) the Service-Specific T&Cs.

ARTICLE 2 — TERM AND RENEWAL

The Initial Service Term of each Service Order shall be as specified in the Service Order. Upon expiration of the Initial
Service Term of a Service Order, unless either Party terminates the Service Order by giving written notice of termination to the
other Party not less than thirty (30) days prior to the end of the Initial Service Term, the Service Order will automatically renew for
successive periods of one (1) year (each, a “Renewal Term”). During any Renewal Term for a Service Order, either Party may
terminate the Service Order at the end of the then-current Renewal Term by giving written notice of termination to the other Party
not less than thirty (30) days prior to the end of the then-current Renewal Term. The total period of time a Service Order is in
effect is referred to as the “Service Term” for the Service Order at issue.

ARTICLE 3 — INSTALLATION, TESTING, ACCEPTANCE AND USE

3.1 service Site; Demarcation Points; Equipment. Unless a Service Site is within Provider’s control, Customer shall provide
Provider with access to the Service Site as and to the extent reasonably necessary for Provider to install, test, inspect and maintain
the Service(s) ordered during the Service Term. Unless otherwise stated in a Service Order: (i) Provider shall be solely responsible
for the provision, operation and maintenance of all equipment and facilities (the “Provider Equipment”) necessary to connect
Provider's network facilities to the Customer demarcation point(s) at the Service Site (the “Demarcation Point(s)"); and
(i) Customer shall be solely responsible for the provision, operation and maintenance of all equipment and facilities (the
“Customer Equipment”) from the Demarcation Point(s) to Customer’s internal network. Unless a Service Site is within Provider’s
control, Customer shall be responsible for maintaining appropriate conditions at the Service Site, including HVAC, electrical power,

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR ENTERPRISE SERVICES pg. 1
Wave Business Solutions, LLC 01/22/2021

638



wave

business

and security. Title to the Provider Equipment shall at all times remain vested in Provider. Customer shall not re-arrange,
disconnect, tamper with, attempt to repair, or otherwise interfere with the Provider Equipment, nor shall Customer permit any
third party to do so.

3.2 Testing, Acceptance and Service Commencement Date. Provider shall use commercially reasonable efforts to install the
Services consistent with Provider’s usual and customary installation timeline, and shall endeavor to keep Customer regularly
informed regarding installation progress. Provider shall notify Customer when a Service has been installed and is ready for testing
and use. Customer may, at Customer’s option, participate in Provider’s final testing of the Service. For Services having a committed
bandwidth, the committed information rate shall be measured at the Ethernet layer and includes the Ethernet frame itself. The
Initial Service Term for the Service at issue shall commence on the date on which the Service has been installed, tested and is active
and available for use by Customer (the “Service Commencement Date”). Customer shall have a period of five (5) business days
after the Service Commencement Date in which Customer may notify Provider that the Service at issue is not functioning properly.
If Customer notifies Provider of problems with a Service pursuant to this Section 3.2, Provider shall investigate and correct same
and the Service Commencement Date shall be revised to be the first calendar day after the date on which Provider has corrected
the problems. Unless Customer delivers notification of problems to Provider within the time period set forth above, Customer
shall be deemed to have accepted the Service at issue and to have confirmed that the Service has been installed and is functioning
properly as of the Service Commencement Date.

3.3 No Sub-Licensing; Non-Compete. Any Services provided to Customer pursuant to the Agreement are for the sole benefit
of Customer. Customer shall not grant to any third party the right to use any of the Services, regardless of whether such grant
were to take the form of a license, sublicense, lease, sublease, or any other form. Nor shall Customer use the Services for
commercial purposes that are competitive with Provider’s business (e.g., use the Services to sell Internet access services, point-to-
point data transport services, VolP services, etc., to third parties within Provider’s service area).

ARTICLE 4 - PAYMENT AND BILLING

4.1 Invoicing. All amounts owed by Customer to Provider under the Agreement shall be collectively referred to as “Fees.”
Provider shall begin billing Customer for the MRC applicable to a Service as of the Service Commencement Date. Invoices shall be
delivered monthly, and shall be paid by Customer within thirty (30) days of receipt. Fixed Fees shall be billed in advance and
usage-based Fees shall be billed in arrears. Fixed fees for any partial month shall be pro-rated. For Services having an NRC, unless
otherwise stated in the Service Order, Provider shall invoice Customer for the NRC upon full-execution of the Service Order. Except
for amounts disputed in good faith by Customer pursuant to Section 4.2 below, past due amounts shall bear interest in the amount
of 1.5% per month, or the highest amount allowed by law, whichever is lower.

4.2 Disputed Invoices. If Customer in good faith disputes any portion of a Provider invoice, Customer shall pay the undisputed
portion of the invoice and submit written notice to Provider regarding the disputed amount, which notice shall include
documentation supporting the alleged billing error (each such notice, a “Fee Dispute Notice”). A Fee Dispute Notice must be
submitted to Provider within thirty (30) days from the date the invoice at issue is received by Customer. Customer waives the right
to dispute any Fees not disputed within such thirty (30) day period. The Parties shall negotiate in good faith to attempt to resolve
any such disputes within sixty (60) days after Customer’s delivery of the applicable Fee Dispute Notice. Fee disputes unresolved
within that time period shall be resolved by the mediation and arbitration procedures set forth in Sections 11.2 and 11.3 below.

4.3 Applicable Taxes. All charges for Services set forth in Service Orders are exclusive of Applicable Taxes (as defined
below). Except for taxes based on Provider’s net income or taxes for which Customer possesses a valid exemption certificate,
Customer shall be responsible for payment of all applicable taxes and regulatory fees, however designated, that arise in any
jurisdiction, including, without limitation, value added, consumption, sales, use, gross receipts, excise, access, bypass, or other
taxes, fees, assessments, duties, charges or surcharges, that are imposed on, incident to, or based upon the provision, sale, or use
of the Service(s) (collectively “Applicable Taxes”). The Applicable Taxes will be individually identified on invoices. If Customer is
entitled to an exemption from any Applicable Taxes, Customer is responsible for presenting Provider with a valid exemption
certificate (in a form reasonably acceptable to Provider). Provider will give prospective effect to any valid exemption certificate
provided in accordance with the preceding sentence.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR ENTERPRISE SERVICES pg. 2
Wave Business Solutions, LLC 01/22/2021

69



wave

business
ARTICLE 5 - DEFAULT AND REMEDIES
5.1 Customer Default. Each of the following shall constitute a default by Customer under the Agreement (each a separate

event of “Default”): (i) if Customer fails to pay any undisputed Fees when due, the failure of Customer to cure same within ten
(10) days after receiving written notice from Provider regarding such failure to pay; (ii) if Customer fails to comply with any other
material provision of the Agreement, the failure of Customer to cure same within thirty (30) days of receiving written notice from
Provider regarding such non-compliance; or (iii) if Customer files or initiates proceedings, or has proceedings initiated against it,
seeking liquidation, reorganization or other relief (such as the appointment of a trustee, receiver, liquidator, custodian or other
such official) under any bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law, and the same is not dismissed within sixty (60) days.

5.2 Remedies for Customer Default. In the event of a Default by Customer under the Agreement, Provider may, at its option:
(i) suspend any applicable Services until such time as the Customer Default has been corrected (provided, however, that any
suspension shall not relieve Customer’s on-going obligation to pay Provider all Fees and other amounts due under the Agreement
as if such suspension of Services had not taken place); (ii) terminate the applicable Service(s) and/or the applicable Service
Order(s); (iii) after the occurrence of any two Customer Defaults in any twelve (12) month period, terminate all Service Orders
entered into with Customer; and/or (iv) pursue any other remedy available to Provider under the Agreement or applicable law. In
the event of early termination for Customer Default pursuant to this Section 5.2, Customer shall pay to Provider the Termination
Charge described in Section 6.3 below.

5.3 Provider Default. Each of the following shall constitute a Default by Provider under the Agreement: (i) if Provider fails to
comply with any material provision of the Agreement other than provisions of the SLA, the failure by Provider to cure same within
thirty (30) days of receiving written notice from Customer regarding such non-compliance; or (ii) Provider files or Initiates
proceedings, or has proceedings initiated against it, seeking liquidation, reorganization or other relief (such as the appointment of
a trustee, receiver, liquidator, custodian or other such official) under any bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law, and the same
is not dismissed within sixty (60) days.

5.4 Remedies for Provider Default. In the event of a Default by Provider under the Agreement Customer may, at its option:
(i) terminate the applicable Service(s) and/or the applicable Service Order(s); and/or (ii) pursue any other remedy available to
Customer under the Agreement or applicable law. Early termination by Customer shall be accomplished by providing termination
notice to Customer’s account manager and to the notice address specified in Article 13 below. In the event of early termination
for Provider Default pursuant to this Section 5.4, Provider shall reimburse Customer for any pre-paid, unused monthly service Fees
attributable to the terminated Service(s) and/or Service Order(s), and Customer shall have no further liability to Provider for the
terminated Service(s) and/or Service Order(s). Early termination by Customer pursuant to this Section 5.4 shall not relieve
Customer of its obligations to pay all Fees incurred prior to the early termination date.

ARTICLE 6 — EARLY TERMINATION & PORTABILITY

6.1 Early Termination for Customer Convenience. Customer may, at any time after executing a Service Order, discontinue
one or more of the Services ordered and/or terminate the Service Order by giving at least thirty (30) days’ advance written
notice to Customer’s account manager and to the notice address specified in Article 13 below. Any early termination of a Service
pursuant to this Section 6.1 shall be referred to as “Termination for Customer Convenience.” In the event of Termination for
Customer Convenience, Customer shall pay to Provider the Termination Charge described in Section 6.3 below.

6.2 Early Termination for Default. Inaccordance with Article 5 above, either Party may elect to terminate one or more Service
Orders prior to the scheduled expiration date in the event of an uncured Default by the other Party.

6.3 Termination Charge. In the event of Termination for Customer Convenience pursuant to Section 6.1 above, or
termination for Customer Default pursuant to Section 5.2 above, Customer shall pay a Termination Charge to Provider. The
“Termination Charge” shall equal the sum of the following: (i) all unpaid amounts for Services actually provided prior to the
termination date; (ii) any portion of the NRC for the terminated Service(s) that has not yet been paid to Provider; (iii) with respect
to off-net Services only, any documented cancellation or termination charges or fees imposed on Provider by any third party in
connection with the early termination of the Services; and (iv) one hundred percent (100%) of all remaining MRCs Customer was
to pay Provider for the Service during the remainder of the applicable Service Term. If incurred, the Termination Charge will be
due and payable by Customer within thirty (30) days after the termination date of the Service at issue. Customer acknowledges

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR ENTERPRISE SERVICES pe. 3
Wave Business Solutions, LLC 01/22/2021

70



wave

business

that the calculation of the Termination Charge is a genuine estimate of Provider’s actual damages and is not a penalty.

6.4 Portability; Substitution of Services. At any time during the Service Term of a Service Order, Customer may elect to
substitute new Services for then-existing Services. In such event, Provider will waive the Termination Charge associated with
the termination of the then-existing Services as long as: (i) the Fees payable to Provider in connection with the substitute
Services are equal to or greater than the Fees of the discontinued Services; (ii) Customer commits to retain the substitute Services
for a period equal to or greater than the remainder of the Service Term for the discontinued Services; (iii) Customer pays all
applicable installation and other NRCs, if any, for provision of the substitute Services; and (iv) Customer reimburses Provider
for all reasonable and documented engineering, installation and construction costs associated with the discontinued Services,
calculated on a time and materials basis, that have not already been recovered by Provider by the time of the substitution.

ARTICLE 7 — CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

7.1 Definition of Confidential Information. “Confidential Information” shall mean all information, including the Agreement,
regarding the telecommunications needs of Customer and the Services that Provider offers under the Agreement which is disclosed
by one Party (“Disclosing Party”) to the other Party (“Receiving Party”), to the extent that such information is marked or identified
as confidential or proprietary or would be reasonably deemed confidential or proprietary given the circumstances surrounding its
disclosure. All written or oral pricing and contract proposals, as well as network maps or diagrams exchanged between the Parties
shall be deemed Confidential Information, whether or not so designated. The fact that Customer is a customer of Provider shall
not be deemed Confidential Information and may be freely disclosed by either Party. Information shall not be deemed Confidential
Information if (i} it is independently developed by or for the Receiving Party, (ii) it is lawfully received by the Receiving Party free
of any obligation to keep it confidential, (iii) it becomes generally available to the public other than by breach of the Agreement,
or (iv) it was known to the Receiving Party prior to the Disclosing Party’s disclosure of same.

7.2 Obligations Regarding Confidential Information. Confidential Information is the property of the Disclosing Party and shall
be returned to the Disclosing Party upon request. The Receiving Party shall hold all Confidential Information in confidence. The
Receiving Party: (i) shall use such Confidential Information only for the purposes of performing its obligations and/or enforcing its
rights under the Agreement; (ii) shall reproduce such Confidential Information only to the extent necessary for such purposes;
(iii) shall restrict disclosure of such Confidential Information to employees, contractors, advisors or consultants that have a need
to know for such purposes (with disclosure to contractors, advisors and consultants being limited to contractors, advisors and
consultants that have signed a non-disclosure agreement to protect the Confidential Information of third parties); (iv) shall not
disclose Confidential Information to any third party without prior written approval of the Disclosing Party except as expressly
provided in the Agreement or as required by law, by court order, by administrative order of an agency having jurisdiction, or in the
enforcement of its rights under the Agreement; and (v) shall use at least the same degree of care (in no event less than reasonable
care) as it uses with regard to its own proprietary or confidential information to prevent the disclosure, unauthorized use or
publication of Confidential Information, In the event a Receiving Party is required to disclose Confidential Information of the
Disclosing Party pursuant to law, court order or administrative order of an agency having jurisdiction, the Receiving Party will, if
such notice is permitted by law, notify the Disclosing Party of the required disclosure with sufficient time for the Disclosing Party
to seek judicial relief from the required disclosure, and reasonably cooperate with the Disclosing Party in any efforts the Disclosing
Party may take to obtain protective measures in respect to the required disclosure. The Parties agree that breach of this Article 7
may cause irreparable injury for which monetary damages are not an adequate remedy; accordingly, each Party may seek
injunctive relief and any other available equitable remedies to enforce the provisions of this Article 7.

ARTICLE 8 - LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

8.1 General Limitations. Provider shall not be liable for any loss or damage occasioned by a Force Majeure Event. Except as
expressly provided to the contrary elsewhere in the Agreement, Provider’s aggregate liability for any and all causes and claims
arising under the Agreement, whether based in contract, tort, warranty or otherwise shall be limited to the lesser of: (i) the actual
direct damages sustained by Customer; or (ii) an amount equivalent to the total MRC received by Provider from Customer for the
Service(s) at issue during the preceding twelve (12) month period.

8.2 Service Level Agreement. Should Provider fail, on any one or more occasions, to deliver any one or more Services to
Customer in accordance with all of the terms and conditions contained in the applicable SLA, Customer’s sole and exclusive remedy
for such failure shall be as set forth in the SLA. No such failure shall be considered a Default by Provider under the Agreement.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR ENTERPRISE SERVICES pg. 4
Wave Business Solutions, LLC 01/22/2021

/1



wave

business

8.3 No Special Damages. EXCEPT FOR (i) EACH PARTY'S CONFIDENTIALITY OBLIGATIONS UNDER ARTICLE 7 ABOVE, (ii) EACH
PARTY’S THIRD-PARTY INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS UNDER ARTICLE 9 BELOW, AND (iii) CLAIMS ARISING FROM A PARTY’S
INTENTIONAL MISCONDUCT, IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY FOR ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL,
SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, ARISING OUT OF OR INCURRED IN CONNECTION
WITH A PARTY’S PERFORMANCE OR FAILURE TO PERFORM UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING, BY WAY OF EXAMPLE AND NOT
BY WAY OF LIMITATION, LOST PROFITS, LOST REVENUE, LOSS OF GOODWILL, LOSS OF ANTICIPATED SAVINGS, LOSS OF BUSINESS
OPPORTUNITY, LOSS OF DATA OR COST OF PURCHASING REPLACEMENT SERVICES, EVEN IF THE OTHER PARTY HAD BEEN ADVISED,
KNEW OR SHOULD HAVE KNOWN OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH SPECIAL DAMAGES.

8.4 Disclaimer of Warranties. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, PROVIDER MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR
REPRESENTATIONS, EXPRESS, IMPLIED, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, EITHER IN FACT OR BY OPERATION OF LAW, AS TO THE
DESCRIPTION, QUALITY, MERCHANTABILITY, COMPLETENESS, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE OF ANY SERVICES
PROVIDED PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT.

8.5 Assumption of Risk. PROVIDER HAS NO CONTROL OVER AND EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY LIABILITY OR RESPONSIBILITY
WHATSOEVER FOR THE CONTENT OF ANY INFORMATION TRANSMITTED OR RECEIVED BY CUSTOMER THROUGH THE SERVICES,
SERVICE INTERRUPTIONS ATTRIBUTABLE TO CUSTOMER’'S NETWORK, ANY CUSTOMER EQUIPMENT FAILURES, OR ANY OTHER
SUCH CAUSES, AND CUSTOMER USES THE SERVICES AT CUSTOMER’S OWN RISK. CUSTOMER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE
SECURITY, CONFIDENTIALITY AND INTEGRITY OF INFORMATION CUSTOMER TRANSMITS OR RECEIVES USING ANY SERVICES.

8.6 Disclaimer Regarding HIPAA Compliance. If and to the extent Customer is a covered entity under the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”), and needs its business associates to comply with HIPAA, Provider hereby
notifies Customer that Provider’s operations are not compliant with HIPAA. Provider’s operations are generally exempt from
HIPAA pursuant to the conduit exception. However, if and to the extent the Services provided pursuant to any Service Order would
not qualify for the conduit exception, Provider’s operations with respect to the Services are not HIPAA complaint. Provider will
not execute a business associate agreement under HIPAA.

ARTICLE 9 -INDEMNIFICATION FOR THIRD PARTY CLAIMS

9.1 Indemnification by Customer. Customer shall indemnify, defend and hold Provider and its members, managers, officers,
agents and employees (collectively, the “Provider Indemnified Parties”) harmless from and against any and all claims, lawsuits
or damages asserted against the Provider Indemnified Parties by any third-party to the extent the same arise out of or are due to:
(i) Customer’s negligence or willful misconduct in exercising its rights or performing its obligations under the Agreement;
(i) Customer’s noncompliance with or Default under the Agreement; and/or (iii) Customer’s failure to comply with applicable
law in connection with its performance under the Agreement.

9.2 Indemnification by Provider. Provider shall indemnify, defend and hold Customer and its members, managers, officers,
agents and employees (collectively, the “Customer Indemnified Parties") harmless from and against any and all claims, lawsuits
or damages asserted against the Customer Indemnified Parties by any third-party to the extent the same arise out of or are due
to: (i) Provider’s negligence or willful misconduct in exercising its rights and performing its obligations under the Agreement;
(i) Provider’s noncompliance with or Default under the Agreement; and/or (iii) Provider’s failure to comply with applicable law in
connection with its performance under the Agreement.

9.3 Indemnification Procedures for Third-Party Claims. Should any third-party claim arise under this Article 9, the indemnified
Party shall promptly notify the indemnifying Party of same in writing, and shall take such action as may be necessary to avoid
default or other adverse consequences in connection with such claim. The indemnifying Party shall have the right to select counsel
and to control the defense and settlement of such claim; provided, however, that the indemnified Party shall be entitled to
participate in the defense of such claim and to employ counsel at its own expense to assist in handling the claim, and provided
further, that the indemnifying party shall not take any action in defense or settlement of the claim that would negatively im pact
the indemnified Party without the consent of the indemnified Party. The indemnified Party shall reasonably cooperate with the
indemnifying Party in the defense of the third-party claim, including making its files and personnel reasonably available to the
indemnifying Party, all at the cost and expense of the indemnifying Party.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR ENTERPRISE SERVICES pg.5
Wave Business Solutions, LLC 01/22/2021

(2



wave

business

ARTICLE 10 - FORCE MAJEURE EVENTS

Neither Party shall be liable for any delay in or failure of performance hereunder (other than Customer’s payment
obligations under Article 4) due to causes beyond such Party’s reasonable control including, but not limited to, acts of God, fire,
flood, earthquake, ice storms, wind storms, or other sever weather events, explosion, vandalism, cable cut, terrorist acts,
insurrection, riots or other civil unrest, national or regional emergency, unavailability of rights-of-way, a governmental authority’s
failure to timely act, inability to obtain equipment, material or other supplies due to strike, lockout or work stoppage, or any law,
order, regulation, direction, action or request of any civil or military governmental authority (each, a “Force Majeure Event”). If
any Force Majeure Event causes an increase in the time required for performance of any of its duties or obligations, the affected
Party shall be entitled to an equitable extension of time for completion. If the delay in performance caused by the Force Majeure
Event exceeds thirty (30) days, either Party may terminate the Agreement or the applicable Service Order(s) immediately on
written notice to the other Party, without incurring any liability in connection with such termination.

ARTICLE 11 - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

111 General Provisions. Except for actions seeking a temporary restraining order or injunction, or suits to compel compliance
with this dispute resolution process, the Parties agree to use the dispute resolution procedures set forth in this Article 11 with
respect to any controversy or claim (each, a “Dispute”) arising out of or relating to the Agreement. All discussions occurring and
documents exchanged pursuant to Sections 11.2 and 11.3 below are confidential and inadmissible for any purpose in any legal
proceeding involving the Parties; provided that evidence that is otherwise admissible or discoverable shall not be rendered
inadmissible or non-discoverable as a result of its use in the negotiation or mediation process.

11.2 Negotiations. Should any Dispute arise, either Party may give the other Party written notice of the Dispute (each, a
“Dispute Notice”). The Parties shall use good faith efforts to resolve the Dispute through negotiation within thirty (30) days of the
date on which the Dispute Notice is delivered. With respect to Fee disputes arising under Article 4, compliance with the negotiation
procedures described in Section 4.2 shall be in lieu of the provisions of this Section 11.2. If the Parties do not resolve the Dispute
within such thirty (30) day period, either of the Parties may submit the matter to non-binding mediation through a professional
mediation service. Any Dispute that is not resolved by negotiation and is not submitted to mediation shall be resolved by binding
arbitration pursuant to Section 11.4 below.

11.3 Mediation. If a Dispute is submitted to mediation, the Parties will cooperate in selecting a qualified mediator from a panel
of neutral mediators having experience in the telecommunications and broadband internet industry. The Parties shall share
equally in the costs of mediation. Any Dispute submitted to mediation that is not resolved within sixty (60) days of submitting the
Dispute to mediation shall be resolved by binding arbitration as provided in Section 11.4 below.

11.4 Binding Arbitration. Any arbitration hearing shall be before a single neutral arbitrator and shall be held in the New York,
New York offices of Judicial Arbitration & Mediation Services, Inc., or a similar professional dispute resolution organization. The
arbitration shall be administered pursuant to the commercial arbitration rules and procedures of the American Arbitration
Association. The Parties shall equally share the fees of the arbitrator. The Federal Arbitration Act, 9 U.S.C. §§ 1-15, not state law,
shall govern the arbitrabhility of all disputes.

11.5 Governing Law. The Agreement and all matters arising out of the Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State
of Delaware. Any judicial action arising in connection with the Agreement shall be in the Superior Court of the State of Delaware
in and for New Castle County, or in the Federal District Court for the District of Delaware, as applicable. Customer waives all
defenses of lack of personal jurisdiction and forum non conveniens. Each party irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent permitted
by law, trial by jury of any disputes, claims or issues arising under the Agreement.

ARTICLE 12 — ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION

Except as otherwise provided in this Article 12, neither Party shall assign, delegate or otherwise transfer the Agreement
or its obligations under the Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the other Party. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, either Party may, without the necessity of obtaining the other Party’s consent, assign its interest in and to the
Agreement to: (i} any entity acquiring such Party, whether by merger or through purchase of substantially all the assets of such
Party; (ii} a lender as an asset securing indebtedness; or (iii) an Affiliate of such party; provided, that in the event of a transfer to

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR ENTERPRISE SERVICES pe. 6
Wave Business Solutions, LLC 01/22/2021

/3



wave

business

an Affiliate, the transferring Party shall continue to remain liable for the obligations under the Agreement.

ARTICLE 13 — NOTICES

Unless otherwise provided elsewhere in the Agreement, any notice to be given to either Party under the Agreement will
be in writing. Notices to Provider shall be directed to Provider’s address set forth below. Notices to Customer shall be
directed to Customer’s addresses set forth in the applicable Service Order. Notices will be deemed received (i) the next
business day, when sent by reliable, commercial overnight courier; (i) three (3) business days after being sent by certified
mail, postage prepaid and return receipt requested; (iii) when actually received, if sent by email during the business hours of
9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. (recipient’s time). Notices received after 5:00 p.m. (recipient’s time) will be effective the next business day.

Provider’s Address for Notices: With a Copy to:

Wave Business Solutions, LLC Wave Business Solutions, LLC
3700 Monte Villa Parkway 650 College Road East, Suite 3100
Bothell, WA 98021 Princeton, NJ 08540

ATTN: Business Solutions ATTN: Legal Department

Either Party may change its notice address by giving notice to the other Party in accordance with this Article.

ARTICLE 14 - REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS

Each Party represents and covenants to the other as follows: (i) the execution and delivery of the Agreement and the
performance of its obligations hereunder have been duly authorized; (ii) the Agreement is a valid and legal agreement binding
on such parties and enforceable in accordance with its terms; (iii) to the best of its knowledge and belief, it is in material compliance
with all laws, rules and regulations and court and governmental orders related to the operation of its business; and (iv) it shall
comply with all applicable laws and regulations when exercising its rights and performing its obligations under the Agreement.

ARTICLE 15 — MISCELLANEOUS

15.1 Entire Agreement; Interpretation. The Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties regarding the
subject matter hereof, and supersedes any and all prior oral or written agreements between the Parties regarding the subject
matter contained herein. The Agreement may only be modified or supplemented by an instrument executed by an authorized
representative of each Party. The Agreement and each of the terms and provisions of it are deemed to have been explicitly
negotiated by the Parties, and the language in all parts of the Agreement shall, in all cases, be construed according to its fair
meaning and not strictly for or against either of the Parties. If any provision of the Agreement or the application thereof to any
person or circumstance shall, for any reason and to any extent, be found invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the Agreement
and the application of that provision to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby, but shall instead continuein
full force and effect.

15.2 No Waiver, No failure by either Party to enforce any rights hereunder will constitute a waiver of such rights. Nor
shall a waiver by either Party of any particular breach or default constitute a waiver of any other breach or default or any similar
future breach or default. Provider’s acceptance of any payment under the Agreement will not constitute an accord or any other
form of acknowledgement or satisfaction that the amount paid is in fact the correct amount, and acceptance of a payment will
not release any claim by Provider for additional amounts due from Customer.

15.3 Attorneys’ Fees. If any proceeding is brought by a Party to enforce or interpret any term or provision of the Agreement,
the substantially prevailing Party in such proceeding will be entitled to recover, in addition to all other relief as set forth in the
Agreement, that Party’s reasonable attorneys’ and experts’ fees and expenses.

15.4  Relationship; No Third Party Beneficiaries. The Agreement is a commercial contract between Provider and Customer
and the relationship between the Parties is that of independent contractors. Nothing in the Agreement creates any partnership,
principal- agent, employer-employee or joint venture relationship between the Parties or any of their Affiliates, agents or
employees for any purpose. The Agreement is for the sole benefit of Provider and Customer and is not intended to confer any
rights on any other person; there are no third party beneficiaries of the Agreement.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR ENTERPRISE SERVICES pg. 7
Wave Business Solutions, LLC 01/22/2021

4



wave

business

15.5 Exhibits. The following Exhibits, which are attached to these T&Cs, are incorporated herein and by this reference made a
part of these T&Cs:

EXHIBITA -  Service Level Agreement for Lit Fiber Services
EXHIBITB -  Service Level Agreement for Dark Fiber & Wavelength Services

15.6 Computation of Time. Except where expressly provided to the contrary, as used in the Agreement, the word “day” shall
mean “calendar day,” and the computation of time shall include all Saturdays, Sundays and holidays for purposes of determining
time periods specified in the Agreement. If the final date of any period of time set out in any provision of the Agreement falls upon
a Saturday or a Sunday or a legal holiday, then in such event, the time of such period shall be extended to the next day that is not
a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday. As used in the Agreement, the term “business day” shall mean a day that is not a Saturday,
Sunday or a legal holiday.

15.7 Counterparts; Electronic Signatures. Any Service Order entered into by the Parties pursuant to these T&Cs may be
executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original, and all of which shall constitute one and the
same instrument. Any executed documents sent to the other Party in portable document format (pdf) images via email will be
considered the same as an original document. The Parties consent to the use of electronic signatures.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR ENTERPRISE SERVICES pe. 8
Wave Business Solutions, LLC 01/22/2021

75



wave

business

EXHIBIT A
to
Standard Terms and Conditions for Enterprise Services

Service Level Agreement for Lit Fiber Services

This Service Level Agreement for Lit Fiber Services (this “SLA") is a part of is a part of Wave Business Solutions, LLC's (“WAVE's")
Standard Terms and Conditions for Enterprise Services (“T&Cs"). Unless otherwise provided in the applicable Service Order, this

SLA applies to the following types of lit fiber Services provided by WAVE pursuant to the T&Cs: (a) dedicated Internet access
services, (b) Ethernet transport services, and (c) voice services, including hosted voice.

1. AVAILABILITY SLA
WAVE's Network is designed to provide a target Availability of at least 99.99% per month. If the Availability target is not achieved

in a given calendar month, Customer shall be entitled to the remedies set forth in the table below, which must be claimed as
described in this SLA.

: Customer Credit as % of MRC for
el t f .
Target Availability Duration of Service Outage the applicable Circuit*
Less than 4 minutes 20 seconds Target Met
4 min. 20 sec. up to 2 hours 5%
s sns > 2 hour up to 6 hours 10%
9.99% Availabilit
g AGRDNY > 6 hours up to 12 hours 20%
> 12 hours up to 24 hours 35%
> 24 hours 50%

*Customer credits for Unavailability are calculated on an individual circuit basis, and the amount of any credit
is based on the portion of MRC allocable to the affected circuit.

2. MEAN TIME TO RESTORE (“MTTR") SLA

In the event of Outages in Services due to failure or malfunction of the WAVE Network or WAVE Equipment, WAVE’s CNOC is
designed to provide a MTTR of 6 hours or less. If the target MTTR is not met for a particular circuit in a given calendar month, and

Customer receives a Service from WAVE on the circuit at issue, then Customer shall be entitled to remedies set forth in the table
helow, which must be claimed as described in this SLA.

Customer Credit
Target MTTR Actual MTTR as % of MRC for the
applicable Circuit
<6 Hrs. Target Met
> 6 Hrs. to 10 Hrs. 5%
BF TR > 10 Hrs. to 18 Hrs. 10%
> 18 Hrs. 20%

3. PACKET DELIVERY/PACKET LOSS SLA

The WAVE Network is designed to provide no greater than 0.1% Packet Loss. If the Packet Loss target is not achieved in a given
calendar month, Customer shall be entitled to the remedies set forth in the table below, which must be claimed as described in

this SLA. Customer credits for average monthly Packet Loss are calculated on an individual circuit basis, and the amount of any
credit is based on the portion of MRC allocable to the affected circuit.

EXHIBIT A: SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT FOR LIT FIBER SERVICES

pg. 9
Wave Business Solutions, LLC 01/22/2021

76



wave

business
Target Maximum Actual Packet Loss Customercieait
as % of MRC for the
Packet Loss (lower end — upper end) . et
applicable Circuit
0% - 0.1% Target Met
>0.1% - 0.4% 5%
< 0.1% Packet Loss >0.4% - 0.7% 10%
>0.7% - 1.0% 25%
>1.0% 50%
4, LATENCY SLA

The WAVE Network is designed to provide a monthly average one-way Latency not to exceed the following:

e For “Local Market” distances of < 75 miles = 10 ms
e For “Inter-Market” distances of between 76 — 750 miles = 20 ms
e For “Long-Haul” distances of > 750 miles = 50 ms

If the applicable Latency target is not achieved in a given month and WAVE does not remedy the problem within fifteen (15)
calendar days from the date on which Customer opens a Trouble Ticket with the WAVE CNOC regarding excessive Latency,
Customer shall be entitled to the remedies set forth in the table below, which must be claimed as described in this SLA.

Credi
Target Target Target Actual One-Way CstomerCredit
as % of MRC for
Local Market | Inter-Market Long-Haul Latency ]
the applicable
Latency Latency Latency (lower end - upper end) I
Circuit
< Target Latency Target Met
> Target up to 8 ms over Target 5%
10 msorless | 20 msorless | 50 ms or less > 8 ms up to 15 ms over Target 10%
> 15 ms up to 20 ms over Target 25%
> 20 ms over Target 50%

5. NETWORK JITTER SLA
The WAVE Backbone Network is designed to have a monthly average one-way Network Jitter not to exceed the following:

e For Local Market distances of £ 75 miles = 2 ms
e For Inter-Market distances of between 76 — 750 miles = 5 ms
e For Long-Haul distances of > 750 miles = 15 ms

If the applicable Network Jitter target is exceeded in a given calendar month, Customer will be entitled to a credit of 1/30% of the
MRC of the affected circuit for that month for each full 1ms of Network Jitter above the Network Jitter target set forth above. Any
such credit must be claimed as described in this SLA.

6. CHRONIC OUTAGE

If Customer experiences a Chronic Outage with respect to a Service, Customer shall have the right to elect either of the following
remedies, which must be claimed as described in this SLA: (i) substitute a different Service or a different circuit/path for the Service
and circuit/path that experienced the Chronic Outage without incurring any Termination Charge or installation fees; or
(if) terminate the affected Service for the circuit/path that experienced the Chronic Outage without incurring any Termination
Charge.

7. DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this SLA the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below.

“Availability” means the ability of Customer to exchange Ethernet packets with the WAVE Network via Customer’s router port.

EXHIBIT A: SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT FOR LIT FIBER SERVICES pg. 10
Wave Business Solutions, LLC 01/22/2021

7



wave

business

Availability is measured in minutes of uptime over the calendar month during which the Services are Available:

% Availability = (Total Minutes in Month — Total Minutes of Unavailability in Month)
(per calendar month) Total Minutes in Month

For Ethernet Transport Services and VolP Services, Availability is calculated at the individual circuit level, between WAVE’s
Backbone Network and the Customer’s router port. For Dedicated Internet Access Services, Availability is calculated from the
Customer’s router port through the WAVE Network to the handoff point for the Internet. Dedicated Internet Access Service
Availability does not include the availability of the Internet itself or any particular Internet resource. Periods of Excused Outage
are not included in Availability metrics.

“Chronic OQutage” means a series of three (3) or more Service Outages affecting the same Service on the same circuit during a given
calendar month, each of which has an actual time to restore “TTR" in excess of WAVE’s targeted MTTR.

“Emergency Maintenance” means WAVE’s efforts to correct conditions on the WAVE Network that are likely to cause a material
disruption to or outage in services provided by WAVE and which require immediate action. Emergency Maintenance may degrade
the quality of the Services provided to Customer, including possible outages. Any such outages are Excused Outages that will not
entitle Customer to credits under this SLA. WAVE may undertake Emergency Maintenance at any time WAVE deems necessary
and will provide Customer with notice of such Emergency Maintenance as soon as commercially practicable under the
circumstances.

“Excused Outage” means any disruption to or unavailability of Services caused by or due to (i) Scheduled Maintenance,
(ii) Emergency Maintenance, or (iii) circumstances beyond WAVE’s reasonable control, such as, by way of example only, Force
Majeure Events, acts or omissions of Customer or Customer’s agents, licensees or end users, electrical outages not caused by
WAVE, or any failure, unavailability, interruption or delay of third-party telecommunications network components the use of which
are reasonably necessary for WAVE's delivery of the Services to Customer.

“litter” or “Network Jitter” refers to a variation in the interval at which packets are received, also described as the variability in
Latency as measured in the variability over time of the packet Latency across a network. Jitter is calculated as an aggregate average
monthly metric measured by WAVE across the WAVE Backbone Network between a sample of WAVE POPs. Local access loops are
not included. Periods of Excused Qutage are not included in Jitter metrics.

“Latency” means how much time it takes, measured in milliseconds, for a packet of data to get from one designated point on
WAVE’s Network to another designated point on WAVE’s Network. Latency is calculated as an aggregate average monthly metric
measured by WAVE across the WAVE Backbone Network between a sample of WAVE POPs. Local access loops are not included.
Periods of Excused Outage are not included in Latency metrics.

“Mean Time to Restore” or “MTTR"” means the average time required to restore the WAVE Network to a normally operating state
in the event of an Outage. MTTR is calculated on a circuit basis, as a monthly average of the time it takes WAVE to repair all Service
Outages on the specific circuit. MTTR is measured from the time an Outage related Trouble Ticket is generated by the WAVE CNOC
until the time the Service is again Available. The cumulative length of Service Outages per circuit is divided by the number of
Trouble Tickets in the billing month to derive the monthly MTTR per circuit:

MTTR in Hrs = Cumulative Length of Service Qutages Per Month Per Circuit
(per calendar month) Total Number of Trouble Tickets for Service Qutages Per Month Per Circuit

Periods of Excused Qutage are not included in MTTR metrics.

“Outage” means a disruption in the Service making the Service completely unavailable to Customer that is not an Excused Outage.
For purposes of SLA-related credits and remedies, the period of unavailability begins when an Outage-related Trouble Ticket is
opened by the Customer and ends when the connection is restored, as measured by WAVE. Unavailability does not include periods
of Service degradation, such as slow data transmission.

EXHIBIT A: SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT FOR LIT FIBER SERVICES pg. 11
Wave Business Solutions, LLC 01/22/2021

/8



wave

business

“Packet Loss” means the unintentional discarding of data packets in a network when a device (e.g., switch, router, etc.) is
overloaded and cannot accept any incoming data. Packet Loss is calculated as aggregate average monthly metric measured by
WAVE across the WAVE Backbone Network between a sample of WAVE POPs. Local access loops are not included. Periods of
Excused Outage are not included in Packet Loss metrics.

“Scheduled Maintenance” means any maintenance of the portion of the WAVE Network to which Customer’s router is connected
that is performed during a standard maintenance window (1:00AM — 6:00AM Local Time). Customer will be notified via email at
least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of any scheduled maintenance that is likely to affect Customer’s Service.

“Trouble Ticket” means a trouble ticket generated through the WAVE CNOC upon notification of a Service-related problem.
Trouble Tickets may be generated by WAVE pursuant to its internal network monitoring process, or by Customer’s reporting of a
problem to the WAVE CNOC. In order for Customer to be eligible for credits or remedies under this SLA, Customer must contact
the WAVE CNOC and open a Trouble Ticket regarding the problem; Trouble Tickets generated internally by WAVE will not provide
a basis for Customer credits or Chronic Outage remedies.

“WAVE Backbone Network” means WAVE's core fiber backbone that connects WAVE’s POPs and regional hubs.

“WAVE’s Commercial Network Operations Center” or “WAVE’s CNOC” means WAVE’s commercial network operations center,
which is staffed 24x7x365 and can be reached at: 888-317-0488.

“WAVE Network” means all equipment, facilities and infrastructure that WAVE uses to provide Services to Customer, and includes
Customer’s access port. The “WAVE Network” does not include Customer owned or leased equipment (unless leased from WAVE),
or any portion of Customer’s local area network after the demarcation point for the Services provided by WAVE.

8. CLAIMING CREDITS AND REMEDIES

8.1 Requesting SLA Related Credits and Chronic Outage Remedies. To be eligible for any SLA-related Service credit
or Chronic Outage remedy, Customer must be current in its financial obligations to WAVE. Credits are exclusive of any applicable
taxes charged to Customer or collected by WAVE.

(i) To claim SLA-related Service credits, Customer must do the following:

(a) Open a Trouble Ticket with the WAVE CNOC within twenty-four (24) hours of the occurrence
giving rise to the claimed credit(s);

(b) Submit a written request for the credit(s) to Customer’s account manager within fifteen (15)
days after the end of the calendar month in which the incident giving rise to the credit(s)
occurred; and

(c) Provide the following documentation when requesting the credit(s):
e Customer name and contact information;
e Trouble Ticket number(s);
e Date and beginning/end time of the claimed Outage or failed SLA metric;
e Circuit IDs for each pertinent circuit/path; and
e Brief description of the characteristics of the claimed Outage or failed SLA metric.

(ii) To claim remedies for a Chronic Outage under this SLA, Customer must do the following:

(a) Open a Trouble Ticket regarding the Chronic Outage with the WAVE CNOC within seventy-two
(72) hours of the last Outage giving rise to the claimed remedy;

(b) Submit a written request for a remedy regarding the Chronic Outage to Customer’s account
manager within thirty (30) days of the end of the calendar month in which the Chronic Outage
occurred; and

(c) Provide the following documentation when requesting the remedy:
e Customer name and contact information;

EXHIBIT A: SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT FOR LIT FIBER SERVICES pg. 12
Wave Business Solutions, LLC 01/22/2021

79



wave

business

* Type of remedy requested (e.g., substitution or termination);

= Trouble Ticket numbers for each individual Outage event;

e Date and beginning/end time of each of the claimed Outages;

* Trouble Ticket number for the Chronic Outage at issue;

» Circuit IDs for each pertinent circuit/path; and

» Brief description of the characteristics of the claimed Chronic Outage.

If Customer fails to timely submit, pursuant to the procedure described in this Section, a request for any SLA-related credit or
Service Outage remedy for which Customer might otherwise be eligible under this SLA, Customer shall be deemed to have waived
its right to receive such credit or remedy. The credits and remedies provided by this SLA are Customer’s sole and exclusive
remedies for any and all claims or complaints regarding the quality and/or availability of any of the Services to which this SLA
applies.

8.2 WAVE'’s Evaluation of Claims. All claims for SLA-related credits and remedies for Chronic Outages are subject to
evaluation and verification by WAVE. Upon receiving a claim for SLA-related credit and/or remedies for Chronic Outage, WAVE
will evaluate the claim and respond to Customer within thirty (30) days. If WAVE requires additional information in order to
evaluate Customer’s claim, WAVE will notify Customer by email specifying what additional information is required. Customer will
have fifteen (15) days from the date on which it receives WAVE's request for additional information in which to provide the
requested information to WAVE. If Customer fails to provide the additional information within that time period, Customer will be
deemed to have abandoned its claim. WAVE will promptly notify Customer of WAVE’s resolution of each Customer claim. If
Customer’s claim for an SLA-related credit or Chronic Outage remedy is rejected, the notification will specify the basis for the
rejection. If Customer’s claim for a credit is approved, WAVE will issue the credit to Customer’s account, to appear on the next
monthly invoice. If Customer’s claim for a Chronic Outage remedy is approved, WAVE will notify Customer of the date on which
the requested substitution or termination will occur. WAVE's determination regarding whether or not an SLA has been violated
shall be final.

8.3 Limitations and Exclusions. Total credits for any given calendar month shall not exceed 100% of the MRC for the
affected Service. Credits shall not be cumulative with respect to any given incident; instead, if multiple SLAs are violated during a
single incident, Customer shall be entitled only to the largest applicable credit amount. This SLA will not apply and Customer will
not be entitled to any credit under this SLA for any impairment of Services that is caused by or due to any of the following: (i) the
acts or omissions of Customer, its agents, employees, contractors, or Customer’s end users, or other persons authorized by
Customer to access, use or modify the Services or the equipment used to provide the Services, including Customer’s use of the
Service in an unauthorized or unlawful manner; (ii) the failure of or refusal by Customer to reasonably cooperate with WAVE in
diagnosing and troubleshooting problems with the Services; (iii) scheduled Service alteration, maintenance or implementation;
(iv) the failure or malfunction of network equipment or facilities not owned or controlled by WAVE or WAVE's Affiliates; (v) Force
Majeure Events; (vi) WAVE’s inability (due to no fault of WAVE) to access facilities or equipment as reasonably required to
troubleshoot, repair, restore or prevent degradation of the Service; (vii) WAVE’s termination of the Service for cause, or as
otherwise authorized by the Agreement; or (viii) WAVE’s inability to deliver Service by Customer’s desired due date.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]

EXHIBIT A: SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT FOR LIT FIBER SERVICES pg. 13
Wave Business Solutions, LLC 01/22/2021

30



wave

business
EXHIBIT B
to

Standard Terms and Conditions for Enterprise Services

Service Level Agreement for Dark Fiber & Wavelength Services

This Service Level Agreement for Dark Fiber & Wavelength Services (this “SLA”) is a part of Wave Business Solutions, LLC's
(“WAVE's") Standard Terms and Conditions for Enterprise Services (“T&Cs”). Unless otherwise provided in the applicable Service
Order, this SLA applies to the following types of Services provided by WAVE pursuant to the T&Cs: (i) dark fiber services, and
(i) wavelength services.

L AVAILABILITY SLA

WAVE's dark fiber paths and wavelengths are designed to provide a target Availability of at least 99.9% per calendar month. If the
Availability target is not met with respect to a given dark fiber path or wavelength in a given calendar month, Customer will be
entitled to a credit in the amount set forth below, which must be claimed as described in this SLA. Customer credits for Outages
of dark fiber or wavelength Services are calculated on an individual path basis, and the amount of any credit is based on the portion
of MRC allocable to the affected Service.

Customer Credit
Duration of Unavailability as % of MRC for the
applicable Service
Less than 45 minutes Target Met
45 Min. up to 8 hours 5%
> 8 hours up to 16 hours 10%
> 16 hours up to 24 hours 20%
> 24 hours 35%
2. MEAN TIME TO RESTORE (“MTTR”) SLA

In the event of Outages in the Services, WAVE’s CNOC is designed to provide a MTTR of no greater than 6 hours. If the target
MTTR is not met for a particular dark fiber path or wavelength in a given calendar month, and Customer receives a Service from
WAVE on the path at issue, then Customer shall be entitled to remedies set forth in the table below, which must be claimed as
described in this SLA.

Customer Credit
Target MTTR Actual MTTR as % of MRC for the
applicable Service
< 6 Hrs. Target Met
> 6 Hrs. to 10 Hrs. 5%
&hr MTTR > 10 Hrs. to 18 Hrs. 10%
> 18 Hrs. 20%
3. CHRONIC OUTAGE

If Customer experiences a Chronic Outage with respect to a Service, Customer shall have the right to elect either of the following
remedies, which must be claimed as described in this SLA: (i) substitute a different Service or a different path for the Service that
experienced the Chronic Outage withoutincurring any Termination Charge or installation fees; or (i) terminate the affected Service
for the path that experienced the Chronic Outage without incurring any Termination Charge.

EXHIBIT B: SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT FOR DARK FIBER & WAVELENGTH SERVICES pe. 14
Wave Business Solutions, LLC 01/22/2021

31



e

4. DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this SLA the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below.

“Availability” means the dark fibers or the wavelength at issue is available to and accessible by Customer at the specified locations,
is capable of transmitting signals and can otherwise be used by Customer. Availability does not involve the quality of data
transmission. Periods of Excused Outage are not included in the Availability metric. WAVE does not monitor the use or availability
of dark fiber or wavelength Services, thus any Outage must be reported to WAVE by Customer.

“Chronic Outage” means a series of three (3) or more Service Outages affecting the same Service on the path during a given
calendar month, each of which has an actual time to restore “TTR" in excess of WAVE’s targeted MTTR.

“Emergency Maintenance” means WAVE's efforts to correct conditions on the WAVE Network that are likely to cause a material
disruption to or outage in Services provided by WAVE and which require immediate action. Emergency Maintenance may degrade
the quality of the Services provided to Customer, including possible outages. Any such outages are Excused Outages that will not
entitle Customer to credits under this SLA. WAVE may undertake Emergency Maintenance at any time WAVE deems necessary
and will provide Customer with notice of such Emergency Maintenance as soon as commercially practicable under the
circumstances.

”

“Excused Outage” means any disruption to or unavailability of Services caused by or due to (i) Scheduled Maintenance,
(ii) Emergency Maintenance, or (iii) circumstances beyond WAVE's reasonable control, such as, by way of example only, Force
Majeure Events, acts or omissions of Customer or Customer’s agents, licensees or end users, electrical outages not caused by
WAVE, or any failure, unavailability, interruption or delay of third-party telecommunications network components the use of which
are reasonably necessary for WAVE’s delivery of the Services to Customer.

“Mean Time to Restore” or “MTTR” means the average time required to restore the Service(s) to a normally operating state in the
event of an Outage. MTTR is calculated on a path/route basis, as a monthly average of the time it takes WAVE to repair all Service
Outages on the specific path/route. MTTR is measured from the time Customer opens an Outage related Trouble Ticket is with
the WAVE CNOC until the time the Service is again Available. The cumulative length of Service Outages per circuit is divided by the
number of Trouble Tickets in the billing month to derive the monthly MTTR per circuit:

MTTR in Hrs = Cumulative Length of Service Qutages Per Month Per Circuit
(per calendar month) Total Number of Trouble Tickets for Service Outages Per Month Per Circuit

Periods of Excused Outage are not included in MTTR metrics.

“Outage” means a disruption in the Service making the Service completely unavailable to Customer that is not an Excused Outage.
For purposes of SLA-related credits and remedies, the period of unavailability begins when an Outage-related Trouble Ticket is
opened by the Customer and ends when the connection is restored, as measured by WAVE. Unavailability does not include periods
of Service degradation, such as slow data transmission.

“Scheduled Maintenance” means any maintenance of the portion of the WAVE Network to which Customer’s demarc is connected
that is performed during a standard maintenance window (1:00AM — 6:00AM Local Time). Customer will be notified via email at
least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of any scheduled maintenance that is likely to affect Customer’s Service.

“Trouble Ticket” means a trouble ticket generated through the WAVE CNOC upon notification of a Service-related problem. In
order for Customer to be eligible for credits or remedies under this SLA, Customer must contact the WAVE CNOC and open a
Trouble Ticket regarding the problem.

“WAVE's Commercial Network Operations Center” or “WAVE’s CNOC” means WAVE’s commercial network operations center,
which is staffed 24x7x365 and can be reached at: 888-317-0488.

“WAVE Network” means all equipment, facilities and infrastructure that WAVE uses to provide Services to Customer, and includes

EXHIBIT B: SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT FOR DARK FIBER & WAVELENGTH SERVICES pg. 15
Wave Business Solutions, LLC 01/22/2021

82



wave

business

Customer’s access port. The “WAVE Network” does not include Customer owned or leased equipment (unless leased from WAVE),
or any portion of Customer’s local area network after the demarcation point for the Services provided by WAVE.

5. CLAIMING CREDITS AND REMEDIES

5.1 Reguesting SLA Related Credits and Chronic Outage Remedies. To be eligible for any SLA-related Service credit
or Chronic Outage remedy, Customer must be current in its financial obligations to WAVE. Credits are exclusive of any applicable
taxes charged to Customer or collected by WAVE.

(i) To claim SLA-related Service credits, Customer must do the following:

(a) Open a Trouble Ticket with the WAVE CNOC within twenty-four (24) hours of the occurrence
giving rise to the claimed credit(s);

(b) Submit a written request for the credit(s) to Customer’s account manager within fifteen (15)
days after the end of the calendar month in which the incident giving rise to the credit(s)
occurred; and

(c) Provide the following documentation when requesting the credit(s):
» Customer name and contact information;
s Trouble Ticket number(s);
¢ Date and beginning/end time of the claimed Outage or failed SLA metric;
e Circuit IDs for each pertinent circuit/path; and
» Brief description of the characteristics of the claimed Outage or failed SLA metric.

(ii) To claim remedies for a Chronic Outage under this SLA, Customer must do the following:

(a) Open a Trouble Ticket regarding the Chronic Outage with the WAVE CNOC within seventy-two
(72) hours of the last Outage giving rise to the claimed remedy;

(b) Submit a written request for a remedy regarding the Chronic Outage to Customer’s account
manager within thirty (30) days of the end of the calendar month in which the Chronic Outage
occurred; and

(c) Provide the following documentation when requesting the remedy:
e Customer name and contact information;
e Type of remedy requested (e.g., substitution or termination);
e Trouble Ticket numbers for each individual Outage event;
e Date and beginning/end time of each of the claimed Outages;
e Trouble Ticket number for the Chronic Outage at issue;
e Circuit IDs for each pertinent circuit/path; and
» Brief description of the characteristics of the claimed Chronic Outage.

If Customer fails to timely submit, pursuant to the procedure described in this Section, a request for any SLA-related credit or
Service Outage remedy for which Customer might otherwise be eligible under this SLA, Customer shall be deemed to have waived
its right to receive such credit or remedy. The credits and remedies provided by this SLA are Customer’s sole and exclusive
remedies for any and all claims or complaints regarding the quality and/or availability of any of the Services to which this SLA
applies.

5.2 WAVE’s Evaluation of Claims. All claims for SLA-related credits and remedies for Chronic Outages are subject to
evaluation and verification by WAVE. Upon receiving a claim for SLA-related credit and/or remedies for Chronic Outage, WAVE
will evaluate the claim and respond to Customer within thirty (30) days. If WAVE requires additional information in order to
evaluate Customer’s claim, WAVE will notify Customer by email specifying what additional information is required. Customer will
have fifteen (15) days from the date on which it receives WAVE’s request for additional information in which to provide the
requested information to WAVE. If Customer fails to provide the additional information within that time period, Customer will be
deemed to have abandoned its claim. WAVE will promptly notify Customer of WAVE’s resolution of each Customer claim. If
Customer’s claim for an SLA-related credit or Chronic Outage remedy is rejected, the notification will specify the basis for the
rejection. If Customer’s claim for a credit is approved, WAVE will issue the credit to Customer’s account, to appear on the next

EXHIBIT B: SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT FOR DARK FIBER & WAVELENGTH SERVICES pg. 16
Wave Business Solutions, LLC 01/22/2021

83



wave

business

monthly invoice. If Customer’s claim for a Chronic Outage remedy is approved, WAVE will notify Customer of the date on which
the requested substitution or termination will occur. WAVE’s determination regarding whether or not an SLA has been violated
shall be final.

5.3 Limitations and Exclusions. Total credits for any given calendar month shall not exceed 100% of the MRC for the
affected Service. Credits shall not be cumulative with respect to any given incident; instead, if multiple SLAs are violated during a
single incident, Customer shall be entitled only to the largest applicable credit amount. This SLA will not apply and Customer will
not be entitled to any credit under this SLA for any impairment of Services that is caused by or due to any of the following: (i) the
acts or omissions of Customer, its agents, employees, contractors, or Customer’s end users, or other persons authorized by
Customer to access, use or modify the Services or the equipment used to provide the Services, including Customer’s use of the
Service in an unauthorized or unlawful manner; (ii) the failure of or refusal by Customer to reasonably cooperate with WAVE in
diagnosing and troubleshooting problems with the Services; (iii) scheduled Service alteration, maintenance or implementation;
(iv) the failure or malfunction of network equipment or facilities not owned or controlled by WAVE or WAVE’s Affiliates; (v) Force
Majeure Events; (vi) WAVE’s inability (due to no fault of WAVE) to access facilities or equipment as reasonably required to
troubleshoot, repair, restore or prevent degradation of the Service; (vii) WAVE’s termination of the Service for cause, or as
otherwise authorized by the Agreement; or (viii) WAVE's inability to deliver Service by Customer’s desired due date.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]

EXHIBIT B: SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT FOR DARK FIBER & WAVELENGTH SERVICES pg. 17
Wave Business Solutions, LLC 01/22/2021

384



TVILNIQIINOD NV AYV13IIddOYd

1202/¥/0T 121351Q uoilexodsuel] Ajunod joowe|jil / J77 ‘SUOIIN|OS ssaulsng AR
1°9d H3AHO IDINY3S
wald ‘TrTL6 * Moowe|iL
00°0S 00°0S S6'7S S6'VS T sno ‘¥ 31S IS P4€ 009€ dnous juny
wald ‘Tr1L6 ' “oowejiL J131ua) 19BIU0)
66'66S | 66'665 00'86S 00'86S T ; isn) ‘¥ 31S ‘IS PI€ 009€ pnoj) pajueyu3 pjos
wiaid “TYTL6 ‘ oowe||L
00'0S | 0005 00°0TS 00°SS 4 . 5N v 315 ‘1S PAE 009€ | @ui] adueyox3 ugiiod
walid “TvTL6 * Yoowe|iL
00'0S | 00°0% 98°59Z$ 66'8TS 2" snD ‘¥ 115 IS PIE 009E 05-T¢ 1836 ssa.dx3
wiaid ‘TrTL6 * Moowe|iL
00'0S | 000S S6'69% 66°'ETS S 1sn) v 115 1S p4€ 009€ 0S-TT 1835 |BI3Uass]
wiald ‘TrTL6 “ Hoowe|iL
00°0% 00°S$ 1snD ‘¥ 31S 1S PJE 009€E 1leWa3I0A pasueyuy

L Ee
J¥N TV1OL 1INN /J¥IN umM%u.m $53¥aav J01-v uxm_w_.w.N (AMVINIM) SSIHAAY D0T-Z 3L 3NIT1ONA0Yd

:Mojaq Yoy 19s (,JUIN,,) S281eyD adialas m:t..:uE Alqauow ayy pue ‘(,DYN,,) @31eyd uoine||eisul Suliinaal

-uou ‘awn-auo ay} Joj adueyoxa ul ‘(335 SIAISS,, € ‘Yoea) mojaq yuioy) 18s (s)uonedo] ayi 1e ‘(,SIAISS,, B ‘Yoed) MO[3q Y140} 195 SIDIAISS DY) JBWO0ISND 0} apiaoid |jeys Japlao.d

asudiaul syjuow 09
IN3JIND3IS INH3L 3DIAYES 1V

- PI2yaT ueg 991¢SZd0 TOS6EVICT - 8¢
d3d SITVS LNNOJJDV H3IGNNN JONIYIITH HA9ININN LNNOJ2JV

HIFGIANN INOHd SSaNIsng JOVLINOD INILYNHILTY $S34AAv 5NiTg
W02'SNEY OOWE||13@ PUOQD :|Iew ]

:3|IqoN 11sIg uoeodsuel |

£808-75€-€E0G 2340 puog Ayied Auno) yoowe|iL

O4NI LOVINOD JINVN 1DVINOD Y3Nol1snd

'S$J7g.L 8yl Ul Wayl 0} UaA|S sulueaw ay3 aAeY ||BYS JBPJQO BDIAISS SIY] Ul PRULSSP 10U 1Ng Pasn swua) pazijended ||y "2ouaJaad siyl Aq JapI0 221135 S1Y3 03Ul pajelodioou
ale syl ayl '(,5281, 3Yl) SR -9SHAISIUT/W0I SSaUISNGRAEM//:AT1Y 1B 81ISCOM §,J9PIA.Id Uo paisod a.e ydiym ,SadiIAIas 2511d1a)u] Joj SUOIIIPUOT) PUE SWI3] pJEpUE]S,,
§49pinoid Ag paulanod aq [|im pue 03 Juensind spew si JapaQ 32IAIBS SIYL *(,JaWo]sn),,) Mojaq paypads Jawolsnd ayy pue ‘(,Japiaodd,) Auedwod Aujigel) panwij uoiSuiysen

e ‘77 ‘'SNOILNT0S SSANISNEG IAVM usamiaq pue Aq ‘(,21eQ 2A128443,, BY1) MOJaq 2unJeuSIS ISe| JO B1BP 33 JO SB 03U PRISJUS S (,JOPIO 2IAIS,, SIY1) 12PI0 BIIAIBS SIYL

ssauisnq

o/10M

85



T202Z/v/01
Z '8d

|esepad (,dIOA, BYE) JJOMIBU 3D10A |02010.d 1BUIBIU| S,JapInoid Aq papiaoud ale Japunalay papirold saoialas auoyda|al 8yl “SDIAIES T16d SUIPJESoy 9I0N Juenodu)

TVILNIQIINOD NV AYVLIIHdOYd

121351g uoneModsuel ] AJuno) yoowe||iL / 377 ‘SUCIIN|OS SSaUISNY SABM

430HO0 JDIAH3S

*321M3s TT63 SulpieSal a0130u SIY) SPUBISI2pUN pue peal
sey Jawolsn) eyl sa3edlpul Jawoisn) mojaq suiusis Ag “papuadsns Jo pajeuiwual sl 821A13s auoyd JnoA Ji Jo ‘swajqoid [eaiuyaal Jayjo Jo a8eino ylomiau ‘8eno Jamod e s|
8J9Y1 JI 5]|BD TT63 @)ew o3 9|qe aq jou Aew noa (A1) ‘a8eino Jamod e Bulinp ajqejieaeun aq [|Im $321A19S ay3 ‘Ajddns Jamod dn-yoeq e Jo) paSuele aney NOA ssajun 0s ‘YIS aIAIaS
ay) 03 papiaoad Jamod |eaydale piepuels ayl Suisn a3elado sI0IAISS dIOA (111) (9] UO UONEWIOUI UOIIEIO| 1084402 INOA BABY JOU |IM TTE3 3SIMISYIO ‘UOIFELLIOUI UOIIRIO| 3y}
ajepdn 0} A|aieIpawuLul JapIADId |[BD 3shw NoA ‘ssalppe [eaisAyd Juaiayip e 03 Juswdinba auoyd d|oA 1noA anow noA Jj (1) {163 03 UOIIBLUIOUI UOIIEIO| 31EINIIE JIA||SP 0} JBPIO Ul
SS3Jppe 31IS 2IIAIDS 1031100 B SPadU JBpIAD.d (1) 15198} TT63 Jueliodu] 5aY1 JO SIDWOISND pulal s221A13s auoyd d|oA Jo siapiaoad 38y} 24inbad s3)nJ UOISSILUIWOT SUCIIEIIUNWILLIO)

‘sagleyduns pue sy ‘saxe) ajqedljdde apn|au| 10U Op aA0gE pals| sagleyd ay ) 910N

'3)Ins/sasiwa.d 5,awo3sn) ay3 yapal o3 Buliim apisu| |DUOIIPPD / U0ISU3IXa 24pwap AIpssalau Aup

66'665 181295 SIV10L bujpinoid 10f ajqisuodsau s) 13w03sNJ UYL ‘JOJIN 2Y3 S! XS 3AIIS D JOf IN0GD P3ISI| JUIOd UOID2IDWIQ 3Y2 fi :ILON
wald "TPTL6 “ Hoowe||iL

00'0S 00'0S 000TS 00°SS [4 sn) ‘v 315 1S PJE 009€ Jaquunp 334 oL

wa.d "TPTL6 * Moowe]iL luepuany

00°0S 00°0% 000€$ 00'STS [4 IsnD ‘v 1S IS P4€ 009€ oIny winiwald
Wwialdd ‘TrTL6  Moowe||i

00'0S 00°05 ST'8TTS S6°95 LT snd ‘v 31S ‘1S pP4€ 009€ TT¥ XANA wodhjod

wald “TvTLe * Moowe]iL asea

0005 00°'0S 06°655 S6°6C5 C sno ‘¥ 315 IS PJ€ 009€ 0009 d| wodaAjod

O
00)



TVILNIAIINOD ANV AYV.LIINdOYd
1202/v/0T 1013s51Q UopELIOdsURl | AJUN0D YOOWE|LL / DT ‘SUONIN|OS SSaUISNg AR

€ '3d H3QYO0 3DIAH3S

pausis s1eQ pausis 21eq

L T

SwepN pajullgd QWeN pajuld

ainjeusis Japiaold pazioyiny a4nleudis Jawolsn) pazioyiny

*13pJQ 22IAIDS
SIY1 4O @1 DAI3924)3 2y} pawaap aq ||Im (aunjeusss s Aled 1eyl yum pajeldosse a1ep syl Ag paieaipul se) 1 usis o3 Aued 3se| ay3 Aq pausis si 1apJQ 221AI3S S1Y3 23ep 3yl N
pausis aAey sailed Yioq usym Ajuo aA1109)48 SW0D3( ||IM J2PIO SIIAISS SIU) ‘PEDISU| “J3H0 U BINHISUOI JOU SB0P JBPIA0Ld AQ JaW01SND) 01 J9PIO 201AIS SIY] JO UOISSILIQNS 3Y )

87



PRON N == wave N pEADINESS FORM - CUSTOMER PROVIDED NETWORK

THIS DOCUMENT MUST BE COMPLETED AND RETURNED TO YOUR VOICE IMPLEMENTATION PROJECT MANAGER

CUSTOMER / IT SUPPORT INFORMATION

BUSINESS NAME: TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT TECHNICAL CONTACT:
SERVICE ADDRESS: 3600 3% ST. OFFICE NUMBER:
SUITE/FLOOR:STE A CELL NUMBER:
iy, sTaTE, zip: Tillamook, OR 97141 EMAIL:
X
1.  ALLINTERIOR CABLING IS STANDARDS-COMPLIANT CATEGORY 5, S5E OR 6.
2. CABLE LENGTHS DO NOT EXCEED 90M OR 300FT AT ANY LOCATION IN THE BUSINESS SPACE.
3. HOSTED VOICE PHONES CANNOT BE CONNECTED TO A HUB. ALL PHONES MUST BE CONNECTED TO A SWITCH.
4. ADATAPORT/CATS, CATSE OR CAT6 CABLE WILL BE AVAILABLE AT EVERY LOCATION A HOSTED VOICE PHONE IS TO BE INSTALLED.
{ A SECOND DATA PORT IS REQUIRED IF YOU WISH TO SEPARATE THE VOICE AND DATA NETWORKS ¢

PHOMES WILL BE CONNECTED TO AN AVAILABLE DATA PORT OR STANDARDS-COMPLIANT CATEGORY 5, 5E OR 6 CABLE AT EACH LOCATION A PHONE IS GOING TO BE
DEPLOYED. IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT ONLY A SINGLE COMPUTER IS TETHERED TO A PHONE. PRINTERS OR SIMILAR NETWORK DEVICES SHOULD NOT BE TETHERED.

BUILT-IN AUTO SENSING |EEE 802.3AT POWER OVER ETHERNET (CLASS 4). BACKWARDS COMPATIBILITY WITH IEEE 802.3AF
PoLvcom VVX311, VVX 411, VVX 501, VVX 601 SupPORT 10/100/1000 CONNECTIONS

5. CUSTOMER MUST HAVE ALL NETWORK RELATED DEVICES INSTALLED PRIOR TO PRE-INSTALLATION OR TURN UP DATE OF THE PHONES.

CUSTOMER MUST HAVE ENOUGH SWITCH PORTS AND/OR SWITCHES TO MATCH OR EXCEED TOTAL NUMBER OF PHONES & EQUIPMENT,

7. FOR POWER OVER ETHERNET (POE) — AVAILABLE PORTS ON THE POE SWITCH WILL MATCH OR EXCEED THE NUMBER OF HOSTED PHONES TO
BE INSTALLED.

8. IF THE PHONES ARE TO BE MAINTAINED ON A SEPARATE NETWORK FROM THE WORKSTATIONS, THE CUSTOMER WILL ENSURE THAT THERE IS A
MINIMUM OF TWO DATA PORTS AVAILABLE AT EACH CONNECTION POINT TO SUPPORT THIS CONFIGURATION.

9. A CUSTOMER DEVICE WILL PROVIDE DHCP INFORMATION {DNS SERVERS, IP ADDRESSES & NETWORKS, IP GATEWAY) TO PHONES. DNS ADDRESS
FOR THE PHONES: EAST COAST MARKETS PRIMARY 207.172.3.8 ALTERNATE 207.172.3.9 | WEST COAST MARKETS PRIMARY
208.76.152.1 ALTERNATE 208.76.152.9

10. CUSTOMER PROVIDED FIREWALL WILL BE CONFIGURED TO ALLOW THE FOLLOWING:
ALL PORTS AND IP ADDRESSES WILL NEED TO BE CONFIGURED FOR INBOUND & OUTBOUND TRAFFIC
SIP PORT 5060 UDP RTP/RTCP/SRTP/SRTCP/UDPTL 16284-32767 UDPNTP (123)

11. CUSTOMER HAS VERIFIED FIRMWARE IS UP TO DATE ON ALL NETWORK EQUIPMENT.

12. SIPALG (SOMETIMES REFERRED TO AS SIP TRANSFORMATIDNS) HAS BEEN DISABLED ON THE FIREWALL.

13. IF USING AC ADAPTERS \'RCN/GRANDE/WAVE PROVIDED) — ALL PHONES WILL BE INSTALLED WITHIN 5FT OF AN ELECTRICAL OUTLET.

14. CUSTOMER MUST PROVIDE A RANGE OF STATIC IP ADDRESSES FOR USE THAT MEET OR EXCEED THE TOTAL NUMBER OF HOSTED DEVICES BEING
DEPLOYED. CONFIGURATION CHANGES WILL NEED TO BE MADE TO EACH DEVICE. PLEASE NOTIFY THE SALES ENGINEER OR VOICE
IMPLEMENTATION PROJECT MANAGER IF YOU WILL BE USING STATIC IP ADDRESSES.

NOTE: INCORRECTLY CHANGING THE IP ADDRESS COULD RENDER THE PHONES INOPERABLE.

15. VLAN TAGGING CAN BE SUPPORTED BY THE PHONES. CONFIGURATION CHANGES WILL NEED TO BE MADE TO EACH DEVICE. PLEASE NOTIFY THE
SALES ENGINEER OR VOICE IMPLEMENTATION PROJECT MANAGER IF YOU WILL BE USING VLAN TAGGING.
NOTE: INCORRECTLY CHANGING THE TAG COULD RENDER THE PHONES INOPERABLE.

THE FOLLOWING PORTS AND IP ADDRESSES MUST BE ALLOWED

ALL REGIONS

SIP PORT 5060 UDP ALLOWS CALL SIGNALING MESSAGES TO AND FROM RGW
RTP/RTCP/SRTP/SRTCP/UDPTL 16284-32767 UDP ALLOWS THE AUDIO PORTIONS OF THE CALL

NTP PoRT 123 ALLOWS THE PHONES TO SYNC THEIR TIME/DATE REFERENCES

FOR INITIAL PHONE PROVISIONING A VALID NTP REFERENCE MUST BE AVAILABLE IN THE NETWORK

EAST AND CENTRAL REGION (RCN/GRANDE)

HTTP/HTTPS: 80, 443 To/FROM 208.58.242.120 ALLOWS ALL DEVICES TO REACH OUR PROVISIONING SERVER.

WEesT REGION [WAVE)

76.14.93.80 (WWW.MYWAVEPHONE.COM) ALLOWS NON-CISCO PHONES TO GET TO OUR PROVISIONING SERVER
76.14.93.83 ALLOWS CISCO PHONES TO GET TO OUR PROVISIONING SERVER
76.14.93.130 (vOIP.ASTOUND.NET) ALLOWS ALL DEVICES TO REGISTER WITH OUR SIP PROVISIONING SERVER
76.14.93.75-76 ALLOWS OUR CHAT SERVER (IM SERVICES)

CUSTOMER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PURCHASE, INSTALLATION, CONFIGURATION AND WIRING OF ANY NETWORK EQUIPMENT REQUIRED TO SUPPORT THE HOSTED
PHONES. FAILURE TO COMPLY CAN RESULT IN LOSS OF SERVICE, POOR CALL QUALITY AND/OR PHONE FEATURE ISSUES.

CUSTOMER SIGNATURE: DATE:

IT VENDOR/SUPPORT PERSON: DATE:

38



Tillamook County Transportation District
Board of Directors Application

Name of Applicant:

Street Address:

Mailing Address:

Home Phone: Cell Phone:
Email Address:

Present Employment (If not presently employed, enter “N/A” or “Retired”)

Previous Employment

Prior Governmental Experience (elected or appointed)

Prior Board Service Experience, other than governmental

Other Community Affiliations

Are you knowledgeable about the public transportation needs of resident or employees
located within or traveling to and from Tillamook County?OYes O No

If yes, please describe:

Why do you wish to serve on the TCTD Board of Directors?

39



Tillamook County
Transportation District

Title VI Program

Effective: October 1, 2021

Doug Pilant

General Manager

Tillamook County Transportation District
3600 3 Street, Suite A

Tillamook, Oregon 97141

(503) 842-3115

Email address: dpilant@tillamookbus.com

90



Table of Contents

[l el 20 o O ——— 3
PGICY BEESTIEI covncosmmmscnunmmmuimssomiitosommmnemissmssssrsssassn s ames meiis oo s sava s, 3
Title VI Complaint ProCeaUIes. ...........cooie oo 3
Record of Title VI investigations, complaints, or lawsuitS...............oocvovoeo 4
TCTD'E LEP OUTEACH PIAN ..uuvmssssmss st st esneammemssmrosmmerssasmeasmesneessonesesssrmssssrormsd 4
Notification of TCTD's Title VI obligations ..............coooooiooiooeeeeeeee 4
Summary of Public Participation Efforts .............cccoooo oo 5
Public Participation PIan ... 6
Construction Projects Undertaken. ... 8
AHBChMENT AL e 9
AAChMENT B.. ..o 10
23102 2l ai 20 ) R S—————————— O 12
AHECIIIRIE D cmiom0i0mmmi 0055 s ssmmmme s s om0 14
Attachment E..... e 15
AHAChMENT F oo e 16
2

91



The TCTD Title VI plan is available in Spanish on the Tillamook County Transportation
District website: www.tillamookbus.com.

Introduction

Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) was established by the Tillamook
County Board of Commissioners in July 1997 as a special district as defined by ORS
267.500. The District is governed by a 7-member Board of Directors who are elected at
large. The Board meets monthly with the General Manager to approve policy, execute
contracts, and adopt the annual budget. The General Manager oversees the District's
administration and operations and oversees and manages a staff of more than 50
employees and volunteers.

TCTD is a regional transportation provider. The District operates and maintains a fleet
of 34 vehicles to serve both local and regional public transportation needs. The District
currently provides dial-a-ride service throughout Tillamook County and provides non-
emergency medical transportation trips to and from Portland, Salem, Seaside-Astoria,
Lincoln City-Newport and Corvallis for Medicaid and Columbia-Pacific CCO members.
TCTD operates deviated fixed route services between Tillamook and Cannon Beach,
between Tillamook and Oceanside, and between Tillamook and Lincoln City. The
District also provides intercity bus services between Tillamook and Portland and
between Lincoln City and Salem. Finally, the District operates a commuter bus service
which runs between Salem and Grand Ronde.

Mission and Vision Statement

TCTD is a mission and values-based organization. The vision of TCTD is “Committed
to providing innovative transportation services” and the mission is “Connecting the
community through sustainable transit services”. TCTD’s guiding values are
accountability, innovation, safety, communication, and service excellence.

Policy Statement

This program reflects Tillamook County Transportation Districts commitment to
ensuring that no person shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin, religion, age,
marital status, sexual orientation, or disability be excluded from participation in, be
denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity
provided by the Tillamook County Transportation District (“TCTD").

Signed Policy Statement
A policy statement signed by the General Manager assuring TCTD's compliance with
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 can be found as Attachment A.

Title VI Complaint Procedures

TCTD has a standard process for investigating all complaints. Members of the public
may file a signed, written complaint up to one hundred and eighty (180) days from the
date of alleged discrimination. Full procedures for filing a complaint and TCTD's

3

92



procedures for investigating complaints can be found as Attachment B. At a minimum,
the complaint should include the following information:

L]

Name, mailing address, and how to contact complainant (i.e., telephone number,
email address, etc.)

How, when, where and why complainant alleges s/he was discriminated against.
Include the location, names and contact information of any witnesses.

Other significant information.

The complaint may be filed in writing with TCTD at the following address:

Doug Pilant

General Manager

Title VI Coordinator

Tillamook County Transportation District
3600 3 Street, Suite A

Tillamook, Oregon 97141

Email address: dpilant@tillamookbus.com
By Facsimile: (503) 815-2834

A sample Title VI Complaint Form can be found as Attachment C.

Record of Title VI investigations, complaints, or lawsuits

Attachment D includes a list of all Title VI complaints, investigations, or lawsuits
against the District over the last reporting period. Over the last reporting period, TCTD
had no Title VI complaints, investigations or lawsuits filed against it.

TCTD’s LEP Outreach Plan

A full copy of the outreach plan for individuals with limited English proficiency can be
found in Attachment F. Key elements of the plan include:

Spanish speaking translators are available upon request during normal business
hours.

Route and schedule information is available in both English and Spanish on the
TCTD website.

The entire TCTD website is available in both English and Spanish.

Notification of TCTD’s Title VI obligations

TCTD publicizes its Title VI program by posting its commitment to providing services
without regard to race, color or national origin in all schedules, and on the TCTD
website. The signs, website and route schedules all include the following statements:

93



e Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibits discrimination on the basis of
race, color, or national origin in programs and activities receiving Federal
financial assistance (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d).

o TCTD is committed to practicing non-discrimination. If you believe you have
been subjected to discrimination you may file a complaint with the TCTD’s Title
VI Coordinator.

Summary of Public Participation Efforts

Over the last reporting period, TCTD conducted the following public outreach and
involvement activities:

Fare Policy Analysis and Ordinance
Conduct on District Property Ordinance
STIF Plan

Public Input at Board Meetings

Route 2B Planning: Port of Tillamook Bay

® & & e o

Spanish Service Schedules:

The current service schedule is available in English and Spanish on the TCTD website
and made available via paper brochures.

Bilingual Qutreach:

The District maintains a list of fluent Spanish-speaking employees and can contract for
Spanish interpreters if necessary. Language Line Services have been contacted and
their services may be utilized as necessary.

In accordance with Oregon public meeting law, all public meetings including
transportation planning meetings are open to the general public. Accommodations are
available for those with limited English proficiency if requested in advance of the
meeting.

Title VI Outreach Effort:

TCTD conducted outreach to the Title VI community as part of the development of the
TCTD Long Range Transit Development Plan (LRTDP). This outreach included
reaching out to all Title VI communities to conduct one-on-one interviews. These
interviews were followed by inviting members of these communities to participate in
local workshops in Tillamook, Pacific City and Nehalem. Many of the LRTDP unmet
needs were identified this outreach effort.

Planning and Development:

During the last reporting period TCTD has developed STIF Plans for the FY 2019-2021
and FY 2021-2021 STIF funding biennium’s. The District conducted public outreach for
both of these Plans prior to adoption and implementation. In addition, TCTD conducted

5

94



a Fare Policy Analysis of all District services and conducted an public outreach prior to
implementation of the revised fare policy.

TCTD is a member of the NW Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA). The NWOTA charter
members are Sunset Empire Transportation District, Tillamook County Transportation
District, Lincoln County District, Benton County Rural Services and Columbia County
Rider. The leaders of each agency meet monthly to collaborate so that each agency’s
collective transit services can be marketed and branded as a 5-county regional bus
system called the NW Connector. The Alliance also shares the expense to maintain a
single website where bus riders can plan trips throughout the region. See
www.nworegontransit.org to become familiar with how providers in our region partner
with each other.

Public Participation Plan

Purpose

The purpose of this Public Participation Plan (PPP) is to establish procedures that allow
for, encourage, and monitor participation of all citizens in the TCTD area, including but
not limited to low-income individuals, minority individuals, and those with limited English
proficiency. While traditional means of soliciting public involvement may not reach such
individuals, or might not allow for meaningful avenues of input, the intent of this effort is
to take reasonable actions throughout the planning process to provide opportunities for
historically underserved populations to participate.

Goals and Objectives for the Public Participation Plan

Goal: The goal of the PPP is to offer real opportunities for the engagement of all
citizens of the TCTD Service Area to participate.

Objectives:

e To determine what cultural barriers exist to public participation within the TCTD
service area.

e To provide notifications of meetings, particularly forums for public input, in a
manner that is understandable to all populations in the area.

¢ To hold meetings in locations which are accessible and reasonably welcoming to
all area residents, including but not limited to, low-income and minority members
of the public.

e To provide avenues for two-way flow of information and input from populations
who are not likely to attend public meetings.

95



Identification of stakeholders

Stakeholders are those who are either directly or indirectly affected by a plan, or the
recommendations of that plan. Those who may be adversely affected, or who may be
denied benefit of a plan's recommendation(s), are of particular interest in the
identification of specific stakeholders. Stakeholders are broken down into several
groups: general citizens, minority and low-income persons, public agencies and private
organizations and businesses.

General Public:

Some of the techniques that can be used to engage the general population are public
notices of meetings in the local newspapers, open house format public information
meetings and use of local radio news media.

Minorities:

Engaging minority and Limited English Proficiency populations can be challenging.
Language and cultural differences may not be compatible with the more traditional
means of engaging the public in the planning process. TCTD will make reasonable
efforts to engage minority populations using techniques such as including notations in
public notices in Spanish that will provide a contact where the individual can be
informed of the process/project and will have the opportunity to give input. Advocacy
groups can be a good source for contacts and dissemination of information to minority
and limited English proficient populations. Such advocacy groups or agencies can have
insight into the needs of the under-represented populations, as well as providing
valuable contacts or arenas for input. Contacts with local translators should be
maintained and used as requested and needed.

Low-Income:

While low-income individuals may have access to all of the traditional means of Public
Involvement discussed under "General Public”, they may be less likely to become
involved, or offer input. Some methods of gaining input either directly or indirectly from
this portion of the population include focus groups, informal interviews, and
agency/advocacy group contacts.

Public Agencies:

Public agencies can provide valuable input to the planning process, in addition to
assisting in gaining participation from traditionally under-represented populations.
Pertinent public agencies include those that have clients who fall into under-represented
populations, including but not limited to minorities, low-income, and limited English
proficiency households. These agencies have great insight into the transportation
needs of their clients and are useful partners in overcoming difficult barriers that may
not be understood by professionals dealing more distinctly with the provision of
transportation services.

Private Organizations and Businesses:

Private organizations and businesses offer a number of perspectives that are valuable
to the planning process. Often, transportation for employees is of critical concern to
private sector employers. This is particularly true in a tourism area, such as the one

7

96



where TCTD operates, where many jobs are low-income and seasonal. Employees
often cannot afford cars, insurance, and maintenance so they must rely on the local
transit system. For that reason, representation of private business interests will be
welcome to participate in any planning process or other meetings that may be held.

Other techniques could also be determined to be useful at any particular stage of the
process, and new and different techniques will be utilized as deemed appropriate.

Construction Projects Undertaken:

TCTD has undertaken construction projects during this reporting period. The
construction project undertaken received a Categorical Exclusion (CE) from the Federal
Transit Administration. Upon review of Chapter IV, Section 8 of the FTA’s Title VI
circular, the following was noted: “Recipients are not required to conduct environmental
justice analysis of projects where NEPA documentation is not required.” The TCTD
project was the installation of the post office bus stop near the City of Tillamook Civic
Center. There were no negative impacts on local residents or the environment. This
project has since been completed. This information is being incorporated into TCTD's
Title VI Program.

97



Attachment A

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

TITLE VI NON-DISCRIMINATION
POLICY STATEMENT

August 23, 2018

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 states:

“No person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin,
be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to
discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.”

Tillamook County Transportation District is committed to complying with the
requirements of Title VI in all of its programs and activities. Questions and complaints
may be reported to Doug Pilant, General Manager, Tillamook County Transportation

District at 503-842-8283; by email to dpilant@tillamookbus.com; or by mail to 3600 3
Street, Suite A, Tillamook, Oregon 97141.

Oupe QLK

Doug Pilant, General Manager
Tillamook County Transportation District

98



Attachment B

Discrimination Complaint Procedure

. Any person who believes that he or she, individually, as a member of any specific
class, or in connection with any disadvantaged business enterprise, has been
subjected to discrimination prohibited by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the
American with Disabilities Act of 1990, Section 504 of the Vocational Rehabilitation
Act of 1973 and the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, as amended, may file a
complaint with the TCTD. A complaint may also be filed by a representative on
behalf of such a person. All complaints will be referred to the Transit Program
Director for review and action.

. In order to have the complaint considered under this procedure, the complainant
must file the complaint no later than 180 days after:

a) The date of alleged act of discrimination; or

b) Where there has been a continuing course of conduct, the date on which that
conduct was discontinued.

In either case, TCTD may extend the time for filing or waive the time limit in the
interest of justice, as long as TCTD specifies in writing the reason for so doing.

. Complaints shall be in writing and shall be signed by the complainant and/or the
complainant’s representative. Complaints shall set forth as fully as possible the
facts and circumstances surrounding the alleged discrimination. In the event that a
person makes a verbal complaint of discrimination to an officer or employee of
TCTD, the person shall be interviewed by the General Manager. If necessary,
General Manager will assist the person in reducing the complaint to writing and
submit the written version of the complaint to the person for signature. The
complaint shall then be handled according to TCTD'’s investigative procedures.

. Within 10 days, the General Manager will acknowledge receipt of the allegation,
inform the complainant of action taken or proposed action to process the allegation,
and advise the complainant of other avenues of redress available, such as the
Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) and U.S. Department of
Transportation (USDOT).

. The General Manager will advise ODOT and/or USDOT within 10 days of receipt of
the allegations. Generally, the following information will be included in every
notification to ODOT and/or USDOT:

a) Name, address, and phone number of the complainant.
b) Name(s) and address(es) of alleged discriminating official(s).

c) Basis of complaint (i.e., race, color, national origin or sex)

10

99



d) Date of alleged discriminatory act(s).

e) Date of complaint received by the recipient.

f) A statement of the complaint.

g) Other agencies (state, local or Federal) where the complaint has been filed.

h) An explanation of the actions TCTD has taken or proposed to resolve the
issue in the complaint.

6. Within 60 days, the General Manager will conduct an investigation of the allegation
and based on the information obtained, will render a recommendation for action in a
report of findings to the District's Board of Directors. The complaint should be
resolved by informal means whenever possible. Such informal attempts and their
results will be summarized in the report of findings.

7. Within 90 days of receipt of the complaint, the General Manager will notify the
complainant in writing of the final decision reached, including the proposed
disposition of the matter. The notification will advise the complainant of his/her
appeal rights with ODOT, or USDOT, if they are dissatisfied with the final decision
rendered by TCTD. The General Manager will also provide ODOT and/or USDOT
with a copy of this decision and summary of findings upon completion of the
investigation.

8. Contact information for the state and federal Title VI administrative jurisdiction is as
follows:

ODOT Public Transit Division

Intermodal Civil Rights Manager

3930 Fairview industrial Drive SE, MS23
Salem, OR 97302

503-986-3619

503-986-4189 fax
carroll.j.cottingham@odot.state.or.us

Attention: Title VI Program Coordinator
East Building, 5th Floor — TCR

1200 New Jersey Ave., SE
Washington, DC 20590

11

100



Attachment C
TCTD Discrimination Complaint Form
Title VI and ADA

Section I:

Name:
Address:
Telephone (Home): Telephone (Work):
Electronic Mail Address:

. . [J Large Print [J Audio Tape
Accessible Format Requirements?

LI TDD [ Other

Section II: ,
Are you filing this complaint on your own behalf? L] Yes* U No

*If you answered "yes” to this question, go to Section I1I.

If not, please supply the name and
relationship of the person for whom you are
complaining.

Please explain why you have filed for a third party:

Please confirm that you have obtained the permission of
the aggrieved party if you are filing on behalf of a third (] Yes 1 No

party.

Section III:

I believe the discrimination I experienced was based on (check all that apply):

[J Race L1 Color [J National Origin [] Disability
Date of Alleged Discrimination (Month, Day, Year):

Explain as clearly as possible what happened and why you believe you were discriminated
against. Describe all persons who were involved. Include the name and contact information
of the person(s) who discriminated against you (if known) as well as names and contact
information of any witnesses. If more space is needed, please use the back of this form.

Section VI:

Have you previously filed a Discrimination Complaint with

this agency?

I Yes I No

12

101



If yes, please provide any reference information regarding your previous complaint.

Seciion V:

Have you filed this complaint with any other Federal, State, or local agency, or with any
Federal or State court?

[J Yes [J No

If yes, check all that apply:

[ Federal Agency:
LI Federal Court; ] State Agency:
] State Court: [J Local Agency:

Please provide information about a contact person at the agency/court where the
complaint was filed.

Name:

Title:

Agency:

Address:

Telephone:

Section VI:

Name of agency complaint is against:

Name of person complaint is against:

Title:

Location:

Telephone Number (if available):

You may attach any written materials or other information that you think is relevant to your
complaint. Your signature and date are required below:

Signature Date
Please submit this form in person at the address below, or mail this form to:

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

DOUG PILANT, GENERAL MANAGER, Title VI Coordinator
3600 3RD STREET, SUITE A, TILLAMOOK, OR 97141
503-815-8283

Email: dpilant@tillamookbus.com

A copy of this form can be found online at

https://lwww.nworegontransit.org/accessibility-tctd/

13

102



Attachment D

Tillamook County Transportation District
Title VI List of Complaint, Investigations and Lawsuits
Received in Last Reporting Period

(Mon thDS;ey Year) Summary Status Action Taken

Investigations

None

Lawsuits

None

Complaints

None

14

103



Attachment E

Tillamook County Transportation District advertises in the local media that includes
newspapers, radio stations and websites to seek Tillamook County residents to fill
vacant board and committee positions. Below is a table of the existing minority

representation.

TCTD Minority Representation

White Asian or Black Il\rggrican
Body {not Hispanic Pacific (not Hispanic Hispanic RI 'a:: or
origin) Islander origin) Nziivaen
Population 22,000 365 76 2,946 239
Board of 5
Directors 100%
TAQ 85.7% 14.3%
Committee

White (not of Hispanic origin): All persons having origins in any of the original peoples of
Europe, North Africa or the Middle East.

Asian or Pacific Islander: All persons having origins in any of the peoples of the Far East,
Southeast Asia, the Indian subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example,
China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands and Samoa.

Black (not of Hispanic origin): All persons having origins in any of the Black racial groups of
Africa.

Hispanic: All persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other
Spanish culture or origin, regardless of race.

American Indian or Alaskan Native: All persons having origins in any of the original peoples
of North America, and who maintain cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community
recognition.

15

104



Attachment F
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENT (LEP) PLAN
September 30, 2021

TCTD is required to take responsible steps to ensure meaningful access to the benefits,
services, information and other important portions of our programs and activities of
individuals who are Limited English Proficient (LEP). TCTD consulted the USDOT’s LEP
Guidance and performed a four-factor analysis of our contact with the public to
determine the appropriate mix of LEP services to offer.

Four Factor Analysis:
Factor 1: The Number or Proportion of LEP Persons in the Service Area

Step 1. Prior experience with LEP individuals. Over the past three years,
our dispatchers have received many calls from LEP individuals but none
have required the use of an interpreter..

Step 2: Data was gathered from the following sources to identify
information on persons who speak languages other than English at home
and those who speak English less than well or not at all and would be
classified as Limited English Proficient or “LEP”:

2020 Decennial Census

A review of the 2020 Decennial Census data on the numbers of limited English
proficient or LEP persons revealed that in Tillamook County, Oregon the number
of people over age 5 who speak a language other than English at home was
2,445 persons or 9.7% of the population. The most common language other
than English spoken at home was Spanish, with 2,066 people (8.2%) recorded
as speaking Spanish (Source: American Community Survey, 2019, American
Community Survey 5-Year Estimates, Tillamook County, Oregon.)

https:/iwww.census.gov/quickfacts/tillamookcountyoregon
https://data.census.gov/cedscilall?g=tillamoaok

White

Black

(not Asian or (not American
Body : : Pacific : ; Hispanic Indian or
Hispanic Hispanic :

origin) Islander origin) Alaskan Native

Source: 2020 DEC Redistricting Data
https://data.census.gov/cedscitable?g=tillamook%20&tid=DECENNIALPL2020.P2

16

105



Factor 2: The Frequency with which LEP Individuals Come into Contact with the
Service.

TCTD serves LEP persons daily through demand response services such as dial-a-ride
and deviated-fixed-route services. Over the past three years, our dispatchers have
received many calls from LEP individuals, but none of these calls have required the use
of an interpreter to serve the customer’s needs.

Factor 3: The Importance of the Service to LEP Persons

TCTD provides important services to the public through its deviated fixed route and
demand response public transit programs. TCTD is the only major public transportation
provider in Tillamook County and provides a link between all incorporated cities within
Tillamook County, residential areas, commercial centers, healthcare facilities,
educational campuses, and social service offices. Language barriers would most affect
users of the demand response system as reservations for the system are taken via
telephone. The demand response portion of TCTD services provides approximately
15% of the total rides provided through TCTD.

Factor 4: The Resources Available to the Recipient of the Federal Funds to
Assure Meaningful Access to the Service by LEP Persons

TCTD currently provides basic information in Spanish through the District's website, and
a reference guide entitled “Basic Spanish for Transit Employees” for bus drivers,
dispatch, and office staff. Tillamook County maintains a list of employees who are
fluent in Spanish and other languages. TCTD also currently works with Language Line
Services should the need for their services arise.

Implementation Plan:

Based on the four-factor analysis, TCTD recognizes the need to continue providing
language services. A review of TCTD relevant programs, activities, and services that
are being offered by the District as of September 2021 include:

e Spanish speaking translators are available upon request during normal business
hours

» Route and schedule information are available in English and Spanish on the TCTD
website

e The District contracts with Language Line Services to provide translation when
needed

Based on the demand for alternate language services, and considering the limited
budget of the TCTD, other activities and services that will be developed in the next three
years include:

17

106



e Paper schedules available in both English and Spanish in a wider distribution,
including on buses, at the Transit Center, and in other community locations as
requested

e Transit surveys conducted by TCTD will be available in Spanish
e The existing telephone system will be modified to include Language Line Services

TCTD's outreach and marketing initiatives have vyielded a list of community
organizations that serve populations with limited English proficiency. The following list of
community organizations will be contacted to assist in gathering information and see
what services are most frequently sought by the LEP population:

Tillamook County Public School District
Tillamook County Health and Human Services

TCTD's staff will contact the community organizations that serve LEP persons, as well
LEP persons themselves, and perform a four-factor analysis every three years to
identify what, if any, additional information or activities might better improve transit
services to assure non-discriminatory service to LEP persons. TCTD will then evaluate
the projected financial and personnel resources needed to provide the requested
services and assess which of these can be provided cost-effectively.

18

107





